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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NG EE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

Revenue (HK$ million)

Profit Attributable to

WANCGEE &) Shareholders (HK$ million)
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Consolidated Results

CEE S

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

Year ended 30 June
BEAA=ZTHLEE

(HK$ million) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(B¥HET) - Lokl —T—)\F —T—tF —ET-RF ZE—&F
Revenue LN 5,316 5,374 4,814 4,708 4,449
GP% ER=E 22% 21% 21% 20% 17%
Profit before taxation RRE AR R 398 391 319 266 165
Taxation #E (58) (65) (46) (64) (51)
Profit for the year INEERF 340 326 273 202 114
Non-controlling interests eI RS = - _ _ _
Profit attributable to AAFRE
shareholders of the FEAEER
Company 340 326 273 202 114
Consolidated Assets and Liabilities
meEERAEE
At 30 June
RAB=+H
(HKS$ million) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(BEET) =L RN — T )\ —ET—tF —E-RF —T-AHF
Total assets BEE 3,062 2,871 2,561 2,317 2,558
Total liabilities wEE (727) (701) (655) (586) (867)
Non-controlling interests  3EiR 4% (11) (11) (11 (11) (11)
Equity attributable to AATRRE
shareholders of the LR R
Company 2,324 2,159 1,895 1,720 1,680
MIE(EE)BRAR | ZF— NLFFR 5



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

Key Financial Indicators

FEBKER
Year ended 30 June
BEAB=THILEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
- BN — T \F —Z—tF ZE-RF ZE-HF
Earnings per share (HK$) BREF (B T)
Basic =K 1.44 1.38 1.15 0.85 0.48
Diluted g 1.43 1.37 1.12 0.84 0.47
Dividend per share (HK$) ERRE(BT) 0.44 0.40 0.35 0.28 0.21
Equity-debt ratio* REREFL & 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0
* Equity-debt ratio is defined as the ratio of the total equity * REERLEERARQARREGEESEFE
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company to net debt. BHEWELER - FEXBREEBRITERERE
Net debt comprises total bank loans and obligations under finance HEAERESNIESZRE -

leases less cash and cash equivalents.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Lam Soon
(Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”), | present herewith the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group” or “Lam Soon”) for the financial year ended 30 June
2019.

The Group’s net profit attributable to shareholders increased 4%
to HK$340 million while revenue was marginally lower by 1% to
HK$5,316 million this year. An almost 5% year-on-year weakening
of the Renminbi moderated our revenue and profit growth.
Significantly lower bran price in the second half of the financial
year also dulled our profit delivery. Nevertheless, the favourable
Oil and Home Care raw material costs and improved product and
channel mix yielded a gross margin improvement from last year’s
21.0% to 21.7%. As at 30 June 2019, the Group's cash balance of
HK$1,318 million represented a 13% improvement over last year.

The Food Segment generated a volume increase of 2.3% and its
core brand focus helped to maintain profitability. The Home Care
segment, with the previous strong material cost headwinds easing
and execution of its remedial plan during the year, registered a
5% and 31% increase in revenue and operating profit respectively
versus last year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

The Directors are recommending a final dividend of HK$0.30 per
share at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. In addition to
the interim dividend of HK$0.14 per share paid earlier this year
(2018: interim dividend of HK$0.13 and final dividend of HK$0.27
per share), total dividend for the year amounts to HK$0.44 per
share, representing the fourth consecutive year of double digit
percentage growth in dividend per share.

In the year under review, the Group continued with its long-
term initiatives and investment in laying new foundations of
growth. In addition to committing resources behind strengthened
online and offline distribution across China for all of our brands,
investments were also made in our production infrastructure and
capability. Specifically, in Jiangsu Province, June 2019 witnessed
the opening of our state-of-the-art Yixing flour factory and the
signing of an investment agreement with the Jintan government to
build a specialty fats facility, which is expected to be operational
in FY20/21. As part of its ongoing effort to transform from
an ingredient supplier into a solution provider, the Group has
enlarged its product portfolio in the past few years with the
inclusion of specialty fats. The distribution of specialty fats is
synergistic with our flour business and leverages on its existing
sales and distribution infrastructure and enhances engagement
with the overlapping customer base. The new plant in Jintan
signifies our commitment to manufacture high grade specialty fats
bespoke to the needs of the market. These two projects position
us well in meeting the Chinese customers’ and consumers’ rising
demand for safe, quality, and premium products.

The Group will also continue to invest behind talent acquisition/
retention, new product and channel development, especially in the
area of e-commerce. That said, we are cognisant of the importance
of striking a balance between creation of scalable new platforms/
programmes and delivery of profits in the long-run. With the
solid foundation built over the past several years, Lam Soon’s
management team is well equipped to face the challenges ahead.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, bankers, customers, and employees for their
unwavering support and commitment to the Group. Moving
forward, by further enriching lives of consumers through high
quality and safe products, the Group is poised to delivering
sustainable profitable growth and creating long-term value for our
shareholders.

KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, August 29, 2019
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

5% B B

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Amidst a year of volatile and uncertain political and economic
environment, weakness in the Renminbi and the ongoing US-
China trade dispute, the Group delivered profit growth against
the previous year. Group sales volume increased by 2.6% for the
year but revenue growth was dampened by a lower Renminbi
exchange, by which 86% of Group revenue was denominated.
2018/19 revenue of HK$5,316 million represents a 1% decline
while net profit attributable to shareholders of HK$340 million
represents a 4% growth against last year. In the second half of
the year, the continued softening of the Hong Kong and Chinese
economy, coupled with rising wheat costs and a significant drop
in bran price stemming from the widespread swine fever in China,
adversely affected our business performance. Notably, these were
mitigated by the continued improvement of our product/channel
mix, cost control measures and operational efficiencies, resulting
in a 0.3 percentage point year-on-year improvement of our Group
net profit margin to 6.4%.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

E 3 e

BUSINESS REVIEW

Food Segment

Food segment recorded revenue of HK$4,604 million, a 2%
reduction versus last year (2.2% increase if excluding foreign
exchange translation impact). Volume increased 2.3% and profit
from operations increased marginally to HK$394 million versus last
year, mainly attributable to an overall weaker Renminbi and lower
bran price in the flour business.

Oil’s growth momentum is reflected in its continued volume
increase seen in the year. With its profitability benefitting from the
favourable oil cost trend during the year, the marketing support
for the Knife brand, launch of new products and growth in its
key distribution channels contributed to its sales performance and
further enhanced margins. Despite an overall flat oil category in
the year, Knife's market share in Hong Kong remains strong with
annual volume and value market shares increasing to 32.5% and
28.5%, respectively." Strong support behind corn and canola oils
and the new Knife Supreme Sunflower oil, all played a key role
in the volume market share increase. In the highly competitive
Guangzhou market, Knife's heavier support in the past few years
behind its comprehensive product portfolio continued to bear
fruit. Given an otherwise mature category, Knife gained in both
annual volume and value market shares to achieve 3.9% and
4.8%, respectively.? Knife expanded its business through the
e-commerce channel during the year, increasing its national brand
awareness and setting the stage to penetrate into areas outside of
Guangdong Province.

1 Lam Soon’s calculation based in part on data reported by Nielsen
through its Retail Index Service for the Edible Oil category from July
2017 to June 2019 for Total Supermarkets & Convenience Stores in
Hong Kong. (Copyright © 2019, The Nielsen Company.)

d Lam Soon’s calculation based in part on data reported by Nielsen
through its Retail Index Service for the Edible Oil (Consumer Pack)
Category for the rolling year June 2018 (from July 2017 to June
2018) and the rolling year June 2019 (from July 2018 to June
2019), for the China Guangdong market. (Copyright © 2019, The
Nielsen Company.)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

E 3 e

BUS' N ESS REV' EW (continued)

Food Segment (continued)

In order to ensure that our manufacturing capacity keeps pace
with business expansion and demand for higher quality products,
the new Yixing flour plant will begin to produce in the new
financial year the highest quality Lam Soon “Royal Sakura” flour
products. This reinforces our strategy of market segmentation
and premiumisation, with the primary aim to substitute currently
imported premium products from Japan. On the other hand, our
new growth pillar, specialty fats, will be enhanced by the plan to
build a new factory adjacent to our existing Jintan flour facility in
Jiangsu Province. This business will continue to leverage on the
existing flour sales and distribution infrastructure and overlapping
institutional customer base to tap the synergies within the
Group. Flour and specialty fats (i.e. two major ingredients within
the bakery industry) will help the Group to transform from an
ingredient supplier to a solution provider.

Although the second half of the year was particularly challenging
for our flour business due to the steep decline in bran price,
we remain encouraged by the continued healthy growth of our
higher margin premium core flour products in China beyond our
established presence in first and second-tier cities.

As the US-China strained trade relationship has led to China’s
recent curtail in purchase of agricultural products from the United
States, the Group will step up procurement efforts for alternative
supply sourcing while enhancing its research and development
and manufacturing initiatives to optimize wheat formulation
and operations to achieve cost efficiencies while maintaining/
improving quality. The Group will increase its procurement of high
quality local wheat from the market and via the contract farming
model in China.

Bran is a by-product of the milling process of wheat into flour
and contributes to our revenue stream in the form of sales largely
as livestock feed. The swine fever occurrence had curtailed pig
rearing in the past year in China and led to reduced demand
for bran. Hence its price has dropped by 27% per metric tonne
in the latter part of the financial year. This situation appears to
be gradually subsiding and coupled with the Group’s effort to
transform its crude wheat bran into other higher margin added-
value edible consumables, it should help to mitigate this risk in the
near future.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

E 3 e

BUS' N ESS REV' EW (continued)

Home Care Segment

Revenue for Home Care grew 5% (9% revenue increase if
excluding foreign exchange translation impact) to HK$712 million
this year. Operating profit of HK$60 million, a 31% increase from
last year was aided by reduced material costs, AXE and Labour
price increases, and continued strong e-commerce growth during
the year.

In the Hong Kong dishwashing detergent market, AXE and Labour
retained their leading position with a combined annual value and
volume market shares of 37.8% and 50.8% respectively.? The
Group’s balanced channel mix approach in the past two years
has helped to optimize profitability of this segment. Introduction
of the new Triple Action dishwash detergent product in the last
quarter of the financial year was well received by customers and
consumers alike.

In Guangdong Province, the Group’s strong presence in the
dishwashing detergent market is reflected by AXE and Labour’s
combined annual value and volume market shares of 20.7% and
19.6% respectively. These two brands gained ground compared
to a year ago, both in terms of volume and value. Specifically, AXE
increased 0.4 and 0.1 percentage points in annual volume and
value market share, respectively against last year. Labour, on the
other hand, increased 1.0 and 0.6 percentage points in annual
volume and value market share respectively versus last year.

In this coming year, Home Care will introduce new products
outside of the dishwashing category (e.g. laundry care),
supporting our long-term strategy to transform itself from mainly
a dishwashing business into a household cleaning company. As we
expand our product portfolio, we will strengthen our presence in
both online and offline channels. Given its high growth trend in
the e-commerce channel in the past several years, Home Care will
aim to achieve increased awareness for its brands and penetrate
further into the national scene.

g Lam Soon's calculation based in part on data reported by Nielsen
through its Retail Index Service for the Dishwashing Detergent
category from July 2017 to June 2019 for Total Supermarkets,
Convenience Stores and Drug Stores in Hong Kong. (Copyright ©
2019, The Nielsen Company.)

4 Lam Soon’s calculation based in part on data reported by Nielsen
through its Retail Index Service for the Dish Washing Liquid
Category for the rolling year June 2019 (from July 2018 to June
2019), for the China Guangdong province total. (Copyright ©
2019, The Nielsen Company.)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

E 3 e

OUTLOOK

While the current market uncertainties and volatilities are expected
to linger, the Group, with a strong balance sheet, remains
steadfast in the execution of our long-term initiatives to build
sustainable growth, strengthen its fundamentals and enhance its
competitive advantages. We believe the markets that the Group
serves in China and Hong Kong will grow not only in size but
more importantly, demand higher quality products that the Group
produces. We are well placed to serve this demand and have made
appropriate investments, tangible in production facilities and
intangible in brands, research and development, human resource
and channel infrastructure to enhance its competitive position.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Management has been provided with the following key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) to manage its business, through
evaluating, controlling and setting strategies to improve
performance. Such KPIs include revenue, gross profit margin, net
profit attributable to shareholders, inventory and trade receivable
turnover days.

Group Results

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group’s sales volume
increased by 2.6% for the year but revenue decreased by 1%
to HK$5,316 million. The decrease was mainly due to the
depreciation of the Renminbi which 86% of Group revenue was
denominated and coupled with rising wheat costs and a significant
drop in bran price in the second half of the financial year which
affected our business performance. Group gross profit margin of
21.7% was higher than last year’s 21.0% primarily because of the
favourable Oil and Home Care raw material costs and improved
product and channel mix.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2019, the Group had a cash balance of HK$1,318
million (2018: HK$1,162 million). This was mainly attributable to
the net cash generated from operating activities. About 73% of
these funds were denominated in Renminbi, 24% in Hong Kong
dollars and 3% in United States dollars.

Banking facilities available to Group companies and not yet drawn
as at 30 June 2019 amounted to HK$721 million (2018: HK$728
million).
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

E 3 e

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities at
corporate level. There are internal controls over the application of
financial and hedging instruments which can only be employed to
manage and mitigate the commodity price risk for trade purposes.

At 30 June 2019, the inventory turnover days' were 59 days (2018:
57 days). The trade receivable turnover days? remained at a stable
level of 24 days (2018: 22 days).

In view of the strong liquidity and financial position, management
believes the Group will have sufficient resources to fund its daily
operations and capital expenditure commitments.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars, and Macau Patacas.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases, which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which the transactions relate. The Group monitors its exposure by
considering factors including, but not limited to, exchange rate
movement of the relevant foreign exchange currencies as well
as the Group's cash flow requirements to ensure that its foreign
exchange exposure is kept at an acceptable level. Details of the
foreign currency exposure of the Group are set out in note 23(d) to
the financial statements.

Net exchange gains for the year is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

L The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the closing
balances divided by the preceding 3 months’ cost of sales and
multiplied by 91 days.

2 The calculation of trade receivables turnover days is based on the
closing balances divided by the preceding 3 months’ revenue and
multiplied by 91 days.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FHE R

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Expenditure

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group invested a total
sum of HK$121 million (2018: HK$85 million) on construction of
new plant and new production lines in China and acquisition of
other plant equipment.

Details of the capital expenditure commitments are set out in note
24(a) to the financial statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2019, there were 1,681 employees in the Group.
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus mechanism
were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration policy to retain,
reward and motivate individuals for their contributions to the
Group. Share options are granted to the Group Managing Director
and other eligible employees to recognise their contribution and
provide incentives to achieve better performance in coming years.

RELATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its
businesses.
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
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China International Import Expo 5-10 November 2018
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
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Bakery China 2019
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited June 2019
— Relocation of Yixing new plant 201946 A
IEEIREM AR L E — BN THRRE

Bakery Center
B4
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

Honour & Awards
SX 2R ER 38 1R

“Lam Soon” was awarded
“Century Food Brand Enterprise
2018" by The Hong Kong Food
Council
(HEEEEERREESHE
[2018 B FRmmiEE ]

“Knife"” brand was awarded
Q-Mark Elite Brand Award 2018
— Soya Sauce Category

J0 TR i hER SR QIR A SR W K 3R
2018 — & h¥E Al

Lam Soon Products Supply .
(Hong Kong) Company Q
Limited — in recognition of L W -
the recipient’s commitment to ot
quality and certification under e
the Hong Kong Q-Mark Product “:“m"‘;““m
Scheme s n:“.___ze:'"”‘
mMIEEmEE(EEB)BRARER 54
BREBQEBEEMITERESE =
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

R ARAR

Jo=
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited gy
was awarded a “Caring = %
Company Award” for the ten Wi
consecutive years by the Hong A
Kong Council of Social Service ‘-CQBN!QNGY@.
MIE(EB)ERAREE+FES 65 dsmans
BHERBHEET BARRE] Rt > o
B nmf#

e (sl
g o (-2

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills
Company Limited
O FEIBEER AR A T

“Golden Statue Flour” was
awarded the “Top Ten
Favourite Grocery Brands in
Shenzhen” by Shenzhen Cereals
and Oils Industry Association*
and Food Industry Association
Shenzhen

Based on the market research
conducted by the Cereals and
Oils Marketing Techniques CCOA
Board* under the Chinese '
Cereals and Oils Association*, 2o E A S R
the flour brand “Golden AP SHHNE RN T
Statue” was awarded the
“Most Competitive Brand” in I
flour market in 2018 REAEEEF A SR
KHEEBESEhEHERN S
MERE  [2/E] BHRE
2018FEHH™HE [RAERFED
mhE

FIR20184F FE I T 5

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

Honour & Awards
BB EAE TR

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills
Company Limited
e OrFIEEH BR A T

was awarded the title of
“Qutstanding Enterprise” in
bakery and sugar product
industry in the 40th Anniversary
of China’s Reform and Opening
up by China Association of
Bakery & Confectionery Industry
KETEEERRERR TXBS
BB N EMRI0EAFZEERM
RRmMmEZ LD IBR

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills
Company Limited
e O IEZE A2 A PR 2 &

“Bran+ Bread Premix" was
awarded the “Product
Innovation Award (Raw
material) at the 22"¥Bakery
China by China Association of
Bakery & Confectionery Industry
[EREEERNY IKE

[E-t+t - EHEBEREERES
Em AR (D) |

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills
Company Limited, Shanghai
Branch

EOEIEERERLF LSS A F

was awarded the title of
“Enterprise with Harmonious
Labour Relationship in
Shanghai” by Shanghai
Municipal Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau,
Shanghai General Labour
Union*, Shanghai Enterprise
Confederation* and Shanghai
Federation of Industry and
Commerce
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERHRES

Scope and Reporting Period

This is the third Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG")
report of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”,
and together with its subsidiaries referred to as the “Group”),
highlighting its ESG performance, with disclosure reference made
to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the
Main Board Listing Rules (“Listing Rules”) and Guidance set out
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group has
complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the
ESG Reporting Guide during the Reporting Period.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social aspects of its
major business operations for the manufacture and distribution
of food and home care products in Hong Kong and the Mainland
China, which accounted for 98% of the Group's total revenue,
from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 (the “Reporting Period”), unless
otherwise stated. The Group has business operations included:

(i) Hong Kong Lam Soon Building, which comprises the
headquarters office and an edible oil plant;

(i) Shenzhen office in Shekou, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
People’s Republic of China (“PRC");

(iii) Five flour mill plants in Shekou (Shenzhen), Yixing, Jintan,
Qionglai and Qingzhou of the PRC;

(iv) Edible oil plant in Shekou, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, PRC;
and

(v) Home care products plant in Guangzhou, PRC.

The business operation in Macau was excluded due to its relatively
small scale. Similarly, sales offices in Beijing and Shanghai
were excluded due to their insignificant contribution to the
environmental and social impacts. The old Yixing flour mill plant
was shut down in January 2019 and new flour mill plant was
in commissioning since June 2019. No other major operational
changes were occurred during the Reporting Period.

SHE KR EHE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HEBRERBRES

Stakeholder Engagement and
Materiality

Key stakeholders including investors, shareholders and employees
have been involved in regular engagement sessions to discuss
and review areas of attention in order to help the Group
meet its potential growth and prepare for future challenges.
Through identifying areas of improvement and maintaining close
communication with various stakeholders, the Group aims to
consistently enhance its ESG performance and management.

Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our ESG approach
and performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email at webmaster@lamsoon.com.

The Group’s ESG Commitment

The Board of Directors of the Group acknowledges that it has the
overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting
and for evaluating and determining the Group’s ESG-related risks.
The Group has dedicated its effort to ensuring its compliance with
the relevant legal and regulatory requirements as described in the
Listing Rules.

The Group’s Sustainability Mission
and Vision

Entrenching its tradition of creating values for its stakeholders
and communities, the Group has taken a progressive approach in
integrating sustainability into its businesses, towards a stronger,
more resilient group. The Group is committed to growing its
businesses responsibly, balancing environmental with economic
considerations, as well as creating a positive impact for its
stakeholders and contributing to its communities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  #HERERBRES

The Group’s Sustainability Mission
and Vision (continued)

The Group continues to embrace the following core values in all aspects:

Honour To conduct business with honour

Human resources To enhance the quality of human resources —
as the essence of management excellence

Entrepreneurship To pursue management vision and foster
entrepreneurship

Innovation To nurture and be committed to innovation

Quality To consistently provide goods and services of
the highest quality at competitive prices

Progress To continuously improve existing operations
and to position for expansion and new
opportunities

Unity To ensure oneness in purpose, harmony and
friendship in the pursuit of prosperity for all

Social To create wealth for the betterment of

responsibility society

During the Reporting Period, the Group has put its emphasis
on energy saving and energy efficiency. The Administration
Department aims to implement various plans to reduce the total
energy consumption in our Hong Kong building in the coming 12
months. In addition, the Group has joined the Renewable Energy
Feed-in Tariff by CLP Power Hong Kong Limited (CLP) and such
project will be completed by the end of 2019 for energy saving and
promotion of the use of clean energy.

Challenges and Future Directions

Labour shortage remains as one of the major challenges for
various businesses in the PRC. To overcome the problem of
labour shortage, the Group has implemented various schemes for
employees retention.

In addition, the Group will continue to deploy automation
technologies to reduce its dependency on labour in the coming
years. This strategy, at the same time, is in line with the
development strategy of Shenzhen’s Nanshan District, where
enterprises are encouraged to improve production efficiency and
product quality through adoption of new technologies.

With China tightening control on pollution, the Group has
kept track of the latest regulations and its environmental-
related parameters resulting from business operations. The
Group commits to putting sufficient resources in ensuring that
its environmental performances meet or exceed the statutory
requirements and reducing overall energy consumption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

I= 45

A. Environmental

The Group pledges to make continuous improvement
in managing and monitoring its waste gas, wastewater,
solid waste and noise pollution. Every year, through
engaging external licensed testing laboratories, various
environmental tests are conducted to evaluate the
capability of existing facilities on meeting regulatory and
environmental requirements and national standards based
on the parameters obtained. Starting from 2013, the
Group has also appointed qualified third-party institutions
to verify its greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission, as part of
the commitment to the government’s Emission Trading
Scheme. The flour mill plant in Shekou is audited annually
to ensure that their GHG emission quantification and
reporting meet the requirements set out in the Specification
with Guidance for Quantification and Reporting of the
Organisation’s GHG Emissions (SZDB/Z 69-2012).

Moreover, the ISO 14001 Environmental Management
System has been adopted across the Group's major
operation sites. The system enables that effective and
timely emergency mechanism is in place in case of severe
environmental pollution incidents, as well as keeps track
of the Group’s energy efficiency and emission reduction
targets.

A1. Emissions

The Group strictly abides by the laws, rules and
regulations enforced in relation to environmental
protection and pollution control, including but not
limited to the following:

° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC;

o Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the PRC;

o Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution;

o Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste;

o Regulations on Environmental Protection in
Guangdong Province;

o Regulations on Prevention and Control of

Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste in
Guangdong Province;

o Measures for the Management of Hazardous
Waste Transfer in Shenzhen;

o Environmental Protection Regulations of
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone; and

o Measures for the Management of Municipal

Domestic Waste (Decree No. 157 of the
Ministry of Construction of the PRC).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI HEREBHES

A. Environmental continueq)

32

A1.

Emissions (continued)

In addition to complying with laws and regulations
at national/provincial/city level, the Group
also follows industry standards to monitor its
environmental performances.

For air emissions, the Group is committed to strict
compliance with:

o The Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for
Boilers (DB44/765-2010 and GB 13271-
2014); and

o The Integrated Emission Standard for Air

Pollutants (GB 16297-1996).

For water pollutants, the Group ensures that its
discharge meets:

o The Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants
(DB44/26-2001) in Guangdong Province; and
o The national Integrated Wastewater

Discharge Standard (GB 8978-1996).

For noise pollution, the Group strictly controls
the noise generated from production activities by
complying with:

o the Emission Standard for Industrial
Enterprises Noise at Boundary (GB 12348-
2008).

No cases of material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to air and greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste was recorded during the Reporting Period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
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A. Environmental (continued) A. BE @
A1. Emissions (continued) A1, BEph(#)
A1.1 Air Pollutant Emissions Al1 ZERTRYHR

Liquid petroleum gas (LPG) was used BERHRDAREEE

for canteen operations and oil mist was B MmMBEELAHE &R

generated from canteens. All air-borne BRENFIRBSERE

emissions were strictly monitored by the (Blan - C THESFAERE

Environmental Protection Agency under SEMERERLWH(GBZ/

various standards such as the Determination T160.37-2004) ) BT B K

of Toxic Substances in Workplace Air - REFENHBCETBRIRE

Chloride (GB Z/T 160.37-2004). All sampling P o PR RS %i’ﬂiﬁ

results were within permissible levels set by ERENARTKRFER ©

standards. Stationary fuel sources of LPG and 1[:ESEH%&9E%§—F?LE’9E
natural gas has contributed to the emissions PR OR S B HE710.21
of 10.21 kg of nitrogen oxides (NO,) and 0.05 FrABELY(NO,)K0.05

kg of sulphur oxides (SO). FRMELD(SO,) °

In addition to direct on-site air emissions, MREEETRSARER

the Group is in the process of replacing S AREBEEERE

self-owned fleet of heavy-duty vehicles BERARERFEAE(A
and passenger cars (both petrol and diesel MR YRS|IBREHE)E
engines) to enable they meet the China B UFEEFETEER

V emission standards, which also comply PEERHERZESRE - AR

with the Euro V vehicle emission standards. TN SR PR ER R B BE SR BE I

During the Reporting Period, NO,, SO, and B2 - NREHIE - A F

respiratory suspended particles (“PM") )‘Li?ﬁﬁ)?“ﬂﬂjﬁmﬂﬁ

were emitted from fuel consumption of ~ SO K AR A BR5F R

company vehicles. Vehicles were used for ?(I'PMJ) o RETIRAR

transportation and delivery of products, BWRRXAAER LR
contributing to the emissions of 100.24 kg of 100.24F % NO, » 0.84F

NO,, 0.84 kg of SO, and 4.68 kg of PM. 73S0, K 4.68F FPM o

A1.2 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Al2 BERECEZERE)HH

There were 41,811 tonnes of carbon 73@%&%%3%?;3&5&41,81%&

dioxide equivalent (“tC0O,eq"”) (carbon —StmEE(W -1t

dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide and mEE]) (Z&81thk - B

hydrofluorocarbons) emitted in the Reporting R SRR MEERt

Period, with an overall emission intensity of ¥) o BEEREBEEAS

0.05 tCO,e/tonnes of production volume. MiE20.05M —E{tHE

The GHG reported was from the following o fIREZEERET

activities and scopes: KE DATSE B R &8s

o Direct (scope 1) GHG emissions from o BRI SERE
the fuels for stationary combustion as MEBEELEN
well as for mobile transportation; (1) BERE

BERL S

. Energy Indirect (scope 2) GHG from . BEEENEERE

purchased electricity; and B(EHE2)BER
BHEm &

o Other Indirect (scope 3) GHG from o R B 2N & B i 1S iR
business air travel, freshwater 17 RKEE R EE
processing, and paper waste disposal MR EME
by the Group. (#EE3) BERE

BER o
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A1.

Emissions (continued)

A1.2 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

(continued)

Scope of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

BEREHRERE

A. BE e

Al. BER (&)

Al1.2

Emission Sources

BERORIR

BERE(BERE)HHL
(#&)
GHG Emission
(in tCO.eq)
BERBHERE

(H—FLREE)

Scope 1 Direct emission

BR1EEEN

Combustion of fuels in stationary sources

B TR 2 SRR 5

Combustion of fuels in mobiles sources

Refrigerant &% Bl

Scope 2 Energy indirect emission

BB 28R IR R IK

Purchased electricity B E

Scope 3 Other indirect emission

B3 H th R IR K

Paper waste disposed of at landfills

HIEBEENER

Freshwater and sewage processing

KK R EEKEE

Business air travel B #1 2= = jk

Total GHG emission &

Notes:

- According to the “2019 Organizational

EREHHEE

GHG Verification Report” issued for the
flour mill plant in Shekou, Shenzhen,
approximately 0.15 tCO,eq was
contributed from the usage of ethyne
during 2018. This was not included in the
above GHG table due to its insignificant
amount, and its different temporal scale
measured from the one used in this ESG
report.

Natural Gas KRR
LPG B L BHR
Diesel 4¢5h

Biofuel 4R

Diesel 4¢3k
Petrol 358
LPG RILAHER

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2019

132.46
4.04
2.11
3.63

6.69
146.22
4.08

238.92

40,998.53

62.78

95.54

125.63

41,811

Hiet -

= RERFY®ON
WHBH BN
—hWFASRERE
ERZERE) B
—E-N\EREFERZ
R E£E 0. 150 =
FEREE - BRZ
BFEUETEKR BH
AEFANKEERE
BRINARE - HE

RERREFRAE

WA EET A LR E
REERMEF o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HERERABRES

A. Environmental (ontinued) A. RFBw
A1. Emissions (continued) Al. BER (&)
A1.2 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Al2 BEGE(BERE)HH

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

- EFs were made reference to Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules and their referred
documentation as set out by Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited, unless
stated otherwise.

- EF of 0.54 and 0.59 kg CO,eq/kWh was
adopted for purchased electricity in
Guangzhou and Shenzhen, respectively.
EF of 0.51 kg CO.eq/kWh was adopted for
purchased electricity in Hong Kong. For the
five flour mill plants in various provinces
of the PRC, their corresponding grid EF
was adopted, i.e., 0.71, 0.61, and 0.65 kg
CO,eq/kWh for Shandong, Sichuan, and
Jiangsu province, respectively.

- Emission factor of 0.54 tCO,eq. per tonne
of methanol was assumed for the biofuel
used in the canteen, sourced from the

Methanol Institute.

Hazardous Waste

The Group generated an approximate total
of 10,752kg of hazardous waste with an
intensity of 0.01 kg/tonnes of production
volume in the Reporting Period. Hazardous
wastes generated include pesticide waste,
waste with organic solvent, waste with
mineral oil, waste with dye and coating,
copper, selenium and mercury-containing
wastes and other wastes (i.e. waste
containers, capacitors and oil wipes).

MIE(EB)BRLAR | — B NEFFR

(#)
Hiet - (&)

= BREBEFHBEN - HER
BRESEREBRS
RESERERAT L
HRBIK 2T RES
EXH o

= REM R R i E 5B
ERANFEREE D
BAEESTRKOS
R059F % - RES
2 BB ER AR ER
FEETREH0STT
W MIURTBEZE
KR EZER RS
HHRAEEENRHSE
WMPEHRES - Bl
R TIRI&HED
BEESTRE071
0.61%0.65F 3%

= REEFRAZEY
BB B FER
FT) » BB SN R
ZHBREEAEETR
B50.54F 3% o

BEERY

AEBERFEREEELE
HI07TR2TREEREZE
¥ BMEAEMESRO0.01
TR -FiIEENEERESR
YMBEEEEEEY - 88
HWABIWERY - SEY
SHIVERY) c SRR KRE
RHEEEY - SRR
BEEYREMmEZY (A
BERE ESRBREH
) e
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A. Environmental (ontinued) A. BiE =)
A1. Emissions (continued) A1, BEpk(#&)
A1.3 Hazardous Waste (continued) Al1.3 BEEEY(E)
Hazardous Waste generated in 2018/19 R2018/M19FEENEE
BEEY
Waste
Generated
(in kg)
Type of Waste FELEEYE
By R (F%)
Pesticide waste (from treatment within the factory premises) 5,309
BHEEZY(REIRSHEANERE)
Waste with organic solvent 630
EEHRBBEINEEY
Waste with mineral oil 543
SR ENEEY
Waste with dye and coating 199
EFRRRBRNEEY
Copper-containing waste 3
SEEEY
Selenium-containing waste 33
BWEERY
Mercury-containing waste (from waste lighting products) 324
BREERY(REBEXBAER)
Other waste listed on the National Inventory of Hazardous Wastes 3,711
ZI(EREHBEY L&) NEMEREY
Total 10,752
Bt
A1.4 Non-hazardous Waste Al4 BEEEY
The Group generated an approximate total AEBRBENBRESE
of 667,098 kg of non-hazardous waste with #667,098 T R EEREE
an intensity of 0.76 kg/tonnes of production Y REAEMES0.76
volume in the Reporting Period. Non- TR e fTEEMNEEZTESE
hazardous wastes generated comprised of MEEEHE - fk -2
commercial, paper, plastic, metal waste, B eBEEY - BTER
sludge and other wastes. Other wastes HEEEY) - HtEEY
included sampling and liquid wastes from BEEBRREBEERD
manufacturing plants. TREBEEEY) o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

BiE HERERHEESE
A. Environmental (ontinveq) A. BiE =)
PR ()

A1. Emissions (continued) A1l.

A1.4 Non-hazardous Waste (continued) Al4 EZEEY(E)

R2018/19FEELENWESE

Non-hazardous Waste generated in

2018/19 BEY
Waste
Generated
(in kg)
Type of Waste Source of Waste FELRREYE
BEEYER B2 4 3R (TR)
Commercial waste* Tissue paper, food wastes and other daily office wastes 279,030
[GES=E-2/M B EHRRHEHMBERDEEREY
Waste paper Packaging paper boxes, waste documents and magazines 36,150
RE4 BEAS - BEMRIEFS
Waste plastic Waste woven bags and plastic bottles 90,978
BB H BEREHRRERMR
Scrap metal Waste metal containers, equipment parts and accessories 32,360
BELE BESERS - REDPEREMY
Sludge Sludge from on-site discharge pre-treatment facilities 174,990
bep 3 BB RERENITR
Others Old furniture, scraps, sampling and liquid wastes from 53,590
Hity production plants, and organic wastes such as leaves
and weeds
EGE BAH BEoRRBLEEROREERY  UR
BERMESHERERY
Total 667,098
met
*Remarks: T -

REABRENRAPRLEZT
Az AEBTC R
MBI BUERBERAE
BEHAFHE-BNSER
MARBEZRERY  BDIRZ=-F
—NFE+-—Axmmz—RH%
HE HBBELRARARSE
HRIEE R I -

In an attempt to maximize the space available
for storage within our office building, the Group
has taken the necessary actions to remove the
extra office waste previously stored at its second
floor within the Reporting Period. This was a one-
off project completed in November 2018 which
explains the increase in the volume of commercial
waste for treatment within the Reporting Period as
stated above.
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A. Environmental continueq)

A1. Emissions (continued)

38

A1.5 Measures to Mitigate Emissions

Al.6

To reduce air emissions from mobile fuel
combustions, the home care products
plant has upgraded all its forklift trucks to
be electricity-driven. To reduce direct air
emissions from production lines, a natural
gas-fueled boiler with high efficiency and
lower NO, emissions was purchased for use
in the edible oil plant in Shekou during this
Reporting Period.

To reduce emissions from cooling systems, all
new cooling systems are required to achieve
a coefficient of performance (COP) of 3.6 or
higher.

Wastes Reduction and Initiatives

To prevent potential harm to human health
through contamination of soil, air and water
resources, the Group is committed to ensuring
proper and immediate treatment of hazardous
waste and waste that requires strict control,
by engaging qualified companies for collection
and further handling.

Centralized waste collection, storage,
transfer facilities for on-site solid waste
are available in accordance with national
standards to maximize recycling rates.
Licensed companies are engaged to
collect wastes (such as PET bottles, soap
and used bleach earth from the edible oil
manufacturing plants) for recycling purposes
and proper disposal to landfills.

To reduce paper waste, the Group
encourages the staff to think before printing
and to use recycled paper whenever possible.
Furthermore, electronic communication is
encouraged to achieve a paperless office.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2019

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

A. RFBw
Al. BER (&)
Al5 BB

A1.6

BELBERRREE
ERRRBER - REEE
RmMESEREXEH
RMBENEE - BEDE
ESNBEEARHENR R
BREBE BASHEK
NOXHE B BE B9 K AR 48
18 HEONRAHKE
18

BRLRANAZRIBEN
FEFARANRGELEE
B3R FESHNMEERE
(COP) °

HEREEE

ABAZSRNEL - =
RRKERBEFEARRE
B AEEEBEESE
BROARABRERE-—FE
HEY  BORREERE
%&%Eﬁﬁ?ﬂ%@%
BUREREEFERE

RIBERFE  RNEER
BREPEYVRE - #EK

BB R R R 5 E 88
BYRBERFAEWE -
AEBZBFBRARRE
B (HImBERMm - BB
ERBRAMBHE AR
BX)UETERRRZE
RIRRHMEE o

ARLERRE  KEH
SEEIRTHZAIB=
BE  WEAKEABE
oo b HEETERE
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RE  #HERERBRES

A. Environmental (continueq) A. BiE &
A1. Emissions (continued) A1, HER(#E)
A1.6 Wastes Reduction and Initiatives (continued) Al1.6 HEREEKE(E)

During the Reporting Period, the home care RB|EEE > XEEER

products plant has specifically established o R P 4 E LA T 223

the following initiatives to reduce waste DEYIESE

generation:

(i) The plant establishes the “Waste 0 IMmEY[EYE
Management Procedure” and sets up BREFIVELS
various recycling stations, to facilitate EE s - SR
better classification of waste for HENMETEYD
storage and disposal; BUBERERE

=

(i) The plant generates economic benefits (i) ITHRBERKESE
from non-hazardous waste, by Y] & F R A = Uk
selling them to recognized recycling NE RHEEBSK
companies. TEFZS o

A2. Use of Resources A2. EBEREA
A2.1 Energy Consumption A2.1 BEIREF#E

The table below shows the energy TRIREAXEBES

consumption, energy intensity in terms of the (T EE W)t EWER

Group's production volume (in kWh/tonne). HEREREE -

Energy Consumption 2018/19 2018/19FE M EEIRH #E

Energy
Intensity
Indirect (kWh/tonnes
Consumption  of production
Direct (in kWh) volume)
Resources Consumption RAHEEE BRI E
&R HIEHE (TERE) (TRE HEE)
Natural gas (stationary combustion) 51,882 m? 512,702 0.58
AAR(BERRE) 51,8823 7K
Diesel (stationary combustion) 806 L 8,059 0.01
S5 (B E R L) 8067
Petrol (stationary combustion) 188 L 1,666 0.002
B ORERBLRE) 1887t
LPG (stationary combustion) 1,340 kg 18,678 0.02
RAL A RR (EERRE) 1,340F %=
Petrol (mobile combustion) 54,245 L 480,700 0.55
FHORERBLRER) 54,245F
Diesel (mobile combustion) 2,419 L 24,186 0.03
Sl ORERBIRE) 2,419F
LPG (mobile combustion) 2,430 kg 33,871 0.04
BALAAR ORERBHRE) 2,430F %=
Electricity 63,958,998 kWh N/A 72.72
B 63,958,998 F LB TiE A
MIE(EE)BERAA | ZF—NFFWm 39
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A2.

Use of Resources (continued)

A2.2 Water Consumption

Water consumed by its Hong Kong's
operations was supplied by Hong Kong's
Water Supplies Department, and was
sourced from municipal water supply system
in Mainland China. There was no issue
identified in sourcing water that was fit for
purpose. The plants have water tanks in place
to store water for emergency use.

The Group consumed 153,871 m? of
freshwater, with a water intensity of 0.17 m3/
tonne of production volume.

Wastewater treatment

All discharges from production and domestic
activities are pre-treated on-site through
regularly maintained grease trap and septic
tanks before entering the sewage collection
system into nearby wastewater treatment
facility. The home care products plant has
specifically upgraded its sewage treatment
stations, and the COD (chemical oxygen
demand) indicator is now strictly controlled
within 90 mg/L, meeting the first-class
discharge standard of Guangzhou, PRC.
The treated water is directly discharged into
the Pearl River Basin. The flour mill plants
did not generate industrial waste water.
The production of edible oil plant in Hong
Kong was insignificant and generated little
wastewater. The edible oil plant in Shekou
performs regular wastewater testing and the
sampling results of COD, pH, total suspended
solids (TSS), and oil and grease were all within
permissible level set by the Discharge Limits
of Water Pollutants (DB44/26-2001).

A.

IRIE )

A2. BRFERE)

A2.2
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FEK

BEBEERKBEBKE
EBiRME UHBEHEKX
FER KR L - FEER
BEENKREFEILEEE
BRE o £EERTEB KA
UREKEBRZRE -

REBEHFE153,871 A
KKK - FKIRE BTN
BEE0173 5K o

K EEHE

SERRETHTNME
BB E A EN
Rt kb EMETIREG
FERE > REBBEANTK
It 5= 22 45 HE HE BT 3R A9 EE K
BEEXE XEEEAM
BB Y Tk EIB L
THEZ BB COD({LE
EEE)EERKEHR
BHOZETURA » EE|F
Bl & M B — R HE A 2E o
BREBNEKEEHEAL
SLfE o B MR MR E A
TEREEK - BEBRABK
HNESEMTEE &7
WMEAREK - OMNE A
JE R E HRE AT RE ORI,
W ECOD * pH + AT E
BEB(TSS) RmMEM RS R
BT E Y BERRE)
(DB44/26-2001)38 E M 7t
FKFER o
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A. Environmental continueq)

A2.

Use of Resources (continued)

A2.3 Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

To reduce its dependency on fossil fuels
and address climate change, the Group has
engaged a Solar Photovoltaic (PV) contractor
in May 2019, and joined the Renewable
Energy Feed-in Tariff organized by CLP for
installation of solar renewable energy device
on its Hong Kong Lam Soon Building in Tai
Po for connection to CLP electricity grid.
The installation and connection works are
targeted to be completed by the end of 2019.
The expected generation capacity of the
system will be 200 kW (Energy to Grid).

The warehouse in Hong Kong has replaced
T8 lights with LED lighting during the first
quarter of 2019. The total number of tubes
were reduced from 704 to 272, resulting in
a drastic drop in electricity consumption by
84%.

For the edible oil plant in Shekou, a new
natural gas boiler, with a fully automatic
condensing system for energy-saving,
was purchased. Designed with an energy
efficiency up to 94%, the new boiler has
completed the pilot test and passed a full
set of testings set by Shenzhen Institute of
Special Equipment Inspection and Test.

A.

IRIE )
A2. BRFERE)
A2.3 BHMEFBERERE

MIE(FEB)ERAR | T - NFFHR

AR BRI B RE
W RREL  KAEE
RZB-AERTAZEK
BBEERR(PV)EABR » I
PN R E AR A T B A R
BEREE > UWEEMR
REHEBREIEAERHE
K EER B A BERRE -
AUBEPEER - 2%
REEIREERE_Z
—NEFRATK ° ZFE
SHFEHBES K 5200
FTR(LHEEE) ©

EBAENR2019FE—=
EE ALEDREBAEA TSR
BB - BEEBKT04R
WMAZE2721R > BHASE
ESBITES4% °

FMEONRA MRS -
BA-EHRARBIE
ZMEEEHREEZEHR
BRG o HAMEHREN
BiE%  ERTRAE
TRIH > WEBBRYIT
BHERBRERBHAER
B2 ERR o
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A. Environmental continueq)

42

A2.

Use of Resources (continued)

A2.4 Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

The Group persistently reduces water loss
by maintaining and upgrading its water
supply pipeline system, minimizes water
consumption through upgrading water-
saving devices and reuses wastewater
whenever possible. Some water-saving
initiatives include:

(i) Using recirculating cooling water
system for cooling towers;
(i) Installing automatic faucets;

(i) Adopting reverse osmosis to purify
wastewater for toilet flushing and
greening of production area;

(iv) Establishing regulations on water
management to regulate water
consumption practices of employees;
and

(v) Posting promotional materials and
reminders to encourage water
conservation practices.

The home care products plant also has
formulated Regulations on Water Use
Management during the Reporting Period
to regulate the rational use of water and
promote the conservation of water resources.
In addition, the Administration Department
of the Group is expediting the replacement
of old water dispensers to reduce the
consumption of bottled water.
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A. Environmental continueq)

A2.

Use of Resources (continued)

A2.5 Packaging Materials

Packaging materials consumed by the Group
were mainly recyclable materials including
plastic, cotton bags and paper. Packaging
materials were sourced from external
suppliers, with constant check on quality,
particularly on their safety and hygiene
performances. During the Reporting Period,
a total of 16,539.32 tonnes of packaging
materials have been consumed for the
protection of finished products.

The Group has been proactively exploring
ways to reduce the use of packaging
materials and promoting products with
replaceable packaging to reduce the
consumption of plastic pumps. During the
Reporting Period, various production lines
have reduced the use of non-recyclable
resources for packaging. In particular, the
flour mill plants have implemented the
following practices:

o Make use of recyclable materials for
packaging materials;

o Reduce the consumption of packaging
materials by bulk delivery;

o Re-use packaging materials to achieve

zero packaging waste; and

o Evaluate packaging suppliers annually
for compliance assurance.

The edible oil plant in Hong Kong has
implemented the following practices:

3 Light packaging has been applied for
bulk transportation;

3 Various reusing and recycling
methods have been applied to non-
food packaging materials, such as re-
using as turnover box, or recycling by
recognized handlers; and

A.

IRIE )

A2. ERERE)

A2.5

MIE(FEB)ERAR | T - NFFHR

BEME

TEBHEENBEMRE
ERTEWME - BIFE
B mRRKE - BEM
BT BN IR FERS - B
TEETEHEREE 15
BREAZEREETE
FRE - RI|EEE -
EMABERRERLER
16,539.32MA LM HL o

AEE-HEREEBSEREZE
WO ERBEMRIER
ERERNERURD
HEBHR RHREH
B ZHREERBDER
TaERERRESE -
RER  EHRCEREN
T

. #% 7 B Wt K AR A
BEMH

. BB RRARED
BRI BHUHAE |

. BEAGEME
LERZEER
B K

. BEMEBEME
B RE RN -

Fi8 08 AMEE BIEL
T i816 -

. RAKBEFERE
B

. EHFRMBEM
HERAZBEER
RAEBREELE
PlaER AEHEE
BEANHERTE
B ABETE R
A&
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w2 3 PETIN
RE  HERELGHRES
A. Environmental (continued A. REF @
A2. Use of Resources (continued) A2. ERERE)
A2.5 Packaging Materials (continued) A2.5 BEHMF(E)
The edible oil plant in Hong Kong has BEBNRRAMBE BN

implemented the following practices:

(continued)

o Evaluate packaging suppliers annually
for compliance assurance.

In addition, the edible oil plants in both Hong
Kong and Shekou replaced polyvinyl chloride
(PVC) based labelling materials with those
made of polyethylene terephthalate (PET).

Packaging Material
2018/19

s Consumption

T - (&)

. BEILBEME
B RE RN -
o EBREANER
HBEIUBHE—REKR S
“ERPENREUBREZH
(PVO)EERREAEL

2018/19F B E MR
b=

Consumption

(in tonnes)
Type of Material Material HEE
MRHER ot (W)
Cotton Cotton bags 683.46
ki e
Plastic Plastic bags, bottles, handles, caps and pumps 8,060.52
#ZH BRK BT EF EFRR
Paper Paper bags, boxes, labels and cardboards 6,086.72
Metal Metal containers 1,699.16
£ | EERE
Fiber and cotton Packet lines 9.46
BERBA NER
Total 16,539.32
et
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BRI HEREGHRES

A. Environmental continueq)

A3.

The Environment and Natural Resources

A3.1 Significant Impacts of Activities on the
Environment

The Group continuously monitors its air
emission, wastewater discharge, and noise
level to ensure minimal impacts on the
surrounding environment and creation
of a healthy environment for its workers.
Regular maintenance of machines and
equipment is enforced to prevent excessive
noise generation. The Group did not receive
any complaints from the surrounding
communities regarding air pollution, odor,
noise, or night light pollution.

MIE(EE)ERRAA | —F—

A. BiE e

A3.

NFF R

BERRARER

A3.1

EEHREHNEATE

rEEBEEREERH
o BEAREER R IEE K
o UBRREEEREN
FEREHR/N MAET
ABERERIRE o Bl
HMBREREETTHE
EOLUBEEEBZHR
F o AEELEWKEEE
ﬁE@F EREHE R
Ik~ REHREBEFTENE
ﬂhﬁ°
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  #HERERBRES

Employment and Labour Practices

B1.

Employment

Employees are deemed the most important
resource of the Group. The Group
provides competitive remuneration with
various benefits to attract and retain
talents. Employment package is regularly
reviewed with consideration of the market
trend, benchmarking the industry’s salary
and benefit information through salary
survey reports conducted by professional
consultants. Annual salary increment and
year-end performance bonus mechanism
have been incorporated in the Group’s
remuneration policy. Share options are also
granted to the Group’s Managing Director
and other eligible employees in recognition of
their contributions.

Employees in the PRC are entitled to year-
end bonus, social security insurance and
housing fund. Year-end bonus, life and
health insurance are provided to employees
in Hong Kong. Additionally, staff sale,
meals and transportation are provided to
employees. Fair terms on working hours,
holidays, termination of contract, fringe
benefits and leave entitlement are stipulated
in the employment contracts signed between
employees and the Group. Overtime
work shall be applied through submission
of application forms and approved by
departmental supervisors. Any disputes will
be settled according to the Group’s appeal
procedures in an equitable and prompt
manner.
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B. Social (continued)

1.

Employment and Labour Practices
(continued)

B1.

Employment (continued)

The Group is in compliance with all applicable
laws of Hong Kong and the PRC regarding
labour rights and employment, included but
not limited to:

o The Employment Ordinance of the
Laws of Hong Kong;

o The Minimum Wage Ordinance of the
Laws of Hong Kong;

o The Employees’ Compensation

Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong;
. The Labour Law of the PRC;

. The Labour Contract Law of the PRC;
and
. The Social Insurance Law of the PRC.

No non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare had been
identified during the Reporting Period.
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B. Social (continued)

1. Employment and Labour Practices
(continued)

B1.

Employment (continued)

The Group had a total of 1,681 employees,
as of 30 June 2019, of which all are full-time
employees. The total workforce categorized
by gender, age group and geographical
region are shown below.

Total Workforce (%) by Gender
ZHERI 82 BV S B D B E(%)

Female
z
44%

48

St
56%

Male 26%355%

18 & 255%
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Total Workforce (%) by Age
RFEWREI DS B HEB(%)

36-45
3624555
40%

46-55
46ZE555%
19%

56 and above
1625 S6E R b
3%

4%

Total Workforce (%) by Geographical Region
it & 8 5 W 55 B D AR B(%)

Hong Kong
i
12%

Macau
BPY
1%

Mainland China
P B K R
87%
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B. SOCiaI (continued)

1.

Employment and Labour Practices
(continued)

B1.

Employment (continued)
Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees
in respect of recruitment, training and
development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. The employees
are not discriminated against or deprived of
such opportunities on the basis of gender,
ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual
orientation, age, marital status, family status,
retirement, disability, pregnancy or any other
discrimination prohibited by applicable laws
of Hong Kong and the PRC.

Appraisal System

The Group has a standardized appraisal
system to evaluate employees’ performances,
assess their capabilities and determine
whether they are in line with the Group’s
business development. It also provides a
basis for promotion, salary increase and a
communication platform for employees and
management to set mutually agreed and
measurable performance standards, as well as
career development opportunities.
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1.

Employment and Labour Practices
(continued)

B1.

Employment (continued)
Employee Communication

Employees are always kept informed of
the Group’s key projects, future directions
and latest market strategies, activities
and social events in the industry through
notice boards, intranet, meetings, annual
conferences and the internal e-newsletter,
namely E Post. During the Reporting Period,
the Group has organized group meetings,
workshops, annual dinner, travel tours
to various provinces of China and other
activities to enhance employees’ sense of
belonging. Some activities organised during
the Reporting Period include:

. Lam Soon Annual Conference (19 — 20
July 2018);

o The 4th Congress and Team-building
Activity in Eastern China (24 - 25
January 2019);

o Huangshan two days tour for the flour
mill plant in Jintan (16 — 17 March
2019);

o Zhu Hai Bamboo Forest Day Tour for

the Labour Union of the flour mill
plant in Yixing (23 March 2019);

3 Shunde Day Tour for the Labour Union
of Lam Soon in Shekou (13 April
2019);

o Luo Fu Shan Two Days Tour for

Southern China Qil-Sales Team (13 —
14 April 2019); and

o Health Talk on Acupoints Massage in
Hong Kong (14 June 2019).

1.

= (&)

BERSETERE)

B1.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2019

1E1% (&)

I

ESBE

BEEABEBE TR - A
® T FERAME
F BN (BDE Post) kBT
MAEBMNEZER - K
REBRERNNEH TS
R SEBRAERES o
wEHRE  AMEEEZ
FBR AEECENRE
BEgE® IHFE -FE®
2 ZHREZEBMDNIK
TEREMEER - 3REH
EERNB I EBEILE ¢

. HEFEF®(ZF
—N\EtA+hHB
ZZ-+H);

. FNEERBER
RAEREKER
FE(ZZE—NE
—AZ+HW®mABEZE
—+EA);

. SIETEH R E L
MAE(=ZZ—H
F=ZA+TA~HBZE
+t8);

. HEEHNBRIEN
ME—BE(=ZZ
—E=ZA=+=
H);

. OMmEIEHN
JEE—-—B#E (==
—hEWmA+=
H)

. EZHRAMEER
BwwaEZELmA
B(ZZ—-—h&FMH@
A+=BZ+ @
H): &

. BRNIRERE
BE(ZE-NEF
NATIEA) -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HERERABRES

B. SOCiaI (continued)

1.

Employment and Labour Practices
(continued)

B2.

Employee Health and Safety

The Group strictly complies with all
applicable laws and regulations in relation
to occupational health and safety (OHS),
including but not limited to the Law of
the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases, the Hong Kong
Occupational Safety & Health Ordinance,
and Hong Kong Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance. OHS policy is in place. Pre-
employment health check is required, and
annual or biennial check-ups are offered
to employees based on their employment
categories and nature. End of term check-ups
will be offered to frontline workers in the PRC
to ensure that no OHS-related health issues
were developed during their employment.

Employees exposing to high occupational
health risks are offered with occupational
health checks in accordance with the
statutory requirements and appropriate
personal protective equipment (“PPE"”) is
provided to employees based on their duties
performed. Offices and canteens are assessed
by qualified institutions to ensure that they
meet applicable national standards regarding
indoor environmental pollution control. The
Group also enters into contract with suppliers
to ensure that they meet occupational health
and safety standards while performing their
works.

Noise reduction devices have been installed
on equipment such as exhaust fans, air
compressors and grinders in accordance
with the requirements as specified in the
Environmental Impact Assessment Report
conducted by our appointed agencies.
Acoustic meters have been installed for
all working areas to further improving the
monitoring processes.
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Employment and Labour Practices 1.

(continued)

B3.

Development and Training

With human resources as one of the core
values, the Group believes that strengthening
the capabilities of employees can benefit
both the Group and employees themselves.
Training needs are identified through
appraisal sessions with employees. Thus,
the training provided can effectively address
below objectives:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Facilitate the achievement of the
Group’'s and/or its departmental

Increase productivity in every aspect of
working processes;

Enhance employees’ satisfaction; and

Assist employees’ career development.

The training courses vary from mandatory
training and skill enhancement to the more
advanced supervisory skills and managerial
development, targeted employees of
various levels. During the Reporting
Period, employees have been provided
with both internal and external training
on numerous areas including occupational
health and safety, customer services,
product knowledge, management systems,
communication skills, risk management, data
security and financial budgeting.

Staff are also encouraged to attend
e-learning classes, seminars, team building
activities and knowledge sharing events
to enhance their knowledge and skills.
The Group will provide subsidy or full
reimbursement on the course fees for eligible
staff under the training policy.
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B. SOCiaI (continued)

1. Employment and Labour Practices
(continued)

B4.

Labour Standards

The Human Resources Department continues
to implement comprehensive checking system
during the recruitment process to ensure
compliance with all the applicable laws
regarding employment and labour standards,
such as the Employment Ordinance of the
Laws of Hong Kong and Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the PRC.

The Group will take appropriate disciplinary
action against anyone who is in breach of any
applicable laws, regulations, and ordinance.
No non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to preventing the use of
child and forced labour had been identified
during the Reporting Period.

2. Operating Practices

B5.

Supply Chain Management

The Group’s procurement policy has three
underlying principles on procurement
management:

(i) Buy only what the business operation
needs with speculative behaviour
prohibited;

(i) Source from local suppliers to reduce
transportation cost; and

(i)  Source for high quality and
competitive supplies to meet the
Group’s business strategy.
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2

Operating Practices (continued)

B5.

Supply Chain Management (continued)

The policy states the Group’s procurement
strategy and provides guidelines and
procedures on procurement processes such
as sourcing new suppliers, assessing existing
suppliers, managing suppliers in breach of
the policy, tendering, quality assurance and
payment/refund arrangements. Suppliers
are selected and rated based on a set of
criteria, in terms of product price and
quality, timeliness of delivery, payment
terms, food safety, environmental and social
performance, and after-sales service.

It is essential to engage employees in
maintaining, monitoring and improving the
Group's overall procurement management.
The Group encourages employees to take
proactive, comprehensive and stringent
measures, in the process of procurement,
to avoid unnecessary loss and to ensure
utilization of its resources in accomplishing
the production, supply and sales targets.

The Group considers the quality of raw
materials of paramount importance to ensure
the food safety of final products. The flour
mill plants and the edible oil plant evaluate
their raw material suppliers every six months
for compliance assurance, and collect
suppliers’ activity logs on a regular basis for
quality assurance.
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B. SOCiaI (continued)

2.

Operating Practices (continued)

Bé.

Product Responsibility
Product Labelling and Advertising

The Group has its own labelling control
policy to ensure that both the design of
labels and information shown on labels
are in compliance with all the applicable
standards and laws. Labels are required to be
approved by its Legal Department and Quality
Assurance Department with records filed.
Adequate nutrition information is provided
to customers through product labels. Safety
information has been clearly labelled on
relevant products.

The Group strives to improve public
well-being by promoting healthy
lifestyle. Its “Good Mother” website
(https://www.haomama.com) and Knife
Oil Facebook aim to share resources about
healthy and balanced lifestyle with the
public. Moreover, the Group produces and
shows videos through social media platforms
on which registered dietitians introduce
nutritional values of its products, shares
cooking recipes prepared with nutritious
ingredients and organizes trainings to
promote healthy diets.

For any marketing and promotional activities,
the Group ensures that relevant activities
are in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations such as the Advertisement Law
of the PRC. No false nor misleading contents
shall be contained in any promotional
channels. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not record any cases of material
non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided.
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2 Operating Practices (continued)

Bé6.

Product Responsibility (continued)
Food Safety and Quality

Food safety is of paramount importance to
the Group. Its food safety management starts
with supplier control. Background, permits,
licenses and certificates of suppliers are
checked by the Group to ensure suppliers
have no record in breaching of any food
safety standards and regulations. The
Group reiterates its meticulous selection
process of suppliers and every product must
be tested multiple times to ensure it is of
international food safety standard. The Group
is in compliance with all applicable laws
and standards of Hong Kong and the PRC
regarding food safety and quality such as:

° Food Safety Law of the PRC;

3 National Food Safety Standards for
Food Additive Use; and

o Hong Kong — Part V of the Public
Health and Municpal Services
Ordinance (Cap. 132).

All flour mill plants (excluding the new one in
Yixing which is in the process of application)
and the edible oil plant are certified with ISO
9001 Quality Management System standard,
ISO 22000 Food Safety Management
System standard and other international
accreditation standards on quality and
environmental management. The Group
also fulfills relevant food safety and food
labelling requirements, and accomplished
the standards issued by the World Health
Organisation.
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B. SOCiaI (continued)

2.

Operating Practices (continued)

Bé.

Product Responsibility (continued)
Food Safety and Quality (continued)

To ensure that food materials comply with
food safety and quality standards, tests
are performed against food materials or
related raw materials (including packaging
materials with direct contact with food)
before entering production processes,
semi-products during production and final
products. Testing is done by the Group's
Quality Assurance Department and qualified
testing organizations are engaged to validate
the results and to provide independent
reports. The test results shall meet relevant
national and industrial standards before
proceeding to production or distribution.
Any materials or products that fail to meet
the required standards will be labelled,
isolated and assessed by related departments.
Reasons for defect will be analyzed and
rectifying measures will be implemented by
related departments. The Group also deploys
standard procedures on sanitation of food
plants and associated equipment to maintain
a high hygiene standard throughout the
production. Suppliers of packaging materials
are audited against their safety and hygiene
performances annually. Suppliers must carry
out rectifications if non-conformities have
been identified.

Any reported case regarding product quality
or safety will be investigated and dealt with
promptly and responsibly, putting public
health, safety and benefits on top priority.
Products required to be recalled after
assessments will undergo a process according
to the Group’s product recall policy.
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2

Operating Practices (continued)

Bé.

Product Responsibility (continued)
Customer Communication

The Group values any complaint or feedback
from customers as it does not only allow
the Group to have a better understanding
of customers’ concerns, but also point to
the need for improvement in product and
service quality. The Group also pays special
attention to enquiries regarding health
and safety aspects and tries its best to help
customers better understand its products
and to strengthen customers’ confidence
in its brands. The Group pledges to handle
any enquiry or complaint cases according to
the standard procedure established, provide
prompt response and keep traceable records
of the cases in its system. To ensure that
all complaints are resolved to customers’
satisfaction, complainants would be invited
to rate their level of satisfaction and provide
feedback regarding their complaint cases
after the cases are resolved.

Intellectual Property (“IP”) Rights

The Group strives to protect its own IP rights
and respects third party IP rights according
to all related applicable laws and regulations.
It registers new IPs (including trademarks,
designs and patents) in different parts of the
world, renews existing IP rights, manages the
use of IPs, and keeps track of IP infringement
by other parties. The Group reserves the
right to take legal actions against any alleged
infringement.

The Group also ensures its service providers,
suppliers or business partners undertake
and warrant that all their deliverables or
products are their original creation and/or
do not infringe any third party’s IP rights.
Infringers are liable to specified appropriate
consequences in the event of breach.
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B. SOCiaI (continued)

2.

Operating Practices (continued)

B6.

B7.

Product Responsibility (continued)
Data Protection

The Group strictly follows its policy, manual
and guideline, and procedure on protecting
customer data. Before collecting personal
data from customers, customers are informed
of the purposes of data collection and how
it will be used. Its Legal Department ensures
that the Group is in compliance with the
Personal Data Protection Ordinance of the
Laws of Hong Kong and any applicable laws
in any document, publicity and marketing
activity. Procedures on handling, storing,
transferring and erasing customers’ personal
data collected are reviewed periodically.

Anti-corruption

To ensure ethical business practices, the
Group strictly observes applicable laws,
regulations and regulatory documents related
to commercial bribery, including but not
limited to:

The Criminal Law of the PRC;

o The Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the PRC;

o The Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance;

3 The Hong Kong Theft Ordinance; and

o The Hong Kong Organized and Serious
Crimes Ordinance.
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2

Operating Practices (continued)

B7.

B8.

Anti-corruption (continued)

The Group takes a zero-tolerance approach
to bribery and is committed to operating
its business in an ethical manner with high
integrity. The Group has implemented
policies on anti-corruption and procedures
concerning offering or accepting gifts and
gratuities. Suppliers and all employees are
required to become acquainted with and
to abide by these policies and procedures.
Any fraud, corruption, irregular transactions
or breach of ethics shall be reported to the
Internal Audit Department. Such report, if
any, shall be treated in strict confidence to
protect the identity of the informer.

No non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to corruption, bribery,
fraud and money laundering had been
identified during the Reporting Period.

Community Investment

While formal policies on community
engagement are yet to be established,
the Group continues to put resources and
participate in community activities. The
Group maintained its strong tradition of
supporting various charitable causes during
the Reporting Period.

Overall achievement
Caring Company Scheme — Food Grace

On 21 November 2018, the Group
collaborated with Food Grace a workshop
to teach employees to create hand-made
soap, and to learn the concept of recycling by
turning waste into useful products.

On 20 May 2019, the Group has been
successfully nominated as Caring Company
2018/2019.
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B. SOCiaI (continued)

2.

B. %j: = (&)
Operating Practices (continued) 2. EEEHE)
B8. Community Investment (continued) B8. HERE(E)
Volunteer activities HETEE
Sponsorship of Sowers Action BhEBETE
On 21 October 2018, the Group sponsored N-_EBE—-NEFE+HA=+—
Sowers Action Challenging 12 Hours Charity B AEBEEBE RS
Marathon. TDIBERESUHEER
/NG
Share-To-Care Volunteer Campaign 24 [ EIBEEXTE
During December 2018, the Group has R=FE-—N\E+=A &K
actively engaged in the Share-To-Care EEEBSEBREITE
Volunteer Campaign organized by the BEREEPNEWE &
Agency for Volunteer Service, and donated BRIERTE  LRERM
food and household products. RRXEMAGR -
Voluntary service at Shenzhen West Railway SR b B9 AR 7
Station
On 26 January 2019, the Group's voluntary NZEBE—NE—BZ=+5
service team participated in the voluntary H o 725 B 5 B8 AR 7% B B
service at Shenzhen West Railway Station, 22 105F 31| 78 uh B0 & BE AR
assisting and guiding passengers to board 7%+ 1£ & 57 HA R 5 Bh K B
trains in a safe and orderly manner during the BREZEEFHE LA
Spring Festival. He
Caring for the future generation BIET—K
Visit by Lingnan University’s postgraduate BEHAEBHELBEEE
students at Hong Kong Lam Soon Building FIEAXE
On 26 October 2018, about 70 postgraduate NZEBE—NE+A=Zt+
students, majored in Human Resources H #ERAZEH708EE
Management and Organizational Behavior, Aﬂﬁfﬁ BRABITA
from Lingnan University visited Hong Kong BENMRESEEERIE
Lam Soon Building. The Managing Director RE - REBESHKE
of the Group shared with the students the HEL RS AREBNER
overall business operation of the Group and EBEBEERANDERER
the human resources management strategies KLU R EERIERAIB
and challenges in the business environment. B o
MIE(EE)BERAA | ZF—NFFWm 61
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B. Social (continued)

62

2

Operating Practices (continued)

B8.

Community Investment (continued)

Caring for the future generation
(continued)

Visit by Lingnan University’s postgraduate
students at Hong Kong Lam Soon Building
(continued)

The students also visited the Lam Soon Bakery
Academy. At the academy, the Group's
bakery consultant introduced different
types of flour and relevant research and
development approaches, and taught the
students to make freshly baked pineapple
buns with premix flour, letting them have a
fun baking experience and a taste of the food
they made.

Sponsorship for underprivileged students in
Northern China

Financial subsidy was provided to under-
privileged students in Qingzhou, Shandong
Province in January 2019.

2.
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Sponsorship of Sowers Action Challenging 12 Hours 21 October 2018
Charity Marathon - Official bread 2018 10H21H
BEERE 12 HREUESNN - ASETEE

Visit Hong Kong Lam Soon Building by 26 October 2018
Lingnan University’s undergraduate students 20185 10H26H
EEAEEL SR BEIEAE
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Sponsorship for under-privileged students in January 2019
Northern China 2019 18
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Voluntary service at Shenzhen West Railway Station 26 January 2019
during Spring Festival rush 2019%1H26H
YA HFER RS
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Aged 66, the Chairman of the Company since October 2006
and has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the Chairman
of Board Nomination Committee and a member of Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM", and together with its subsidiaries,
the “Hong Leong Group”), the ultimate holding company of the
Company. He is the Executive Chairman of Guoco Group Limited
("GGL"), a subsidiary of HLCM listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a director of
GGL's key listed subsidiaries and associated companies including
as the Non-executive Chairman of GL Limited (“GL") and a
Director of GuocolLand Limited (“GuocolLand”), both listed
on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, Hong Leong Bank Berhad, listed on the Main Market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”) and Bank of
Chengdu Co., Ltd., listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and has extensive
experience in various business sectors, including but not limited
to finance, investment, manufacturing and real estate. He is the
brother-in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-executive Director of
the Company.

Aged 58, Group Managing Director and Executive Director of the
Company since appointment to the Board in May 2012.

Mr. Leung holds a bachelor degree in Economics and a master
degree in Business Administration (Marketing) from Virginia
Polytechnic Institute and State University, USA.

Mr. Leung has over 30 years of experience in the food and
consumer goods sectors. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Leung worked in several multinational Fortune 500 corporations,
including Sara Lee Corporation, Heinz USA and R. J. Reynolds
Tobacco Company USA. In his previous role, Mr. Leung served
as the General Manager of Sara Lee International’s Household &
Personal Care business in Greater China. During his 20-year tenure
at Sara Lee, Mr. Leung held various leadership positions in both
management and marketing / marketing research and overseeing
a diverse portfolio of brands in the food, apparel, household, and
personal care categories in Asia and the United States of America.

Since December 2014, Mr. Leung has been an adjunct professor
of Henan University of Technology. In February 2017, he was
appointed as a member of the 14th Session of Changzhou
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference.
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Aged 64, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in September 2016.

Mr. Tang is a Director and the President & CEO of GGL. He is also
the Group Managing Director of GL, a Director of GuocolLand
and a Non-executive Director of The Rank Group Plc, listed on
the London Stock Exchange. He held various senior management
positions in different companies within the Hong Leong Group.
Prior to his appointment, he was the President/Finance Director of
HL Management Co Sdn Bhd. He was also a Director of Southern
Steel Berhad (“SSB"”), and the Non-executive Chairman of GLM
REIT Management Sdn Bhd, the manager of Tower Real Estate
Investment Trust (“TOWER REIT”). Both SSB and TOWER REIT are
listed on Bursa Malaysia.

Mr. Tang is @ member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
and has over 40 years of in-depth experience in finance, treasury,
risk management, operations and strategic planning. He possesses
broad-based and C-suite expertise in investment, manufacturing,
financial services, property development, gaming and hospitality
industry.

Aged 75, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984.

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering. He
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Aged 71, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997.

Mr. Tan was a Non-executive Director of GGL from March 2015
to December 2018. Mr. Tan holds a Bachelor of Science first class
honours degree in engineering from University of Surrey and a
Master of Science degree in management from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology. He had previously worked in Geneva
in 1974 with the United Nations Conference on Trade and
Development. He had also served in the Singapore Civil Service as
a Colombo Plan Scholar from 1975 to 1978 before coming to work
in Hong Kong with a financial services company and a major U.S.
bank. Mr. Tan has extensive experience in property investment,
financial and investment management services.
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Aged 70, Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008. He is the
Chairman of Board Audit and Risk Management Committee and a
member of Board Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member of the
HKICPA. Mr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in banking, finance
and investments. He worked for a number of well-known financial
institutions as managing director.

Mr. Lo also holds other directorships in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong including independent non-executive
director, the audit committee chairman and members of the
compensation and nomination committees of Playmates Holdings
Limited; independent non-executive director, audit committee
chairman and member of the remuneration committee of Tristate
Holdings Limited; and independent non-executive director, audit
committee chairman and member of the nomination committee of
Convenience Retail Asia Limited. He retired as independent non-
executive director of The Taiwan Fund, Inc., a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange, in April 2018.

Aged 68, Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in August 2009. He is the
Chairman of Board Remuneration Committee, a member of Board
Audit and Risk Management Committee and Board Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Au holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce and Finance from
The University of Calgary, Canada. Mr. Au has over 30 years
of experience in banking and finance sectors. He worked for a
number of world-wide banks and financial institutions.
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Aged 59, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in November 2013. He is a member of
the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Huang is a practicing solicitor and notary public, and is
currently a managing partner of P. C. Woo & Co., a solicitor’s firm
in Hong Kong. Mr. Huang became a qualified solicitor of Hong
Kong in March 1985 and has over 30 years of post qualification
experience. Mr. Huang graduated with a Bachelor of Laws from
the University of Hong Kong in 1982 and a Master of Education
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2006.

In 2002, the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“The Government of HKSAR") appointed Mr. Huang as
a Justice of the Peace. In July 2018, The Government of HKSAR
awarded him a Silver Bauhinia Star for his public service.

Mr. Huang is a non-executive director of the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC"”) and the chairman of the Standing Committee
on Language Education and Research. Mr. Huang was appointed
by the Chief Executive as Chairman of Council of City University
of Hong Kong for a term of three years with effect from 1
January 2018. He was also appointed as the Executive Committee
Chairman of Investor and Financial Education Council (formerly
known as “Investor Education Centre”), a subsidiary of the SFC in
October 2018. Mr. Huang was appointed as a director of Faithful
Servant Charitable Foundation Limited in August 2019. Mr. Huang
was President of the Law Society of Hong Kong from 2007 to
2009. He also served as a member of the Hospital Authority from
December 2012 to December 2018.

Mr. Huang is an independent non-executive director, the
remuneration committee chairman, the audit committee member
and the nomination committee member of Kidsland International
Holdings Limited.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has adopted
a Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CGP Code”),
which is based on the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 (the “"HKEx Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). The CGP Code is reviewed from time to time
and updated as appropriate to align with the revised provisions
of the HKEx Code. Continuous efforts are made to review and
enhance the Group’s risk management and internal controls and
procedures in light of changes in regulations and developments in
best practices.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the HKEx Code for
the year ended 30 June 2019, except where otherwise stated.

Every director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company and the CGP Code.

Despite non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meetings of the Company, as stipulated by the
HKEx Code. As such, the Company considers that such provisions
are sufficient to meet the intent of the relevant provisions of the
HKEx Code.

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct
governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company during the year, following specific
enquiry by the Company, have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEERREE

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 87.

Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance

During the year, four board meetings and one general meeting
were held. Details of individual attendance of directors at the

RAFEARBIFAHEERH  A2FZE
EERECHNETEESERES

EZE28 RRASRUER

REAFER  HBITMAESESER—RR
RARE - ARESRAFEALFESS SR

board meetings and general meeting during the year are set out in EREFERSG2HEBHNTER
the table below:
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Number of Number of
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Meeting Held Meeting Held
EEEER BRAE
HE R B RS
Name of Director BEENE BITEBRRE BITEBRRY
Chairman: FE:
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai SLI/EE 4/4 1/1
Group Managing Director: EEESAKE .
Mr. Joseph LEUNG REEEE 4/4 11
Non-Executive Directors: FEHITES :
Mr. TANG Hong Cheong WES KL 4/4 1/1
Dr. WHANG Sun Tze BELEEL 4/4 1/1
Mr. TAN Lim Heng R ik BB & A 4/4 11
Mr. TSANG Cho Tai BHERLE 2/2 (Note)(Hit) 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: B IEHITES :
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERUBSLE 4/4 1/1
Mr. AU Chee Ming EEEEE 4/4 11
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson mRALE 4/4 VAl
Note: Mr. TSANG Cho Tai (“Mr. Tsang”) retired as a Non-executive Mt BEFEEETEEEDR=Z—N\F+—A8

Director after the conclusion of 2018 annual general meeting held
on 13 November 2018 (“2018 AGM"). Two Board meetings were
held during the period from 1 July 2018 up to the conclusion of
2018 AGM (date of retirement of Mr. Tsang.)

TZHEETHN=ZE-NEFRRBAFES (=
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Operations of the Board

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad strategies,
monitors and controls operating and financial performance and
sets appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. Decisions involving financial statements,
dividend policy, material contracts and major investments and
divestments are reviewed and subject to approval by the Board.
Other main roles of the Board are to review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and to ensure
that adequate risk management and internal control systems and
management information systems are in place, including being
in compliance with every aspect of the provisions of applicable
laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to create value
for its shareholders and to ensure that the Company has adequate
management to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s businesses to management of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Where appropriate, decisions are also taken by way of circulated
resolutions.

Board papers are circulated prior to board meetings on a timely
manner, which include, among others, financial and corporate
information, significant operational and corporate issues and
business performance of the Group as well as management
proposals which require the approval of the Board.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary and internal auditors, and upon reasonable request,
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, if any.

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"”) for the year
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at the date
of this report, the Company considers that the INEDs continue to
be independent.

Relationship among the Members of the Board
The family relationships among the members of the Board are

disclosed under “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 65 to 68 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Programme

Pursuant to the HKEx Code which took effect on 1 April 2012,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place a training and development
programme for directors which includes (i) induction/
familiarisation programme for newly appointed directors; and (ii)
on-going training and professional development programme for
directors.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, all directors of the Company
namely, Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai, Joseph LEUNG, TANG Hong
Cheong, WHANG Sun Tze, TAN Lim Heng, TSANG Cho Tai (retired
on 13 November 2018), LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, AU Chee Ming and
HUANG Lester Garson, received regular briefings and updates on
the Group's business, operations, risk management and corporate
governance matters. Materials on new or changes to salient laws
and regulations, environmental, social and governance matters
applicable to the Group were provided to the directors. They also
attended regulatory update sessions and seminars on relevant
topics. All directors are requested to provide the Company with
their respective training record pursuant to the CGP Code.

The roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director (“GMD") are
segregated and are not held by the same person. Currently Mr.
KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman and Mr. Joseph LEUNG is the GMD
of the Company.

The Chairman leads the Board and ensures its smooth and
effective functioning. The GMD s responsible for the vision and
strategic direction of the Group, implementing the policies and
decisions of the Board, initiating business ideas and corporate
strategies to create competitive edge and enhancing shareholder
wealth, setting the benchmark and targets for operating
companies, overseeing the day-to-day operations and tracking
compliance and business progress.
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The non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company and the CGP Code.

During the year, three board committees, namely, the Board
Remuneration Committee, the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board Nomination Committee were in place
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the CGP Code.

The three board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference, approved by the Board, which
set out the Committees’ major duties. The terms of reference
now being posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, are available to shareholders.

The majority of the members of each board committee are INEDs.
The list of the chairman and members of each board committee is
set out in the following board committee section.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC")

The Company established the BRC on 1 July 2005 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and functions of the BRC are to make
recommendations to the Board on its policy and structure for
the remuneration of directors and senior management, as
well as to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment. Detailed terms of reference of the BRC are accessible
on the Company’s website.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC") (continued)

The BRC has adopted the approach under code provision B.1.2(c)(i)
of the HKEx Code to determine, with delegated responsibility
and authorisation by the Board, the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

For the year, the BRC comprised Messrs. AU Chee Ming (Chairman
of the BRC), KWEK Leng Hai and HUANG Lester Garson. Mr.
AU Chee Ming and Mr. HUANG Lester Garson are INEDs of the
Company whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the
Company.

During the year, two BRC meetings were held. The individual
attendance of each member was as follows:

EEZES
EEeyMEEae((EEeMZEE]) (&)

ETEMEESCRESESRTRERESD K
B PP RIEB. 1. 2()(i) R <F AMERCET BB 2 75
* u#EﬂE}DJJ#}l/_E%&m%&AIE}\EZ%ﬁ
B 1Fa o
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RAFER  HBTMRESSHES SR -
BRIKERFE ZBEREIMT

Number of

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting Held

HERE

Name of Director EENS BTEBERY

Mr. AU Chee Ming (Chairman) BB LEE (EE) 2/2

Mr. KWEK Leng Hai L/ ELE 2/2

Mr. HUANG Lester Garson EEALE 2/2

Work done for the financial year 2018/2019 K2018/2019F B Z T 1E
= reviewed and recommended directors’ fees for non- = BBt ZE-NFEEZFHTE
executive directors for the financial year 2017/2018; ErHREHNEEEEHERRAT 0 U
AR R

- approved the discretionary bonuses for executive directors
and senior management for the financial year 2017/2018;

- reviewed the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management;

- reviewed the Employee’s Share Option Scheme;

- reviewed its terms of reference and remuneration policy for
directors and senior management; and

- deliberated the statement relating to the BRC for inclusion
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC") (continued)
Level and Make-up of Remuneration

The Group’s remuneration scheme for executive directors and
senior management is linked to performance, service seniority,
experience and scope of responsibility and is based on the
provisions in the Group’s Human Resources Manual, which are
reviewed from time to time to align with market/industry practices.

The level of remuneration of non-executive directors reflects the
level of responsibilities undertaken by them.

The fees of directors, including non-executive directors, are
recommended and endorsed by the Board for shareholders’
approval at the Company’s annual general meeting.

Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 30
June 2019 are provided in note 9 to the Financial Statements in
this annual report.

Board Nomination Committee (“BNC")

The Company established the BNC on 1 April 2012 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirement
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role of the BNC is to make recommendations to the
Board on the structure, size and composition of the Board, to
review the independence of INEDs, the suitability of directors who
will stand for re-election and directors’ continuous training and
development programme, to formulate, review and implement
a policy for the nomination of directors (including nomination
procedures) and to formulate a policy concerning board diversity,
monitor the implementation of such policy and to review the same,
as appropriate. Detailed terms of reference of the BNC is accessible
on the Company’s website and HKEx's website.

The BNC comprised Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the
BNC), LO Kai Yiu, Anthony and AU Chee Ming. Mr. LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony and Mr. AU Chee Ming are INEDs of the Company whilst
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)

During the year, one BNC meeting was held. The BNC had also
met after the financial year end to discuss/review the Company’s
matters for the year ended 30 June 2019. The individual
attendance of each member is as follows:

EEZES
EESREZEZEES((EBRREES]) (H)

REAFER  HBET-AREZEETEZ 1R
BEREEYNAVRFERTERETSRL
W BRARARBE_E-AFAA=ZTHL
FEZEH - HAKELFEZFEREAINOT :

Number of

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting Held

HERE,

Name of Director EEHA BITEBRE
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman) BB EE(EE) 1”1
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERUBEE 1”7
Mr. AU Chee Ming B k% 171

Work done during the year

- reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity and
gender of the Board (including the mix of skills, knowledge,
experience, competences of directors, and the balance
between executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) annually;

- reviewed and accessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors of the Company;

- reviewed the profile of and participation in the Company’s
affairs of the directors who stood for re-election at annual
general meeting;

- reviewed the continuous training and development
programmes undertaken by directors to ensure that an
appropriate program is in place;

- reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and reviewed and
updated the terms of reference of the BNC;

- formulated, reviewed and implemented a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”); and

- deliberated the statement relating to BNC for inclusion in
the Corporate Governance Report.
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Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy pursuant
to which the Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Company maintains that selection of candidates for Board
appointments will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service and the ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

The BNC reviews annually the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its
effectiveness and application.

Nomination Policy

During the year, the Board resolved to adopt the Nomination
Policy which serves as a guiding mechanism and framework for the
BNC on the process for new appointments and re-appointments
of directors, Group Managing Director and board committee
members and their annual assessment.

The BNC will review annually the Nomination Policy to ensure its
effectiveness and application and will update, amend and modify
as appropriate to ensure it continues to be relevant to needs of
the Company and is consistent with regulatory and corporate
governance requirements.

The Nomination Policy is accessible on the Company’s website.

ExgREZEEe((RBEES @)
EEgzTl

ARBEHEMESES TLBE  BUAQT
REAREMNESEZ T LERARRRERS
HHERE -  AREARNBEESSREARKZ
B—RIZ gl  BRERRRER - F
B NILRHEBEES Bk BXER K
B ARMEFE  MEKRESERZREA
BRESETRZIERER -

BEEERSERNESE S TLBEUBE
HA MRS B -

RERE

REAFER  ESSRERMREEHRE  HB
REZESGETHERHRER  UEEHZE
EREHNZLES SEESRAKERESRZR
EERERHFENGEE -

REZEERSFRIRBBRUBREANR
HREUER  WAETEEEHN  ETRE
B UEREEBDSAAAFTEANSEE
RIEHEERRTE o

REBKANARBHUEER -

MIE(FEB)ERAR | T NFFHR



Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
(“BARMC")

The Company established the Board Audit Committee on 29
December 1998 with specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. On 17 February 2016, the
Board has resolved to rename the Committee as Board Audit and
Risk Management Committee ("BARMC").

The BARMC oversees the financial reporting process and assesses
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s system of
risk management and internal control. The BARMC meets with
the Company’s external and internal auditors, and reviews their
audit plans, the internal audit programmes, the results of their
examinations as well as their evaluations of the system of risk
management and internal control. It also reviews directors’
interests in contracts and connected transactions. The BARMC
reviews the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements and
the auditors’ report thereon and submits its views to the Board.
Detailed terms of reference of the BARMC are accessible on the
Company’s website.

For the year, the BARMC comprised Messrs. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony
(Chairman of the BARMC), TSANG Cho Tai (retired after the
conclusion of 2018 AGM), AU Chee Ming (appointed as member
of the BARMC with effect from the conclusion of 2018 AGM) and
HUANG Lester Garson. Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, Mr. AU Chee
Ming and Mr. HUANG Lester Garson are INEDs of the Company
whilst Mr. TSANG Cho Tai was the non-executive director of the
Company.

During the year, five BARMC meetings were held. The individual
attendance of each member was as follows:
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Number of

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting Held

HERE

Name of Director EEHA BITEBRNRE
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Chairman) BRUBEE(EFE) 5/5
Mr. AU Chee Ming ERBALE 3/3
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson EEMEE 5/5
Mr. TSANG Cho Tai BHEREE 2/2
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Board Committees (continued)

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC") (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the BARMC
during the year:

- reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of internal control and enterprise risk management;

- reviewed the consolidated financial statements and results
of the Group;

- reviewed the external auditors’ report thereon;

- reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting
policies;

- reviewed at various times the potential impact of the
generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong on
the Company’s accounts;

- reviewed the nature and scope of external audit and
approved the external audit fee;

- reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experiences of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes;
and

- reviewed connected transactions entered into by the Group
or subsisting during the year.

Directors’ Responsibilities for
Preparing the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the year.
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 103 to 109 of this
annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration for the year is set out in note 7 to the
financial statements on page 168.
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The risk management and internal control system is designed to
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its business
activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
risk management and internal controls, has developed a set of
Enterprise Risk Management framework (“ERM framework”) for
the Group and set forth in its policy and procedures to assist in:

- identifying the enterprise risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

- developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

- monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy
of such measures.

The ERM framework consists of interactive processes for each of
our business units to constantly identify and access risks in terms of
their potential impact and probability of occurrence, as well as to
establish and implement relevant procedures and internal controls
for risk mitigation, ongoing monitoring and periodic reporting by
management to ensure that residual risks after taking into account
risk mitigating measures fall within the risk appetite and tolerance
set by the Board.

The Board has entrusted the BARMC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the ERM framework of the Group.
In discharging this responsibility, the BARMC, assisted by the
Group Internal Audit Department (“GIAD"):

- ensures that new and emerging enterprise risks are
promptly identified by management;

- assesses the adequacy of action plans and control systems
developed to manage these risks;

- monitors the implementation of the action plans and the
effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems; and

- ensures the Group's risk register is up-to-date and risk
profile reports are furnished by management to the BARMC
review.
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These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BARMC to ensure their effectiveness,
supplemented by the other reports from GIAD on the Group’s
internal control and risk management findings.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. These controls provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or against
financial losses and fraud.

The Board, through the BARMC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s risk management and internal control system and
considers that it is adequate and effective covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. The Board is satisfied that the Group has fully complied
with the provisions on risk management and internal controls as
set out in the CGP Code.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has established and implemented relevant
procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, including restricting employee
access to inside information on a need-to-know basis and ensuring
that those who need to know understand the obligation of
keeping the information confidential. All inside information is
disclosed to the public pursuant to the requirements under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules and kept
strictly confidential before disclosure.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividends declared.

(@) Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene extraordinary general meetings
(IIEGMI')

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”), the Directors shall on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”)
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholder(s) having a right to vote at general meetings of
the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an EGM
of the Company.

The requests must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the text
of a resolution that may properly be moved and is/are
intended to be moved at the meeting. The request must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary in hard copy form.

(b) Rights and procedures for shareholders to make
proposals at general meetings

(i) Rights and procedures for a shareholder to propose
a person for election as a director are as follows:

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, shareholder(s) may send a notice
in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been delivered to the Company’s registered office
provided that the minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgement of the
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such meeting.
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Shareholders’ nghts (continued)

(b) Rights and procedures for shareholders to make
proposals at general meetings (continued)

(ii) Rights and procedures for proposing resolution to be
put forward at a general meeting are as follows:

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at an annual general meeting
("AGM") if they:

- represent at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM; or

- at least 50 shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy which sets out the
guiding principles with aims to create long term value for its
shareholders through maintaining a balance between dividend
distribution, preserving adequate liquidity and reserve to meet
its working capital requirements, and capturing future growth
opportunities.

Pursuant to this, the Board may propose/declare the payment
of dividend(s) after taking into account the current financial
performance of the Company, the future financial requirements of
the Company and any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board may also decide on the frequency of dividend payment
and further declare/recommend any special distributions.
Dividend(s) may be in the form of cash, shares, distribution in-
specie or any other form as the Board may determine.
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The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, interim
report, various notices, announcements and circulars.

The Company shall communicate other information to
Shareholders on a need basis by way of announcement which will
be posted on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and the Company. Other than AGM, EGM shall be held
pursuant to relevant rules and regulations if required. Shareholders
shall receive explanatory circulars and proxy forms relating to the
EGMs. Proxy arrangements for the general meetings are in place
for shareholders who are unable to attend the meetings in person.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided
with designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry lines of the
Company, which are available on the Company website, in order
to enable them to make any query in respect of the Company or to
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

Shareholders’ questions about their shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

In order to enhance communication between the Company
and investors/analysts, senior management members will hold
meetings with investors/analysts upon request as and when the
need arises.

Investors are welcome to send email directly to the Company
Secretary’s email at comsec@lamsoon.com or browse the
Company’s website for the latest release and financial
information.

A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the Company
website (http://www.lamsoon.com). Information on the Company
website is updated on a regular basis.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 225 to
227.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 225 to 227.

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, Review of Operations
and Environmental, Social and Governance Report of this annual
report.

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2019 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year ended
are set out in the financial statements on pages 110 to 224.

The Directors are recommending to the shareholders for approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
Wednesday, 13 November 2019 a final dividend of HK$0.30 per
share totaling approximately HK$73,006,000. This, together with
the interim dividend of HK$0.14 per share paid on Wednesday,
27 March 2019, will amount to a total dividend of HK$0.44 per
share for the year (2018: interim dividend of HK$0.13 and final
dividend of HK$0.27 per share). Subject to shareholders’ approval,
the final dividend will be payable on Wednesday, 4 December
2019 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members on Friday, 22 November 2019.
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Closure of Register of Members

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting:

Closure dates of Register of
Members (both days inclusive)

8 November 2019 (Friday)
to 13 November 2019 (Wednesday)
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 7 November 2019

(Thursday)
Record date 13 November 2019 (Wednesday)

Annual General Meeting 13 November 2019 (Wednesday)

For ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend*:

Closure dates of Register of
Members (both days inclusive)

21 November 2019 (Thursday)
to 22 November 2019 (Friday)

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 20 November 2019

(Wednesday)
Record date 22 November 2019 (Friday)
Proposed final dividend payment

date

4 December 2019 (Wednesday)

(*subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Members, no
share transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer
Office — Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before the relevant latest time to lodge
transfers.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 of the
Company as disclosed in this Directors’ Report, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 30 June 2019.
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The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*

LEUNG Joseph, Group Managing Director**
TANG Hong Cheong*

WHANG Sun Tze, Ph. D.*

TAN Lim Heng*

TSANG Cho Tai*
— retired as Non-executive Director after the conclusion of 2018 annual
general meeting held on 13 November 2018 (the “2018 AGM")

LO Kai Yiu, Anthony*
AU Chee Ming*
HUANG Lester Garson, SBS, J.P.*

* Non-executive director
*x Executive director
& Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association and Code A.4.2 of the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices of the Company, Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai, TANG Hong
Cheong and AU Chee Ming will retire from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM"). Messrs.
KWEK Leng Hai and TANG Hong Cheong, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM. Mr. AU Chee Ming has
indicated his intention not to offer himself for re-election at the
AGM as he would like to devote more time to pursue his personal
interests.

Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year ended
30 June 2019 or during the period from 1 July 2019 up to
the date of this report is available on the Company’s website
(http://www.lamsoon.com).

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries, within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EZgHREE

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with a director had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every director
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors
and officers liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for
any legal action brought against its directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreements

1. The following master services agreements (collectively, the
“Master Services Agreements”) were entered into by the
Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) with
certain subsidiaries of Hong Leong Company (Malaysia)
Berhad (“HLCM"), the ultimate holding company of the
Company, for the provision by the latter of management
services including, among other things, overview and/
or oversight of businesses and operations, investment
management and financial management disciplines,
treasury and risk management, key managerial recruitment
and retention as well as other operating practices and
procedures, accounting, corporate advisory, legal, company
secretarial and other services (the “Services”):

(i) the master services agreement entered into by the
Company with Guoline Group Management Co.
Limited ("GGMC") dated 7 July 2017 for provision of
the Services by GGMC to the Company’s subsidiaries
excluding, at any time, the subsidiaries incorporated,
resident or with operation in Hong Kong (“Hong
Kong Subsidiaries”);

(i) the master services agreement entered into by the
Company with GOMC Limited ("“GOMC") dated 7
July 2017 for provision of the Services by GOMC to
the Company and the Hong Kong Subsidiaries; and
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Master Services Agreements (continued)

(iii) An agreement for services dated 11 June 2019 entered
into by the Company with Guoco Management Company
Limited (“GMCL"), a subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited
("GGL") as a service provider pursuant to clause 3.2 of the
Master Services Agreements for provision of services by
GMCL to the Group including overseeing and supervising
the Group’s three functions, namely (a) human resources
management; (b) legal services; and (c) secretarial services.

The Master Services Agreements are for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2020.

The fees payable under the Master Services Agreements comprise a
monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) of HK$100,000 (or such amount
as agreed from time to time between the Company or such service
recipient and the relevant service provider) and an annual fee (the
“Annual Fee”) equal to 3 percent of the annual profits before
tax of the Company and the subsidiaries as shown in the audited
profit and loss accounts for the relevant financial year, subject
to appropriate adjustments. The total fee, being the sum of the
Monthly Fee, the Annual Fee and the total amount of any fees paid
or payable by the Group to any Hong Leong Group Company for
services of a similar nature as the Services are subject to an annual
cap of HK$25 million (the “Annual Cap”) for each of the three
financial years ending 30 June 2020.

GGMC, GOMC and GGL are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
HLCM and thus they are associates of a connected person of the
Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
HLCM is deemed to be invested in shareholding in the Company.
The transactions under the Master Services Agreements constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transactions under the Master Services Agreement
during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transactions under the Master Services Agreements for
the year were entered into:

- in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

- on normal commercial terms or better; and
- according to the agreement governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EZgHREE

Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Services Agreements (continued)

(2) the aggregate service fees paid and payable by the Group
under the Master Services Agreements for the year
amounted to approximately HK$12,844,000 which did not
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$25 million as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 7 July 2017.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions regarding the master services agreements
mentioned above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of
the Company which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

Except for the Master Services Agreements disclosed in the section
of “Connected Transactions” above, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or subsisted
during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2019, the directors of the Company have the
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the "Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules:
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,

(continued)

(A)

(B)

Underlying Shares and Debentures HZERm)

The Company (continued) (A)  ERF#)

Long positions in shares/underlying shares (continued) B HBR G A (R)

Notes: Hiat -

(@) The total interests of 1,850,000 shares/underlying shares @ 2@,&3;&000&5&16}/*@@@@%@%%%
comprised 1,400,000 ordinary shares of the Company and BEER 1,-'\4_()0’0001551[2& A A EE_;
an option in respect of 450,000 underlying shares of the &tﬁ‘%‘g‘&"‘ azm 3”BU\E€§@“‘“‘
Company pursuant to the Executive Share Option Scheme ﬁ%%&ﬁgfgf%%o,ooo&ﬁA Al4H
2013 of the Company. Bl D 2 RIBE

(b) The interests disclosed represent the corporate interests (b) Fﬁﬁ&?zgéﬁﬁitﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and 869 SGR Investment Company, Limited
ordinary shares in the Company held by SGR Investment (F$GRJ)}S§T:C. Whang & Comrifml/
Company, Limited (“SGR”) and T.C. Whang & Company (i”"ate)\L_'m'ted(”-;\& Co. )5 5
(Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.") respectively. Dr. WHANG i;’ﬁz'&f‘ ﬂ@@ﬁ%ﬂi aﬁzﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ&%ﬂ?ﬂﬁ
Sun Tze holds 95.41% and 59.52% interests in SGR and =SER A HEA = ':'ﬁo i
T.C. & Co. respectively. SGRRT.C. & Co. B BIHI5.41% K

59.52% 2 R D RS ©

Associated corporations (B) AHEKAME

Long positions in shares/underlying shares B HBRGZIFE

Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
underlying 1HEEEE
Name of Nature of  shares held BRTEER
associated corporation Name of director  interest BER®B  Note Total Pk b 1|
HBEE &R Y BEME  HEROHE M #st B
Hong Leong Company KWEK Leng Hai Personal 420,500 420,500 2.61%
(Malaysia) Berhad RSB BA
Guoco Group Limited ("GGL") KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
EEEEERLE B! EA
(TEESE])
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 130,000 (a) 130,000 0.04%
HES A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 566,230 566,230 0.17%
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EERKRMD - HERORE
HZ s

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) #HHEEEE(#E)
Long positions in shares/underlying shares (continued) R tEEBR G ZHE (E)
Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
underlying IHEEEE
Name of Nature of  shares held BERTERAR
associated corporation Name of director  interest BERHB  Note Total B2 BA
B EE LB EEps EHEEE HEROHE M @t B
Guocoland Limited (“GLL") KWEK Leng Hai Personal 35,290,914 35,290,914 2.98%
BEEHEERAR B! fEA
(TEPEEE ]
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 865,000 (b) 865,000 0.07%
HES A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
BErE Rk
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,337,777 1,337,777 0.11%
B fBA
Hong Leong Bank Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 5,510,000 5,510,000 0.26%
B! EA
WHANG Sun Tze Family 129,000 129,000 0.01%
BELE EN3
Hong Leong Financial Group ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,526,000 2,526,000 0.22%
Berhad H<2E A
TANG Hong Cheong Personal 174,146 174,146 0.02%
HES A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
BELE EY3
TAN Lim Heng Personal 267,813 267,813 0.02%
PR ok B A
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, EERKRM HEROKRE
Underlying Shares and Debentures 2 PR )

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) #EEEE(E)
Long positions in shares/underlying shares (continued) R ARG ZHE (F)
Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
underlying EHEBER
Name of Nature of  shares held BERTERAR
associated corporation Name of director  interest BER®B,  Note Total Pl o |
HBEEEHE g EHEEE HEROHE M @it Bt
Hong Leong Industries Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 190,000 190,000 0.06%
#<E fAA
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 300,000
HES BA
Family 15,000 315,000 0.10%
ENS
WHANG Sun Tze Family 105,600 105,600 0.05%
B ENS
Guocoland (Malaysia) Berhad ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
("GLM") BEY: BA
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 195,000 195,000 0.03%
HES BA
TAN Lim Heng Personal 326,010 326,010 0.05%
BR Ak A
Hume Industries (Malaysia) WHANG Sun Tze Family 12,667 12,667 0.01%
Sdn Bhd BELE EN
GL Limited (“GL") KWEK Leng Hai Personal 300,000 300,000 0.02%
<k A
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 2,500,000 2,500,000 0.18%
HES BA
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,100,000 1,100,000 0.08%
BR Ak A
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, BEERKG  HERORE
Underlying Shares and Debentures 2 Z W ()

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) #EEEE(E)
Long positions in shares/underlying shares (continued) R tEEBR G ZHE (E)
Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
underlying 1R EE
Name of Nature of  shares held ERTZER
associated corporation Name of director  interest BER®B,  Note Total B2 EY
B ZEAE EEnS EmttE  HREROA8E M st BOL
Malaysian Pacific Industries KWEK Leng Hai Personal 71,250 71,250 0.04%
Berhad B! BA
The Rank Group Plc (“Rank”) ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 1,026,209 1,026,209 0.26%
BLE BA
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 70,000 70,000 0.02%
HES BA
TAN Lim Heng Personal 152,882 152,882 0.04%
R M L BA
Hume Industries Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 310,771 (c) & (d) 310,771 0.06%
("HIB") BLE BA (©K(d)
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 3,776,670 (c) & (e)
BEE BA (c)K(e)
Family 26,199 3,802,869 0.77%
EQ
Southern Steel Berhad ("SSB”) TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 131,000 (f) 131,000 0.03%
BEE BA
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B)

96

Associated corporations (continued)

ESERKRG - HEKRORE

HZERm)

(B) AEEEEE (&)

Long positions in debentures EECHFAE
Name of Nature of Amount of
associated corporation Name of director interest debentures held  Note Total
HEEZEEE EEnE ERMtE BREIENEE HMH it
MYR MYR
ERAET ERAE T
HIB KWEK Leng Hai Personal 73,900 (c) 73,900
Ll BA
TANG Hong Cheong Personal 930,000 (c)
WES BA
Family 7,000 937,000
E
Notes: Kzt :

The total interests of 130,000 shares/underlying shares
comprised 94,000 ordinary shares of GGL and an option
in respect of 36,000 underlying shares of GGL pursuant
to an executive option scheme of a Hong Leong Group
Company.

The total interests of 865,000 shares/underlying shares
comprised 65,000 ordinary shares of GLL and an option
in respect of 800,000 underlying shares of GLL pursuant
to an executive option scheme of a Hong Leong Group
Company.

Interests in 5-year 5% redeemable convertible unsecured
loan stocks (“RCULS") issued by HIB. The RCULS are
convertible into ordinary shares of HIB at the conversion
price of MYR0.7 RCULS for 1 share.

The total interests of 310,771 shares/underlying shares
comprised 205,200 ordinary shares of HIB and a derivative
interest of 105,571 underlying shares of HIB through the
conversion right under the RCULS.

The personal interests of 3,776,670 shares/underlying
shares comprised 2,448,100 ordinary shares of HIB and a
derivative interest of 1,328,570 underlying shares of HIB
through the conversion right under the RCULS. The family
interests of 26,199 shares/underlying shares comprised
16,200 ordinary shares and a derivate interest of 9,999
underlying shares of HIB through the conversion right
under the RCULS.
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RE-ZBREEQFATHRAERNDR
BE ST 28I AT % $800,000 R Bl 7% = b
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310,771 B3, HEER D 2 =42
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B)

Associated corporations (continued)

(f) The total interests of 131,000 shares/underlying shares
comprised 71,000 ordinary shares of SSB and an option
in respect of 60,000 underlying shares of SSB pursuant
to an executive option scheme of a Hong Leong Group
Company.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Share Options

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")

ESOS 2013 was approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and took
effect on 25 April 2013 (“Adoption Date”). Summary of details of
the ESOS 2013 is set out below:

The purpose of the ESOS 2013 is as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

to align the long term interests of any executive or director
of the Group, who is eligible to participate in the ESOS
2013 (“Eligible Executives”) with those of the Shareholders
and encourage Eligible Executives to assume greater
responsibility for the performance of the business that they
manage;

to motivate Eligible Executives towards strategic business
objectives;

to reward Eligible Executives with an equity stake in the
success of the Group; and

to make the total compensation package more competitive
in order to attract, retain and motivate high caliber
executives.

EERKRMD - HERORE
FH 2R )

(B)

HEEE (E)

f) 131,000B2 %17, HEEE I 1D 2 FE 5 48
REBIE71,000fSSBE B R ARE —
LEEEQTTHRASRMREET
E|FT#% F60,000% SSBHHE IR 19 =2 52
BEHE -

BRANFIREEN  SEEFARQAE
ERARAREEMEEEZE (RIEF
ZRPERGIEXVEZER) BEAR
BRERBEMRGIEIS2HR[EMR 2
BELaMPAEzROIBEREA T2
KERD - HEROREFRRERE
SRIAAE AR B R 2 s o

RO REE

2013 TTHAERGEBETE([20138
PRRERETE )

03RO ABEAEN-_ZF-—=FWNA=-FT=
ARRREFFASLERRALE IR =-F
—=FWA-+HERATHEABRHDER - 2013
BROREETBZFHBOT

2013 M ERIBREFTEIMBE NAT -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EEEAFSERSE2013R0RBE
SAEIZITBRAERES ([EERTHA
ENHWREMNSERR - ASBE
ERTRABUREMEE ZEBHX
BAEBEREMRE

EBHECERITRAEERRKEKE

AR S 8 5 242 B ¥4 5 [ A B D 1 HE B JRR
ZREBRITHAR Kk

EEREBHMSBERS| - URE  BE
RESHSERNTRAS
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Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")
(continued)

To be eligible for participation in the ESOS 2013, a person must be
at least eighteen (18) years of age and:

(i) be an executive of a member of the Group and has been
confirmed in service; or

(ii) be a director of member of the Group.

The Board may at its absolute discretion select and identify suitable
Eligible Executives to be offered options.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or transferred
by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the ESOS 2013 and any other share option scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s total number of shares
in issue at the Adoption Date of the ESOS 2013.

The maximum entitlement for any eligible executive in respect of
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted in any 12 months period does
not exceed 1% of the Company’s total number of shares in issue.

The Board may at its discretion determine the exercise price of an
option under the ESOS 2013 provided that the exercise price so
fixed shall not be less than greatest of (a) the average closing price
of a share as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the day of offer of such option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the day
of offer of such option, which must be a business day; and (c) the
nominal value of a share (Note).

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the share option within 30 days (or such longer period of time as
may be permitted by the Board at its discretion) from the date of
making such offer.

The ESOS 2013 will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 25 April 2013.

Note: The concept of par value of a share was abolished with effect from
3 March 2014 pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

20131THHAERPABRESE (2013
PRBRETE ) (&)

HEEKRSHE2013RDABETE 2 A T 4E
FmTN(18)EmR -

(i) AEERERAZITHRABLCHER
REBERS R

(i) AREBHERRZES-

ETEURHEYPISFERERERBESZS
BRITBRABRTREBE -

RIF2013R D RBE BN AR O R IEE
SEIT TR AR BEETER - BT
R/FEBHETERZRDBE  SHTE
BRAQATARKMECBITROLEZ10% °

REM+ZEAHE  ENEERTRAER
TEERERERH 2 ABERCRITREE
TROKE RZTEERBERTROKLEZ
1% °

EESURANBRERESRN2013RDRAE
BB TRE 2RBEZ/TEE  ERLERE
MITEEAEZLRTINRSE © (RERH
ZRBEZANLEEXABIMzEARE
RFFBERZBRRMOFIHRHE  (0)RHEZR
BEERALWEAREXR B IzE8ARESR
R zBRROE™E S RoSREE (K
i) e

REHAHEFH=1TER(REESSRER
RREANN—ERREE) - EARBEASZM
REBE 1T -

2013 HRBEH B EUHRE—T— =6
A=+ AR o

BaE . RBEBOTMRAL  ROEENESC HE
B BA-ZE-NE=F=HBEN -
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EZEHRES

Share O ptions (continued)

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")
(continued)

As at 1 July 2018, there were 3,105,000 outstanding options
pursuant to the ESOS 2013.

During the year, no share options were vested to the grantees
under the ESOS 2013. No share options granted to the grantees
were lapsed or cancelled and 2,070,000 share options were

D EBRE =)

201371

THRAEBRGORBETE(2013K

DRBEE ) (&)

R==
=rE

REA
BRA

—N\EtHA—H  RE2013BDRERE
i ARITE 2 RBREEE £3,105,000 ©

 RIB2013R D RIBESE - WIREBM
BRTREE RERTERAZRBE

RMHEEE - ARER AITHE 2,070,000

exercised by the grantees. Details of the share options as at 30 REE -RZZT-hhEXA=1TH  BHRE
June 2019 are as follows: EZFHBOT ¢
Number of share options
RS 1L E
Weighted
average
closing price
for exercise
of options
(Note 4)
As at Granted Lapsed Exercised Asat Exerise  fTEABEZ
1 July 2018 during during during 30 June 2019 price MET
Date of grant Grantees R-E-NE the year the year theyear ~ WZE-AE per share K E
RtAH ERA th-A REAE L REREHN REAfTE AB=1A SREE (M)
HK$ HKS  Notes
28Jn 2013 LEUNG Joseph 1,350,000 - = 900,000 450,000 162 180 183
ZE-ZERAZTN\A (Group Managing Director)
DIARY REESHLE
28 Jun 2013 Eligible Executives 1,512,000 - - 1,008,000 504,000 4.62 1405 183
ZE-CERACTNR RERABAR
26 Nov 2014 Eligible Executive 243,000 - - 162,000 81,000 6.80 1492 283
“E-MEL-AtRA RERABAE
Total &t - 3,105,000 - - 2,070,000 1,035,000
Notes: Bt -
1. Following the end of the performance period from 1 July 2012 1. R-ZZE——-FtHA-HE=-Z—tFXKA

to 30 June 2017, the Board Remuneration Committee of the
Company (“BRC") has exercised its discretion to vest options in
respect of 2,250,000 shares of the Company to Mr. LEUNG Joseph
and 2,520,000 shares of the Company to Eligible Executives
(“Earned Option”).

2. Following the end of the performance period from 1 July 2014 to
30 June 2017, the BRC has exercised its discretion to vest options in
respect of 405,000 shares of the Company to an Eligible Executive
("Earned Option”).

StHZRBHERE  AQATESEHH
ZEE((FHEES ) ETFEREEARZ
R4 F2,250,000 R A DFRG 2 2B #E
REEEKRTHRAERF2,520,0008 441 F)
IR 2 R ([FSsREEREl) -

R-ZE-NELtA—BE=ZZE—+tF XA
S+REZRBHERE  FHZEECTHE
BB DS EKTHRABR T 40500084
AT ZRERE(FTSRERE] -

MIE(FEB)ERAR | T NFFHR 29



Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")
(continued)

Notes: (continued)
3. The Earned Option shall be exercisable as follows:

(a) 40% of the Earned Option is exercisable from the date of
notification of entitlement for the Earned Option (“Vesting
Date”) up to 6 months from the Vesting Date, i.e. from 23
November 2017 to 22 May 2018;

(b) another 40% of the Earned Option is exercisable from the
13th month up to the 18th month from the Vesting Date,
i.e. from 23 November 2018 to 22 May 2019; and

(0) the remaining 20% of the Earned Option is exercisable
from the 25th month up to the 30th month from the
Vesting Date, i.e. from 23 November 2019 to 22 May
2020.

4. Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised.

Save as disclosed herein, no other options were vested, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled under the ESOS 2013 during the year.
Accordingly, the number of outstanding options was 1,035,000 at
30 June 2019.

Save for above, certain other subsidiaries of Hong Leong
Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“"HLCM"), the ultimate holding
company of the Company, maintain share option schemes or
plans or arrangements which subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year, under which eligible directors of the
Company may be granted share options for acquisition of shares
of respective companies concerned. Mr. TANG Hong Cheong, a
director of the Company, had acquired and held shares of certain
subsidiaries of HLCM in pursuance of a share option scheme
maintained by a subsidiary of HLCM during the year.

Apart from above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

20131THHAERPABRESE (2013
PRBRETE ) (&)

Hist - (%)
3. FRGRBREERUT HXTE:

@ FARBENES 2Nt TEEaR
FieRMME 0 (HEA])RE
BEAMEAERATE HE=F
—t£+-A=-t+=AE=B-N%F
HEAZ+Z=H:

(b) FERBENENED 2T+ RARE
BEHEE+=EARZE+\EA
HETE: WA= -NF+—-A
—t=ZHEZE-AFEARAZ=tTZ=
H:R

() FERBENENSBES 2= +ARE
EREHEE_THRBEAZEE=TH
AHBTE  E=F-NFt+—-A
ZtZHEEZER-EFREA=-TZ=
H e

4. MARRAEBERERERBETERR 2
AR IR E -

BRASCFIFEEN  RAFER - £20138 1%
REEGET  TEHMRBEERIES
1T~ KMFEVE - Ak » R=ZFE—HhERA
=+8  ERITEZRBEZSEEA1,035,000 °

BREXPEEIN  RRABZ2HZEERAA
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad
(THLICM D) 2 & T EMMME A RINEE B R F
EREAREEXRINROIDBETSIHNS
R B ARARCERESTERIBEEE
RERDZBRDRBE - REFER > AAFH
EEMESELERBHLCMZKB A BRI
WIRMDABETTE  EWBRFEHLCMZE
THIE AR 2R ©

PR EXFRELE SN RAFER  AQF -~ HE
BT - B QB RE R B D B MR IR
BERDEMNZHZITNT  UBARAFTES
AHEBBARAREMEMEE 2RO RES
SRS -
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As at 30 June 2019, the following shareholders (other than
directors of the Company whose interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as disclosed above)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

REZZ-AEAA=1TH REFHRBERK
JES 336{%%,%&?@ R2EL BB - T3
BER(REXFARRBDESAFEARAR A ZR
DREERED ZXERG RABBERD 2 EH)
FEAQARDBBERAE T ZXBRMD KA
BAMRAD 2 s

Approximate

Number of percentage

shares held of interest

BEZROHE REZBLEIL

Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“"HLCM") 155,530,659 63.91%
QUEK Leng Chan S5 #E 155,530,659 63.91%
HL Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HLH") 155,530,659 63.91%
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Limited (“HLIH") 155,530,659 63.91%
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”) 155,530,659 63.91%
KWEK Leng Kee 155,530,659 63.91%

Note:

The interests comprised (i) 140,008,659 ordinary shares in the Company
held by GuolLine International Limited (“GIL"); (ii) 6,197,000 ordinary
shares in the Company held by Richly Choice Development (PTC) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (iii) 9,325,000 underlying
shares of the Company of other unlisted derivatives held by Oceanease
Limited.

GIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuoLine Capital Assets Limited
("GCA") which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HLCM.
Oceanease Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuocoEquity Assets
Limited which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guoco Group
Limited (“GGL"). GGL was 71.88% owned by Guoline Overseas Limited
("GOL") which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GCA. By virtue
of Section 316(2) of the SFO, HLCM was 49.11% owned by Mr. QUEK
Leng Chan as to 2.43% under his personal name, 46.68% via HLH which
was wholly-owned by him. HLIH held 34.49% interest in HLCM. Mr.
KWEK Leng Kee held 41.92% interest in Davos which in turn held 33.59%
interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section were long positions in
the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors of
the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MIE(EB)ER AR

Kt -

ZHEFEBHE() Guoline International Limited(l—GILJ
BEERALD 7140 008,659 Z B 2 ; (I)AD
Az 2 &K B2 FRichly Choice Development (PTC)
Limited}EBRZANA 6,197,000 @I 2 % &
(iii) Oceanease LimitedEBEAMIE EHITETEIFE
ZN/A7]9,325,000 X AHEEARR 1D 2 R ©

GIL & Guoline Capital Assets Limited ([ GCA |)
2EEMBAT > BEABHICMZZEMB LR °
Oceanease Limited BB R AEEER AT 22 E
MEAT  ZEABEEEERAGA(EEEE]D 2
2EMBAT  BIEEEZ71.88% & HGuoLine
Overseas Limited([ GOL J)#%H - GOLAGCAZE
BENRBLAR - RIEFHRBEMRGFEI6QKETE -
HLCMZ49. 1M % B ABSBEEUBABREREE
243% -~ K2 EEE ZHLHIEE46.68% ° HLIHEE
BHLCM 34.49% 2 #E# o KWEK Leng Kee L £EH
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EZgHREE

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Shares

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the trustee for a trust set up for the purpose of acquiring shares
of the Company to satisfy the exercise of options which may be
granted pursuant to the Executive Share Option Scheme adopted
on 23 April 2013, purchased 1,488,000 shares of the Company on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at a total consideration
of HK$21,326,000.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, the Company did not
redeem any of its listed shares. Neither did the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Company’s listed
shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s revenue for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year and up to 29 August 2019, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the directors.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 August 2019

BE HEIWEEAEXARFZ
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BERATBE,488,000 A D F KM » AR
BAB%21,326,0007T °
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AEEETFTHRANBLUTEFNWBRAREERE
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lam
Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 110 to 224, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BYRBEMES
HEIE(EB)BRATKE
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FEEETSEERERMNEEHE  RAEY
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the TG EMBRRNEABRREENSE - B
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These EEFEAERMENEEGSUEHREHEA
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the EREETEEN BRMATSHELEEREMS
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our BEBEMER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 154 to 156

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Sales of flour, edible oil and home care products are
recognised as revenue when the control of the products
are transferred to the Group’s customers according to
the terms of the sales and purchase agreements entered
into between the Group and its customers.

Generally, management considers the control of the
products are transferred to the Group's customers when
the goods are delivered to the customers’ premises.

The Group trades mainly with distributors and
supermarkets and has a large volume of individual
transactions which increases the risk of error in recognising
revenue.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group which could create an incentive
for management to record revenue inappropriately to
meet targets or expectations and because the large
transaction volume increases the possibility of errors in
recognising revenue.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

o gaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the completeness,
existence and accuracy and timing of revenue
recognition;

o challenging the revenue recognition policies
adopted by the Group by making inquiries of
management and inspecting a sample of sales and
purchase agreements to understand the terms of the
transactions with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

o assessing the existence and identity of a sample
of new customers of the Group during the year
by performing background searches on these
customers;

o comparing sales records for a sample of sales
transactions recorded during the year with relevant
underlying documentation, which included sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers;

o identifying significant sales returns from the sales
ledger after the year end and inspecting the
underlying documentation in relation to these
sales returns to assess if the related adjustments to
revenue had been accounted for in the appropriate
accounting period;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBEMKESE

Key audit matters (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 154 to 156 (continued)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

LN

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following: (continued)

o assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the financial year end
had been recognised in the appropriate financial
period in accordance with the terms of sale as
set out in the sales and purchase agreements by
comparing details of these transactions with sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers; and

o selecting a sample of journal entries affecting
revenue recognised during the year, adopting
specific risk-based criteria, and comparing the details
of these adjustments with the related underlying
documentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBEKESE

FARETEE @

WA TR (&)

BEHGE I EIREMN TSR E 1548 F 156 BHIE 5T IBUE (#8)

BEESER(E)

RANBFANAEEZSEEHE)

HMFEWAERTETHEAZFENT © (F)

MRV RFERERNEERAR S NFIEERER
EFRIENRBREANEERZIRENEEEE
TR Lt ZERZRECREBEEEHEMEN
HEFRTNEENWMBHB®ER . R

RN EFARANS 28 - RS E R

BREHLZEHBNFBREEIGT S -

Information other than the
consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also: (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Guen Kin Shing.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

29 August 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS
mEEER

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

2019 2018
—E-hAEF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
B BT T BT T
Revenue A 5 5,316,205 5,374,273
Cost of sales SHERA (4,161,761) (4,243,311)
Gross profit ER 1,154,444 1,130,962
Other income Hauwg A 6 43,702 36,424
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (614,519) (602,767)
Administrative expenses THEHAR (185,499) (173,557)
Profit before taxation RRBLATRE R 7 398,128 391,062
Taxation Fi1E 8(a) (58,052) (64,683)
Profit for the year REERF 340,076 326,379
Attributable to: FEh -
Equity shareholders of the Company FN/NGT S 340,076 326,379
Non-controlling interests FEEFIREE - -
Profit for the year AR F R F 340,076 326,379
Earnings per share BREF
Basic HIK 11(@) HKS$E®1.447t HK$BEME1.387T
Diluted B 11(b) HKS$#E%1.437T0 HK$BEE1.37 7T

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 July
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(c).

The notes on pages 118 to 224 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

note 10.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBmRkEtMEEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit for theyear *x®EmM SRS 326,379
Other comprehensive income A EEH A2 E W E (RBIE
for the year (after tax and REFIERER)
reclassification adjustments)
Items that may be reclassified HEWNEHF,>BEBHEER2ER
subsequently to profit or loss:
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of HETHEESHEEMERE
an available-for-sale financial asset Bk - 7
Exchange differences on translation of BEEBLUING B A BB IIHRE
financial statements of subsidiaries FEECERER
outside Hong Kong (61,555) 38,878
Other comprehensive income AEEHEMEEEE  RBEFHE
fortheyear,metoftax b (61,555) .. 38,885
Total comprehensive income AEE2HEINRAE
for the year 278,521 365,264
Attributable to: 4L
Equity shareholders of the Company RABRE 278,521 365,264
Non-controlling interests FEEFIE R - -
Total comprehensive income AEEEHKSEHEEE
for the year 278,521 365,264

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 July fiat . AEBR=Z—N\FLtA—BANKRKBES

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative PHERELENE+ IR REBHEREER
information is not restated. See note 2(c). BN - RBEREWBER L XFEE

FILEEE R - 3 RMIEE2(c)

The notes on pages 118 to 224 form part of these financial FIRE1I8E224B 2 REMF AN HFHREK 2
statements. — &7 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR &

At30June 2019 R=Z—AFEARA=+H

2019 2018
—E-hAEF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
B BT T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Leasehold land and property, plant HELTHRYE BE 12
and equipment KRB 703,570 663,409
Intangible assets and goodwill B EENTE 13 9,597 14,196
Deferred tax assets EIEFIIBEE 19 - 6
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHESREE 14 = 177
Other non-current assets HtERBEE 14 11,498 6,268
724,665 684,056
Current assets REEE
Inventories 7E 15(a) 625,843 640,109
Trade and other receivables B2 NEMEWERSR 16 393,284 385,101
Cash and cash equivalents HERESELE 17 1,317,927 1,162,146
2,337,054 2,187,356
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B2 N EMENERR 18(a) 673,063 680,930
Contract liabilities EEAERE 18(b) 28,232 -
Tax payables i AREEN 8(c) 13,636 14,886
Obligations under finance leases B ERIE 160 312
e 715,001 696,128
Netcurrentassets =~~~ #r®@EE 00000000 1,621,963 1,491,228
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 2,346,628 2,175,284
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEBEE 19 11,731 4,742
Obligations under finance leases & ERIE 354 357
e 12,085 5,099
NET ASSETS BEE 2,334,543 2,170,185
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
A IR R R

At30June 2019 R=Z—AFARA=+H

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE BT BT
Capital and reserves EeREE

Share capital BRAK 20(a) 672,777 672,777
Reserves EE 1,651,053 1,486,695

Total equity attributable to equity AARRREGEER
shareholders of the Company 2,323,830 2,159,472
Non-controlling interests FEEFIE R 10,713 10,713
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 2,334,543 2,170,185

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 KHEEER-_ZE-NAENA-TLBH#ER

August 2019. FRRETE o
LEUNG Joseph RZE WHANG Sun Tze EEHE
DIRECTOR EE DIRECTOR EBE

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 July fiat . AEBR-ZZ-N\FLtA—BHAKRKAES

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative EREENETREREBHIEREE]
information is not restated. See note 2(c). FNH - RIBCEMNWBESE  XTEE

Bt E R} o FRMFE2(c)

The notes on pages 118 to 224 form part of these financial FIRE1I8E224B 2 REMF AN HFHREK 2
statements. — &7 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES INLEQUITY
nf\é*&é%@%

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ANARFER
Investment Share Non-
Share  Surplus revaluation ESOP  option Exchange  Genmeral  Revenue controlling Total
capital  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve  feserve reserve reserve Totdl interests equity
fiHAE
R& Ri7ER it
ha  BuRE  EfRE rREE ZRERE ERRE  -BRE  UGER aif FENER  BEGH
Note ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Wi AT BETn BEFn BEFn BT BRTn BN BEEn BEFn BB BT
At 30 June 2018 RE-N\ERA=TH 672,771 151,588 - (@39 2810 28,051 - 1351583 2159472 10,713 2,170,185
Impact on inital application L RAZBEBHE
of HKFRS 9 ENZNSNTE 200 - = - - - - - 890 890 - 890
Adjusted balance at W-%-NELE-A
1uly 2018 gEnss 672,777 151,588 - (@139 2810 28,051 - 1352413 2,160,362 10713 2,171,075
Profitfor the year REERA - - - - - - - 340076 340,076 - 340,076
Total other comprehensive  AEERM2ENE
income for the year k] - - - - - (61,559) - - (61,559 - (61,559
Total comprehensive income ZEE2FRZLE
for the year - - - - - (61,55 - 30,076 278,52 - 85U
Brercise of share options 162 R - - - M (2160 - - [3669) 9916 - 9916
Equity settled share-based ~ REREEZURAE
fransactions BER5 - - - - 362 - - - 362 - 362
Purchase of ordinary shares SR AR
of the Company for share KA FZEER
option scheme 20) - - - (2132) - - - - (132 - (132
Transfer between reserves  EilafE 2 &% - 11862 - - - - - (1862) - - -
Utsation of discetionary ~ B ERER R
SUrplus reserve - (7,051) - - - - - - (1,051) - (1,051)
Final dividend paid n respect FiEEETHRHIRE
of prior year 10(b) - - - - - - - (63731 (63,731) - (63731)
terim dvidend paidin ~ HAEERADERE
respect of current year 10) - - - - - - - (3323 (323) - 30
- 4,811 - (5,581) (1,79) - - (112,485)  (115,093) - (115,05
At30 June 2019 W_E-NERAZTR 672,777 156,399 - (52978 1072 (33,50) - 1,580,004 2,323,830 10713 2,334,543
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

AEEmB R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KAARFER
Investment Share Non-
Share  Surplus  revaluation £SOP opion  Exchange  General  Revenue controlling Total
cpital resees reserie reserie reseve feseve reseveresene Total  interests equiy
AR

k& BBiEE BB
Br BBGE  EERR  hRGR GBERR ENBR -RER VYeER o FEWER  Baod
Note  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSO00  KKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOD  AKSO00
Kt ERTr  ERTr ERFn ERin BRin ERTn ERTn ERTr ERTn ERPn R

At1uly 2017 WoE-tELE-A 072,717 116,314 (O (0679 10060 (10361 50000 1096584 1894789 10713 1,905,502
Profit for the year REEEH - - - - - - - 36319 306379 - 306309

Total other comprehensie  AEEEf2E
income for the eer hages - - ! - - B8 - - B - B

Total comprehensive income  REE2E#45
for the year - - ] - - 38,378 - 36319 365264 - 365,264

Brercise of share options 172 RATERE - - - 13090 (1650) - - (162 9916 - 9916

Equity setted share-based ~ FREREE 2 HRAA

fransactions ERLS - - - - o) - - S 1) - (564
Purchase of ordinary shares SR fAsDE RS EIE S
of the Company forshare - AAT2EER
option scheme 200) - - - (19908 - - - - (9% - 8%
Transfer between reserves  RIERZER - 3 - - - (4o6) (50,0000 15,192 - - -
Final dividend paid n respect FAEETHRHARE
of prior year 10(b) - - - - - - - (4149 (54,149) - 4149
nterim dividend paid i+~ FAAEETABHRE
respect of current year 10) - - - - - - - (30799 (30,799) - 30799
- 35,274 - (6,718) (7.291) (466) (50,0000 (71,380)  (100,581) - (1005581)
At 30 June 2018 RE-NERA=TH 672,777 151,588 - @139 2810 28,051 - 1351583 2159472 10713 2,170,185

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 July Hiat : AEBR-Z—N\FLtA—BANKREAES

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative MHREENFE+ REREBM KRS 2EA
information is not restated. See note 2(c). FNE - RIBCERBNWBER L UFAEE

DILLEE R o S RMEE2(0) ©

The notes on pages 118 to 224 form part of these financial FIRE118E224H 2 BHEME R LRI HHREK 2
statements. — &7 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

MERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
BtaE BT BT T
Operating activities ReEEE
Profit before taxation FREE A& 398,128 391,062
Adjustments for: FHE
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 7 61,786 61,950
Write-down of inventories FERE 15(b) 3,763 3,199
Loss allowance recognised/(reversed) B RWERR ZEaRE
for trade receivables HERR (E#) 7 228 (293)
Impairment losses recognised for Y% - BEREREZRE
property, plant and equipment EiEmER 7 - 1,606
Interest income on financial assets REHERATTEERERE
measured at amortised cost ZRBUWA 6 (27,250) (24,601)
Net unrealised loss on club membership B2 RSB FEHE 6 152 -
Net loss on disposal of an HETHEESREEZ
available-for-sale financial asset FEE 6 = 7
Net losses on disposal of property, HEVME BERKEZ
plant and equipment FEE 6 66 497
Net gain on liquidation of a joint venture &&M%E8 2 R 6 - (206)
Government grants income BUF RS A 6 (7,766) -
Share-based payment REZSFEER,(BE)
expenses/(forfeiture), net 7 362 (5,641)
Net unrealised exchange losses/(gains) KREWE R FEHE (K 936 (5,399)
Changes in working capital: EELELHEE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEZ(Em RS (11,211) 22,739
(Increase)/decrease in trade and ESRHEMEWERRZ
other receivables (#hn),/ B (17,185) 14,324
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R HAFESIRI ZIE M 38,463 49,577
Increase in contract liabilities SRAGZEM 445 -
Cash generated from operations REERTENIERES 440,917 508,821
Taxation: FiIE :
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEENEH (6,229) (4,314)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong ENEBUINEIE (45,641) (60,865)
Net cash generated from RETHABREFHE
operating activities 389,047 443,642
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE BT BT
Investing activities REED
Interest received S &= 27,250 24,601
Decrease in fixed deposit held at FiEEREIBAA=EA
bank with original maturity over Ll EWERITERFRZ
three months NERA 50,000 19,859
Purchase of leasehold land and BEHEL MR YE -
property, plant and equipment and MERZEAR
intangible assets mEEE (120,733) (85,097)
Net proceeds from disposal of an HEAHEESRERE
available-for-sale financial asset P8 IR 58 - 8
Net proceeds from disposal of HEWME BERZE
property, plant and equipment REETeEREE 1,485 2,977
Cash compensation received related W ZE B REHRE—EEH
to relocation of a flour mill plant MEMBRESHE - 21,419
Net cash used in investing activities REFZEHFFARETZE (41,998) (16,233)
Financing activities RMEEE
Purchase of ordinary shares of the MDA EEE
Company for share option scheme RRAB2EBR 20(a) (21,326) (19,908)
Proceeds from exercise of share options  {TEzRMABREFRE
HIE 9,916 9,916
Decrease/(increase) in restricted ER#IZRITASRZ
bank balances WA () 17(a) 2,924 (2,924)
Net decrease in obligations under REREREZFRD
finance leases 17(b) (346) (282)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders RAFARABRRZKE
of the Company (96,954) (84,948)
Net cash used in financing activities BIEEEHAARETE (105,786) (98,146)
Net increase in cash and RERBESEEFEIEM
cash equivalents 241,263 329,263
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July REtB—BZEEERSE
Z5 1,109,222 753,018
Effect of foreign exchange EXSH %
rate changes (32,558) 26,941
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June RAA=+HZEREEES
8 17(a) 1,317,927 1,109,222
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 July Kiat : AXEBR=ZZE—-N\FtA—BUNREAERR

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(c).

The notes on pages 118 to 224 form part of these financial
statements.

MIE(FB)ERAR | ZF—
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hEANB=THILEE

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is a holding company and its principal
activity is investment holding. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries include manufacturing, trading
and processing of edible oil, flour products and home care
products in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") and Macau.

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are disclosed.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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S(ERETMIE]) EMZ
FrEERCE BB HREED)
(TERMBHREER]) - LEBE
BREEER @R (E B HR
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RETRAREB(RERG) 2
BEREMRE - AP BHRRIL
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(b)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2019 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- club membership; and

- derivative financial instruments (see note
2(9)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

(b)
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(c)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hEANB=THILEE

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs,
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation that are
first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group. Of these, the following developments
are relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements:

- HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

- HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

- HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard,
amendments or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement.
It sets out the requirements for recognising
and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell
non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively to items that existed at 1 July
2018 in accordance with the transition
requirements. The Group has recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening equity at 1 July
2018. Therefore, comparative information
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEESTEH @

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on revenue reserve at

BRTBRNEE (#)

(@)

EEBMBHEERANEN
¥ [2@ITAIE)

TRBLBEEEBHH

£}

HEABAFHR-F

1 July 2018. —NFthA-—BWRERHB
4
HK$°000
BT T
Revenue reserve W f#E
Recognition of fair value gains of available-  AI{tHELFERE (RIEQF
for-sale financial asset now measured at BETABRTE)ZAF
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL") BEREZ#ER 890
Net increase in revenue reserve —E-N\FtHA—BkHEHE
at 1July 2018 B hNFER 890

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and
the transition approach are set out below:

a. Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets
into three principal classification
categories: measured at amortised
cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI")
and at FVPL. These supersede HKAS
39’s categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets measured at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset
is managed and its contractual cash
flow characteristics.

MIE(EB)ERAR | T NFFHR
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies 2. EESTHR@
Changes in accounting policies (continued) () EFBERNEE(E)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued) (i) EBUBEHREEREN
%[BT A(E)
Classification of financial assets and a. THEENETHE
financial liabilities (continued) B 72 (4E)
The following table shows the original TRITRESE
measurement categories for each class SHEHE=TN
of the Group’s financial assets under FAEESESHM
HKAS 39 and reconciles the carrying EENRITEE
amounts of those financial assets Bl REBRIBEEE
determined in accordance with HKAS 2xrELE=1+H
39 to those determined in accordance FEETNZESH
with HKFRS 9. EEREERERE
BRI KIREZER
ENREEEENT
R -
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying amount carrying amount
at30June 2018  Reclassification Remeasurement  at 1July 2018
EHeTE BRNEERS
E=thE RAENE
R=%B-N% H=%-N%
AA=TREREE BN Efiit2  tA-ARERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT BEFR B¥Tr BEFR
Financial assets carried at FVPL 4BEERATER
STAB&TE
Club membership (note) ef ) - 177 890 1,067
Financial assets classified as ~ HEBLHENE=TN%ES
available-for-sale under BRATHLESREE
HKAS 39 (note) (Wit) 177 (177) - -

Note: Under HKAS 39, club membership
was classified as an available-for-
sale financial asset measured at
cost less impairment losses. It is
classified as a financial asset carried
at FVPL within “Other non-current
assets” under HKFRS 9.
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2.

B 35 R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)

For an explanation of how the Group
classifies and measures financial assets
and recognises related gains and
losses under HKFRS 9, see respective
accounting policy notes in notes 2(f),

(9). (k)(i), (n) and (o).

The measurement categories for all
financial liabilities remain the same.
The carrying amounts for all financial
liabilities at 1 July 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application of
HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or
de-designate any financial asset or
financial liability at FVPL at 1 July
2018.

2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with the
expected credit losses ("ECL"”) model.
The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated
with a financial asset and therefore
recognises ECLs earlier than under the
“incurred loss” accounting model in
HKAS 39.

The Group applies the ECL model to
financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including other non-current
assets, trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments and cash
and cash equivalents).

For further details on the Group’s
accounting policy for accounting for
credit losses, see note 2(k)(i) and (ii).

The adoption of the ECL model has
no significant financial impact to the
financial assets of the Group.

2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue and
some costs from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which
covered revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional
qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable users of
the financial statements to understand the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from contracts
with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative
effect transition method. Comparative
information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 11
and HKAS 18. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the
Group has applied the new requirements only
to contracts that were not completed before
1 July 2018.

2.

BEESTTHE @)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEET R e

(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c)

(ii)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes on previous accounting policies are
set out below:

a. Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from sale
of goods was generally recognised
at a point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods
had passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised when the customer obtains
control of the promised good or
service in the contract. This may be at
a single point in time or over time.

If the contract terms and the entity’s
activities do not fall into any of those
situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded
as being transferred over time, then
under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or
service at a single point in time, being
when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only
one of the indicators that is considered
in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.

Revenue from sale of goods will
continue to be recognised at a point
in time and the adoption of HKFRS
15 does not have a significant impact
on the Group's financial position and
results of operations based on the
current business model.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

b.

Presentation of contract assets and
contract liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is
recognised only if the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration.
If the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 2(t)) before
being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration for the promised
goods and services in the contract,
then the entitlement to consideration
is classified as a contract asset.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather
than a payable, is recognised when
a customer pays non-refundable
consideration, or is contractually
required to pay non-refundable
consideration and the amount is
already due, before the Group
recognises the related revenue. For
a single contract with the customer,
either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net
basis (see note 2(m)).

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS
15, certain balance of the “advances
received for goods to be sold”
previously grouped under “deposits
received” within trade and other
payables is now separately disclosed in
note 18(b).
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

Disclosure of the estimated impact on
the amounts reported in respect of the
year ended 30 June 2019 as a result
of the adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 July
2018

The following tables summarise the
estimated impact of adoption of
HKFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2019, by comparing
the amounts reported under HKFRS
15 in these consolidated financial
statements with estimates of the
hypothetical amounts that would
have been recognised under HKAS
18 and HKAS 11 if those superseded
standards had continued to apply
to 2019 instead of HKFRS 15.
These tables show only those line
items impacted by the adoption of
HKFRS 15:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

BEESTTEE @)

Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(0 SEHERNEE)

(ii)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with (i) EBEBHEREERELSR
customers (continued) # [REEF&ERK
A J(#&)

c. Disclosure of the estimated impact on C. BEE-E—NEF
the amounts reported in respect of the NA=FHIEFE
year ended 30 June 2019 as a result BEARZZF—N
of the adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 July F+H—HERNE
2018 (continued) BB EERE

AR Lk
BRZ (T 572 (#E)
Difference:
Estimated
Amounts impact of
reported in Hypothetical adoption of
accordance amounts HKFRS 15
with HKFRS 15 under HKAS 18 on 2019
2R
R=B-0%
REBHBRS EREEN RREENBRE
REZE+EY ETNETH  EAETEED
2HMLE Gha EHEZ
(A) (B) (A-B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BETT
Line items in the consolidated REZ-NERA=THZEG
statement of financial positionas ~ ABERRZTSRAESE
at30June 2019 impacted by the ~ BEHEZIE RN E
adoption of HKFRS 15: R
Trade and other payables EARHMEMNFE 673,063 701,295 (28,232)
Contract labilities AFEE 28,232 - 28,32
Line items in the consolidated BEZZ-AERA=TAL
statement of cash flows foryear ~ EEHABETERY
ended 30 June 2019 impacted by SRMERIHREES
the adoption of HKFRS 15: BTRRYENER
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 REMEMTEEM 38,463 38,908 (445)
Increase in contract liabilities REEEEM 445 - 445
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(iii)

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration

This Interpretation provides guidance on
determining “the date of the transaction” for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising
from a transaction in which an entity receives
or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date
of the transaction” is the date on initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset or
liability arising from the payment or receipt
of advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the date of
the transaction for each payment or receipt
should be determined in this way. The
adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any
material impact on the financial position and
the financial result of the Group.
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(d)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

(d)
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(d)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hEANB=THILEE

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(f)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in a
joint venture or an associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).
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(e)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over (ii) the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ 3R Y R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEET R e

(continued)
(f) Investments other than equity investments (f)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 2(t)(iii)).

- fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") —
recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest
and the investment is held within
a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection
of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except
for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains
and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

- fair value at profit or loss (“FVPL")
if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEESTEH @

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Investments other than equity investments (f)
(continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

Investments which did not fall into the
categories of securities held for trading or
held-to-maturity securities were classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value was
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the fair value reserve (recycling). Dividend
income from equity investments and interest
income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method were
recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange
gains and losses arising from debt securities
were also recognised in profit or loss. When
the investments were derecognised or
impaired (see note 2(k)(i) — policy applicable
prior to 1 July 2018), the cumulative gain or
loss recognised in equity was reclassified to
profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments (9)

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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(h)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hEANB=THILEE

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(k)(ii)). The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its present working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after an item of property, plant and
equipment has been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situation where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
the property, plant and equipment.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction, capitalised borrowing
costs and exchange differences to the extent that
it is an adjustment to borrowing costs during
the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their
intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress
until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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(h)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Buildings and leasehold 2-25 years
improvements
Plant, equipment, furniture 3-20 years

and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Enterprise resources planning 5 years
system (“ERP")
Trademarks 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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()]

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hEANB=THILEE

Leased assets )]

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, with
the following exception:

- Land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
note 2(h). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(k)(ii). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term.

()

MIE(EB)ERAR | T NFFHR

HEEE @)

(ii)

(iii)

UBEHERBZEE

EASELURERTWE
EEMERE HEEEZ
AV EEREIAREEE
CHEZREZRESE 8
FIAME  BERRER
HEEE(HFRREER)
JIEmEEERE - TE
AREREERRPEN
BEAAYRZB[CER
SEEMESEEMRBRE) -
B EERA 2L RT
B (RMEE2h) ° BER
BB EzE
STBRARR - HES A
BEZREBERENEE
HE ABRERA - #Et
EEES 5 HRE L — 848
HNERFTEEEHREN
BMEER - AIRBEEHER
EE e BB AR
BE o

BREHEER

MAEBERUELEHER
BEEZERE  BIRE
MEEL 2 RERM AR
BE2ETHER - UE
BEBBRAHR  HEH
fb B AR E B H it R BR AR
EEEMELE 2 WREER
BRIN o HE T K 2 R
HERSERTEIRFAE
SHRBRE BRI D
FREEHEREE 2EF
Bt ARSR -

DEEHERR 211l
WIER AT RESEER
SRS -



2.

140

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

The loss allowance of trade receivables
is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which are those losses
that are expected to occur over the
expected life of the trade receivables.
The loss allowance is estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial assets (including
cash and cash equivalents and other
receivables), the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk
of the financial assets since initial
recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date with any changes recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of financial assets
through a loss allowance account.
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B 35 R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

BEESTTHE @)

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial assets
(continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2018
(continued)

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the
counterparties does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E!M%iﬁ%%llﬁ‘ﬁ

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #HZE=

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial assets
(continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

Impairment losses are recognised
when there is objective evidence of
impairment and are measured as
the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and
the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate where the effect
of discounting is material. Objective
evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about events
that have an impact on the asset’s
estimated future cash flows.

When the recovery of a trade and
other receivable was considered
doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded
using an allowance account. When
the Group was satisfied that recovery
was remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off against
the gross carrying amount of those
assets directly. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.

—NEFRAZTHLFE

2.

(k)
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

BEESTTHE @)

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial assets
(continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018
(continued)

For available-for-sale investments,
the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the fair value reserve
(recycling) was reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that was recognised in profit or
loss was the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any loss
allowance on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Loss allowance recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-
sale equity securities were not
reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets was recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Significant Accounting Policies

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment (including construction in
progress);

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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(k)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit (“CGU")).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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U

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. In the case of work
in progress and finished goods, cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an attributable
proportion of production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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(m)

(n)

(o)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hEANB=THILEE

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2(t)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (see note 2(n)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
note 2(t)(iii)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(k)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(k)(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p)

(a)

2.

BEESTTHE @)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the share options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the share options
will vest.
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150

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i 75 ¥R 2= Y =

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(q)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
included in the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to revenue
reserve).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE=ZE—NAFAB=+HILEE

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they related to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they related to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hEANB=THILEE

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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(r)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Income tax (continued) (r)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separated from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,

the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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(s)

(t)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hEANB=THILEE

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Sale of goods

Sales of the Group’s products are recognised
as follows:

- Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of
and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of
a contract covering other goods
and/or services, then the amount of
revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction
price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis.

In the comparative period, revenue from sales
of goods was recognised when the goods
were delivered to the customers, which
was taken to be the point in time when the
customer had accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(k)(i)).

(iv)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are recorded as deferred income, and
recognised evenly in profit or loss over the
assets useful lives.
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(u)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of operations outside Hong Kong
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of an operation
outside Hong Kong acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the operation
outside Hong Kong.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that operation outside Hong Kong is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(u)
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(v)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HBZE_-Z—

Related parties

(i)

(ii)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

NERA=THLEFE

(v)
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(v)

(w)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(f) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i).

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(h) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close family members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

(v)

(w)
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hEANB=THILEE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made various estimates based on
past experiences, expectations of the future and other
information. Note 22 contains information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of
share options granted. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that may significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are disclosed below:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account of their estimated residual
value. The determination of the useful lives and
residual value involve management'’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
and if the assessment result differs from the
original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation for the year. The details of property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 12.

Impairment of leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment and goodwill

Determining whether leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment and goodwill are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the leasehold land
and property, plant and equipment and goodwill
have been allocated. The calculation of value in
use requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
If the estimation of value in use is different, any
reversal or further impairment will impact the profits
or losses of the Group. The details of leasehold land
and property, plant and equipment and goodwill are
disclosed in notes 12 and 13 respectively.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

(d)

Income taxes

At 30 June 2019, deferred tax assets of
HK$4,762,000 (2018: HK$4,027,000) in relation to
unused tax losses were recognised as set out in note
19. No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$256,181,000
(2018: HK$250,036,000) and temporary differences
of HK$103,322,000 (2018: HK$109,717,000)
arising from impairment of certain leasehold land
and property, plant and equipment due to the
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the future profits generated
are less or more than expected, a write down or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the profit or loss for
the period in which such a write down or further
recognition takes place.

Provision for expected credit loss of trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision matrix is based
on management’s estimate of the lifetime expected
credit losses to be incurred by taking into account
the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue trade
receivables, customers’ repayment history and
customers’ financial position and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgment.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic
conditions. The information about the ECLs and
trade receivables are disclosed in note 23(a). If the
financial condition of the customers or the forecast
economic conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss
allowance would be higher than estimated.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 #HZE=

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, the Group has two reportable segments,
as described below. Businesses in each reporting segment
have similar operating and currency risks, class of customer
for products, distribution channels and safety regulation.
The following summary describes the operations in each
segment:

Food: the manufacture and sale of a broad range of
food products including flour and edible oil.

Home Care: the manufacture and sale of household and
institutional cleaning products.

(@) Segments results, assets and liabilities

The Group’s most senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment profit
s “profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit
from operations”, the Group's earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or
corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include tax payables, all trade and
other payables and contract liabilities attributable
to the manufacturing and sales activities of the
individual segments and obligations under finance
leases with the exception of deferred tax liabilities
and other corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

4. Segment Reporting (continued)
(a)

Segments results, assets and liabilities (a)
(continued)

2 EBEEAR

EEREEB#E)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition, as
well as information regarding the Group's reportable

BRARISE I EZREEF
BRHNEA - URAXEERS
BITREEAESZAEE T 2K

cumulative effect method. Under this method, the
comparative information is not restated and was
prepared in accordance with HKAS 18 (see note

2(c)(ii)).

MIE(EB)ERAR | T NFFHR

segments as provided to the Group’s most senior DEEREGIOT :
executive management is set out below:
2019 2018
“E-nE “E-N\F
Segment Segment
Food Home Care Total Food  Home Care Total
Rm  RESEE N4 B FEEE 24
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETn  BEFn  EETn  BMFn BETr BEFa
Disaggregated by timing of REMREERKA
revenue recognition on BRAREIE
point in time
Revenue from external customers  ${5MEF 2WA 4,603,540 712,214 5315754 4,693,347 679,784 5,373,131
Reportable segment profit A2HNE2
from operations Ry 393,892 60,268 454,160 392,901 45,843 438,744
Interest income on financial assets IREEHAS 24T
measured at amortised cost EEZRIEMA 17,226 2,034 19,260 18,329 1,605 19,934
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (50,962) (2,169) (53,131) (52,124) (1,867) (53,991)
Other material profit or AtEEERE
loss items: ER
~ Net exchange -ER RN/
gains/(losses) (B8) 869 204 1,073 (611) (817) (1,428)
- Loss allowance (recognised)/ -UEN
reversed for trade ZEBRE
receivables (1) /B (229) = (229) 293 - 293
- Impairment losses recognised ~ —#1% - BER
for property, plant and KB HE
equipment BER2 - - - (1,606) - (1,606)
Taxation #E (35,264) (14,045) (49,309) (40,446) (10,890 (51,336)
Reportable segment assets TEHAIP2EE 2380153 262,705 2,642,858 2,185,280 201,359 2,386,639
Reportable segment liabilities EHEIN2ER 562,867 140,849 703,716 626,585 120344 746,929
Additions to non-current BRI HERE
segment assets BE 103,225 3,951 107,176 70,045 2,811 72,856
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the MfEE © AEBURFEELEERE

RAEBYBHSEAE TR
5o RBZGE - LBERE
FE - WREBESTHELE
TSR mE(RHMFEE2(0)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

4. Segment Reporting (continued)

164

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment

4. DEHRE @)

M2/ W2WA - BER -

(b)

revenue, profit or loss, assets and EERBENEHER
liabilities
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
JBEFIT BT T
Revenue PN
Reportable segment revenue A 23D EW 2 WA 5,315,754 5,373,131
Rental income BEUA 451 1,142
Consolidated revenue ZEWA 5,316,205 5,374,273
Profit gl
Reportable segment profit ] 235 E 2 L& EF
from operations 454,160 438,744
Unallocated exchange (losses)/gains KAOBZER (BE),
Wz (3) 973
Unallocated head office and KoBZB AR
corporate expenses TEEBEH (56,029) (48,655)
Consolidated profit before taxation FEBRBANER] 398,128 391,062
Assets &=
Reportable segment assets A2 PBEE 2,642,858 2,386,639
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 2 2BEIFEUNERFR < K4 (9,196) (70,260)
2,633,662 2,316,379
Deferred tax assets EEFRIEEE - 6
Unallocated head office and AoEzBARR
corporate assets TEEE 428,057 555,027
Consolidated total assets SEMEE 3,061,719 2,871,412
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

4. Segment Reporting (continued) 4. PRSI @

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) TWERITFZWA - BHEK -
revenue, profit or loss, assets and EERBENHERE)
liabilities (continued)

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BHEF T
Liabilities =N

Reportable segment liabilities EIE+::5:x1 974X 703,716 746,929
Elimination of inter-segment payables 73 ZB [ FE{TFIE 2 K 88 (9,196) (70,260)
694,520 676,669
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE 11,731 4,742

Unallocated head office and ROWmZBARR
corporate liabilities TEERB 20,925 19,816
Consolidated total liabilities nREeBaes 727,176 701,227

() Geographical information (o) HEER

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of (i) the reportable
segment’s revenue from external customers; and (ii)
the Group’s leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and goodwill and other
non-current assets (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided
or the goods delivered. The geographical location
of the leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment is based on the physical location of the
assets, in the case of other non-current assets, the
location of operations and in the case of intangible
assets and goodwill, the location of the operation to
which they are allocated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Segment Reporting (continued) 4. DEIHKE @)
(c) Geographical information (continued) (0 HEEZRE)
2019 2018
—E-nE ZE-N\E
Hong Kong ~ Mainland HongKong  Mainland
and Macau China Total and Macau China Total
BEREM  PEAE it BARRM  wEAE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr  BEFn  BETn  A¥Tn BEFTnT BRI
Revenue from external HAEPZBA
customers 746,543 4,569,211 5,315,754 721,729 4,651,402 5,373,131
Specified non-current assets EEFEREEE 83,764 640,901 724,665 84,687 599,186 683,873
Revenue 5. WA

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out
on pages 225 to 227.

Revenue represents the amounts receivable for the goods
sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts,
value added tax and other related taxes to external
customers as well as rental income.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products or service lines is as follows:

APAH—BREERAT > EEEH
BRAAIMEBEKFEIRNRE2-EESE
2278 o

BWARKEEEXRBBRAETHIE
F o HERiTH - B ER N E AR IR
HVEUERR - BARMEE WA o

BEIEERAMBIBZREETFER
HBAZIZ T

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BEFT
Revenue from contracts with customers EBHEHRELEAETHE
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEAZRBEEFSENEBA
Disaggregated by major products or REEEERBRBEE D
service lines
- Sales of goods - HEER 5,315,754 5,373,131
Revenue from other sources HAWARKIR
Rental income HEWA 451 1,142
5,316,205 5,374,273

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method. Under this method, the
comparative information is not restated and was prepared
in accordance with HKAS 18 (see note 2(c)(ii)).

Hat . AEBURFEETEAEREMRETR
HRBEENETRS - REZS
F o EBERFTEY  LREES
FHPERIE+ SRR (RIFE2(0) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

contracts to manage its foreign currency risk exposures

during the year.

MIE(EB)ERAR | T NFFHR

Revenue (continued) 5. LI&A(%)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers BRWAEREERBETSE D 2RE
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographical EFEEREBUA D B R M EE4@) R4+
markets is disclosed in notes 4(a) and 4(c) respectively. WEE o
During the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, there was BEZZE-—hERZZE-NERA=1+
no single external customer that contributed 10% or more BIEFE  AEEREESSEEENN
of the Group's total revenue from external customers. ARAKEHINEFARANBED ZTH
B—RF o
Other Income 6. HAUA
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Sales of scrapped materials HERER 497 502
Income from food supply reservation RBmtERERA 8,181 8,449
Income from insurance compensation RESEEEIRA 32 961
Net losses on disposal of property, HEVE  BERREZ
plant and equipment FEE (66) (497)
Net loss on disposal of an available-for-sale HEAMHHELREE
financial asset FEE - (7)
Interest income on financial assets BEEATTESREEZ
measured at amortised cost FEWA 27,250 24,601
Net exchange gains/(losses) BE 5 F e (B518) 1,070 (455)
Net realised and unrealised losses on TTESRTIECEEREAE
derivative financial instruments (note) BRER (M) (3,327) (542)
Net unrealised loss on club membership S ABIRFER (152) -
Net gain on liquidation of a joint venture  HiB A BE8E 2 Fik - 206
Government grants income (note 18(a)) BT BRI (BifaF18(a)) 7,766 -
Others Hith 2,451 3,206
43,702 36,424
Note: The Group entered into various foreign exchange forward Kzt . REBRERZ LT EFIIEREES

B - LEEAmENEEaR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. BRBAIEF

BRBADER SR GTA) THI&E

2019 2018
—EB-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BYFT BT T
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRK(BEESMHE
emoluments — note 9) —KaE9)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —I% - - HEeREMER 357,547 338,932
— Share-based payment expenses/ -BREXTFEA(BE)
(forfeiture), net 362 (5,641)
— Contribution to defined contribution — EEEMHFRIRET B 2 HER
retirement plans 28,971 27,320
386,880 360,611
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEEN <
— Audit services —E R 1,755 1,725
- Tax and other services — TR 5 R E A AR AL 253 199
2,008 1,924
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE
— Leasehold land and property, —-HETHRYE - BE
plant and equipment RE&E 57,187 57,351
— Intangible assets —EREE 4,599 4,599
61,786 61,950
Net exchange (gains)/losses BE 5% (W) B8 (1,070) 455
Loss allowance recognised/(reversed) B SRR 2 EiaikE
for trade receivables R (EHE) 228 (293)
Impairment losses recognised for property, #1% - =R EREZRE
plant and equipment EiamR - 1,606
Operating lease rental of properties REREMENHESER 6,146 4,108
Cost of inventories (note 15(b)) FERA(HIZE150)) 4,161,761 4,243,311
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE=ZE—NAFAB=+HILEE

The Group participates in pension schemes organised by
the PRC government whereby the Group is required to pay
annual contributions at rates ranging from 13% to 16%
(2018: 13% to 20%) of the standard wages determined by
the relevant authorities in the PRC during the year ended 30
June 2019.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and an
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance Scheme (the
“ORSO Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme and ORSO scheme are
defined contribution retirement schemes administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(2018: HK$30,000). Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 10% and 5% of the employees’ relevant
income respectively. Contributions to the schemes vest
immediately. Save for the above schemes, the Group has
no other material obligation for payment of retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.

AEBEZHEPEBFABNENRSS
2Bl AEEREBEZZE-AEAX
B=+HIEFEERERTEEBHERR
EEEETEAEE  R13%E16%
(ZZE—)\F : 13%E20%) WL BIEEH
FERKRSMHR -

AEERREER B CGRFIMEDESHERA)
MR BUGG) ARIBEE B (ERE
&G B AT REA 2 BERESIMEA
Bt E(MRELTE ) MB RN
Eo-mESEE - EHAEHREKRS
T8 BN ZERABE - RIBETE
258 AEEREESBAMQZTE
EHEERNMEETBERAS% 2HK - M
BRAWA EBRBS ABH30,000T(=F
— \E : j8%30,0007T) ° RIBEREERIK
TE AKEREES NS EEHRES
EELEEREEBBWA10% 5% Z
HER o EErEMEH N HFINGES
BREAETBIZN  REBER AR LR
LN E A E RN R RREE ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

8. Taxation

170

(a)

8. MIH
Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) MHEcEFERZBES
loss represents:
2019 2018
—EB-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ZAREFHIE-FERE
Provision for the year REFERHE 4,022 3,042
Under/(over)-provision in respect of FEEZTR(BEE)
prior years & 11 (169)
4,033 2,873
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong RERE - FBLUIN
Provision for the year REERE 48,244 58,174
Over-provision in respect of prior years X < BEERE (1,220) (783)
47,024 57,391
Deferred tax (note 19) EERE (f1aE19)
Origination and reversal of ERMERENEE
__temporary differences e A1
58,052 64,683

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the respective
estimated assessable profits of the companies within
the Group operating in Hong Kong during the year.

Taxation outside Hong Kong represents income
tax charge on the estimated taxable profits of
certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
and Macau, calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective regions.

All entities engaged in the primary processing
of agricultural products in Mainland China are
exempted from PRC corporate income tax (“CIT").
As a result, the profits from flour mill operations
are exempted from CIT for the years ended 30 June
2019 and 2018.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to CIT tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%).
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BEBEDRIEFRAMGTERE
RAIREZE16.5% (=2 —\F :
16.5%)FT12 ©

BB UM IR 1S A i B A BE AR
PIAE& 28 TH B2 R fhEHE
AR RZER 2 HEEE
HIBLIASTH ©

FBEETBEAREEERERDM
Tee¥ERETEEERE
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Taxation (continued) 8. *EIE(/,%)
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) MNEeEERZBES: (&)

(b)

loss represents: (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on any dividends distributable
by its subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b)
profit at applicable tax rates:

RIBPECEMRSES L @I
BEEREEERRENRPE K
BERMY2HNELENRE B
10%FENH - BEREKAEE=-Z
ZNFE-—A—BRER AEH
R-ZEZLtF+-A=+—H%E
FREE ZBF o fisf B K BEEL b
BREEMBALIEEZBES
BREZRRTREEENTES
B AEBMERLEEA5% ° F
I NEBEMZER B KME
RIWHBARM —ZEENF—
B—RARELZBAMDIK 2R
BHRFENH -

BIEX HES R REARE
ZHBRAT ¢

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEF T JBEEF T
Profit before taxation FRELBDER] 398,128 391,062
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RERNE T e =R
calculated at the rates applicable to profits ~ StERBIARFZ E%
in the tax jurisdictions concerned HiE 101,867 98,986
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses B E R HIRMNE S 2
BB e 2,294 4,098
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEBHRINA NS E (5,746) (1,075)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RFUBRNBIEEE 2
B E 1,097 1,281
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FERRURIEEART LAE
not previously recognised ARBEBE2RETE (196) (3,308)
Effect of tax concessions REER2 (48,974) (48,188)
Over-provision in respect of prior years AFEZBERE (1,209) (952)
Withholding tax on dividend, royalty and HEIER 2B AR E W
entrusted loan interests received and REWRR S - 43R
receivable from PRC subsidiaries AEA BERREHTE
NH 9,039 13,550
Hit (120) 291
Actual tax expenses ERBIER 58,052 64,683
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

8. Taxation (continued) 8. ﬁlﬁ(@w
(c) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of () EEEMBRRETPNEFE
financial position represents: (3
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-)\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for AFEEEBR S EE
the year 4,022 3,042
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax FEEZEERNEH
recoverable relating to prior years B 5 (3,973) (797)
49 2,245
Provision for profits tax outside BB IERE
Hong Kong 13,587 12,641
Tax payables RS E 13,636 14,886
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Directors’ and Senior Executives’ 9. EER SHRITHASM
Emoluments &
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=MS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIEEBCA THEHYEII(MNER
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and (REIRBESFZER) RO
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information E2NWBECEESHEWT -
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:
Basic Estimated
salaries/ Retirement money value
Directors’ schemes  of other Share-hased
fees  Bonuses contributions  benefits  Sub-total  payment 2019
(Note (iv)  (Note (1) (Note (vi) (Note (viii))
58/ B HtER
EShe A HEER fTEEEE Nt REXN ZB-hE
(Hit)  (H) (Hit (i) (i)
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
ABFrn  BETr  BEFn BETn BEFn BEFn BETx
Executive director yrEs
LEUNG Joseph ey 3,830 2,000 18 74 5,922 180 6,102
Non-executive directors HiTEE
KWEK Leng Hai (Note (j) SL8H) - - - - - - -
TANG Hong Cheong (Note (i) WEE () - - - - - - -
WHANG Sun Tze B 230 - - - 230 - 230
TAN Lim Heng e 230 - - - 230 - 230
TSANG Cho Tai (Note (i) L% (L) 12 - - = 12 - 12
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
L Kai Yiu, Anthony EH0R 340 - - - 340 - 340
AU Chee Ming (Note (i) BRI () 34 - - - 34 = 34
HUANG Lester Garson, B2 BZHEE
SBS, J.P. A4t 320 - - - 320 - 320
Year ended 30 June 2019 HE-Z-NE
ARSTHLEE 5,386 2,000 18 74 7478 180 7658
BIE(REB)BRAR [ ZE—NLFFH 173
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

9. Directors’ and Senior Executives’ 9. EER =& TH A S

Emoluments (continved) €@
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) E=E=M£(E)
Basic Estimated
salaries/ Retirement  money value
Directors' schemes  of other Share-based
fees  Bonuses contributions benefits  Sub-total  payment 2018
(Note (iv) — (Note (1) (Note (vif)) (Note (viii))
e/ Bk BHENN
EE2ik A HEER fHEREE Nt REXR ZB-N\E
(i) (W) (it i) (Wi vii))

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
ERTr  ERTr  ERTn  ERTn ERTn  ERTn ERTx

Executive director yrEs

LEUNG Joseph ey 3,735 2,100 18 70 5923 (2,544) 3,379
Non-executive directors HiTEE

KWEK Leng Hai (Note (j) SL8H) - - - - - - -
TANG Hong Cheong (Note (j) WEE () - - - - _ _ _
WHANG Sun Tze B 230 - - - 230 - 230
TAN Lim Heng e 230 - - - 230 - 230
TSANG Cho Tai b 300 - - - 300 - 300

Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES

L0 Kai Yiu, Anthony EhR 340 - - - 340 - 340
AU Chee Ming E&H 280 - - - 280 - 280
HUANG Lester Garson, ERi RZNEE
SBS, 1. KP4t 320 - . - 320 . 320
Year ended 30 June 2018 BZ-2-N%
ABZTALEE 5,435 2,100 18 70 163 (2,544) 5,079
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(a)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

No directors’ fees were paid or be payable to any
salaried directors employed by group companies
of Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad
("HLCM"), the Company’s ultimate holding
company, for the years ended 30 June 2019 and
2018.

Mr. Tsang Cho Tai has retired as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 13
November 2018 after the conclusion of the 2018
Annual General Meeting of the Company (the
“2018 AGM").

Mr. Au Chee Ming was appointed as a member of
the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
of the Company with effect from 13 November
2018 after the conclusion of the 2018 AGM.

Basic salaries/directors’ fees — The amounts paid
and payable to non-executive directors were
directors’ fees. The amount paid and payable to
executive director was basic salaries.

Bonuses paid/payable for the year were
performance-related.

There was no arrangement under which a director
had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

These represent the estimated money value of
medical insurance, life insurance and employees’
compensation.

These represent the estimated money value of
share options granted to the director under the
Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 2(q)(ii) and,
in accordance with that policy, include adjustments
to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to
vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted are
disclosed under note 22.

MIE(EB)ERAR | T NFFHR

EE=M=E)

Hret -

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

BE-Z-NER-B-N\F
RAZTHLFERMEESH
2EXNREZFFREAT
2 B ¥ 1%2 % A T Hong Leong
Company (Malaysia) Berhad
(THLCM D &EE A R PREE A K
SHES

BHEZRLER-FT-N\F+—
AT=RET2ARQT=F
—“NFRRBFFE(=%F
—NERFAFES DERR
REANBFMTES B -

EBEALER-Z-NF+—
AT=R8T2=2-N\ER
REFREEEREBEREAL
DNAEZEEUREREERER
BEEME -

BN/ BRzEHE EE2H
T-FBTESUEREES
HIWE - MITESUFHEH A
U ER

AEEZEMN AR
REEE -

W] L EEHRAEZHNR
WEREB =R 2 BE o

ERERBERRR - ASRE
RIESRENME SEEE -

EHERRBEARRDRORE
REETAIRTES 2 RODERE
W EETEEREE - ZLERDR
BREEEDRERAEBRR
EX AR5 (F5 R HEE2()
(i A) FT 18 B9 & =T B M 5
5 BREERBACEHENR
ETE  RIEZBERmE RN
RIFEFHRIEER o

ZEFEHRABZOEEEMRN
R ERDHE 2 RRHE
22NfE IR EE
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Directors’ and Senior Executives’ 9.
Emoluments (ontinueq)

(b)

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
one (2018: one) is a director whose emolument is
disclosed in note 9(a) above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other four (2018: four)

EERSRITHAEM
€@

(b) ESRANES

BEBBFHESALSH B
£(ZB—N\F: —B)NAAT
TEE EHEERMEEF
W o EANE (=B —\F :

individuals are as follows: BIALTZBEWMT -
2019 2018
=F-NF —
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other benefits HFe R EMER 9,170 8,821
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 2,611 2,540
Retirement schemes contributions BIRETEIHERR 67 72
11,848 11,433
Share-based payment expenses/ REZRER
(forfeiture), net (#m) 140 (1,221)
11,988 10,212
The numbers of individuals whose emolument falls e T IIBERNABNT :
within the following bands are:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
HKS$ B% T A& AE
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 = 2
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 2
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 3 _
4 4
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10. Dividends

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

10. ®RE

Dividends payable to equity shareholders () FAESGEQAFARRERE (N
of the Company (excluding the amount BRESFARERITHRAER
paid to shares held by the Group under the NRBESRBRETEEZR
ESOP reserve) attributable to the year HBHEEE)
2019 2018
—2-NnEF —=-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
Interim dividend declared and paid of HHIRESRKRENER
HK$0.14 (2018: HK$0.13) EZERB014T (=F
per ordinary share —N\F : B¥0.137m) 33,223 30,799
Final dividend proposed after HRBEIRE 2 RERE
the end of the reporting period of BREBRABE030T
HK$0.30 (2018: HK$0.27) (ZZ—N\F : B
per ordinary share 0.277%) 71,147 63,875
104,370 94,674

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders (b)
of the Company (excluding the amount
paid to shares held by the Group under the

RIBEHLBRBEIRE 2 RBR
ERBEMEAERERLER
R—EEME-

FREME A HIAT— @K
FEERNAQXFARRKE (H
BRENTFAREERITRAER

ESOP reserve) attributable to the previous RBEFRFBETEEZR
financial year, approved and paid during ML)
the year
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Final dividend in respect of the previous & R8AT— B8 BraE EEH#
financial year, approved and paid REMSHREARE -
during the year, of HK$0.27 (2018: BREBERBR.27T
HK$0.23) per ordinary share (ZZ—N\F B
0.237T) 63,731 54,149
MIB(EB)AERAR | ZT—hFFRK 177
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

: (=
11. Earnings per Share 1. BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BEBRELRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based ERERERTIRERQRFBRR
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders FE{5 5% Kl 78 £ 340,076,000 7T (=
of the Company of HK$340,076,000 (2018: Z—\F : #B¥326,379,0007T)
HK$326,379,000) and the weighted average ERAFEFERNCRITEER ZM
number of 236,811,000 (2018: 236,262,000) REF19%8236,811,000( =& — N\
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as £ 1236,262,000) REBIRETE ©
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
‘000 ‘000
F F
Issued ordinary shares at FHERTEER
beginning of yegr ... 243,354 243,354
Effect of shares purchased in FFEERE2Z BN
prior years % (8,849) (7,164)
Effect of shares purchased in IREE S 2 B ALY
current year 4= (638) (911)
©487) | (8,075).
Effect of share options exercised in FEETEZ2ROAERE
prior years e Z 2,070 -
Effect of share options exercised in REETEZRDBIEE
current year & 874 983
S 2,944 983
Weighted average number of FREBRMAEFLIH
ordinary shares at end of year 236,811 236,262
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

11. Earnings per Share (continved)

1. BREBN @

(b)

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of HK$340,076,000 (2018:
HK$326,379,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 237,491,000 (2018:
238,120,000) after adjusting the effect of deemed
issue of shares under the Company’s share option
scheme, calculated as follows:

(b)

BREERF

ERBESEIDREAQXTAR
3R FE 15 73 A 78 %5 340,076,000 JT
(ZZ—\F : #%326,379,000
TC) RE B RN 19 R
237,491,000 ( = & — N\ &F
238,120,000) BRE MR ZERIE
ATz ROAEETERTE
BRI EEHFARTE -

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
‘000 ‘000
5F =
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FREERINEFLIIE
shares at end of year 236,811 236,262
Effect of deemed issue of shares under {BRFEEREARN T ZIRMD
the Company’s share option scheme REBRETTERTRON
% 680 1,858
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FRZEIR (EE) I0FE
shares (diluted) at end of year SEHE 237,491 238,120
BEIE(EB)BRRAA | ZE—LFFR 179



12. Leasehold Land and Property,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

12. HEXTHRYE - BE

. a
Plant and Equipment REE1E
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Plant,
buildings in land and equipment,
Hong Kong buildings furniture
and leasehold outside Construction  and motor
improvements ~ Hong Kong in progress vehicles Total
BAHE BE -
ITHREF BEINEE EGR
REB  THRET EBIR  BARKE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BEFT BETT BEFT BB
Cost: 7N
At 1 July 2017 RZE—+FE+A-AH 93,338 1,007,607 28,670 852,592 1,982,207
Additions hn 1,196 5,726 45813 24,996 77,731
Transfer between categories PERER 18,024 - (30,598) 12,574 -
Disposals HE - (3,651) - (11,525) (15,176)
Exchange adjustments EHA% - 21,338 (551) 21,308 42,095
At 30 June 2018 RZE-\ExA=TH 112,558 1,031,020 43,334 899,945 2,086,857
At 1 July 2018 RZE-NELA—H 112,558 1,031,020 43,334 899,945 2,086,857
Additions 1 3,905 4,921 81,912 25,983 116,721
Transfer between categories DR 3,704 - (11,459) 7,755 -
Disposals HE - (409) - (13,222) (13,631)
Exchange adjustments ERAR - (30,462) (2,320) (30,597) (63,379)
At 30 June 2019 RZB-NERA=1A 120,167 1,005,070 111,467 889,864 2,126,568
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

12. HEXTHRYE - BE

12. Leasehold Land and Property,

- .
Plant and Equipment (continued) EEZE e
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Plant,
buildings in land and equipment,
Hong Kong buildings furniture
and leasehold outside Construction  and motor
improvements ~ Hong Kong in progress vehicles Total
EAHE BE
1hREF FARUNME EGR
REE  1HRER ERIR  BARKE B3
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Accumulated depreciation and ZHREREH
amortisation:
At 1 July 2017 RZB—-tF+A-H 36,987 505,827 - 600,848 1,143,662
Charge for the year REEBBERITE 1,671 28,045 - 27,635 57,351
Written back on disposals HEXRRE - (1,051) - (8,077) (9,128)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 15,739 - 14,047 29,786
At 30 June 2018 RIE-NEXA=TH 38,658 548,560 - 634,453 1,221,671
At 1 July 2018 RZE-NFLA-H 38,658 548,560 - 634,453 1,221,671
Charge for the year KEEBERINE 2,294 24,032 - 30,861 57,187
Written back on disposals HEZRRE - (295) - (10,236) (10,531)
Exchange adjustments ERHR - (24,504) - (21,000) (45,504)
At 30 June 2019 RIE-NERAZTH 40,952 547,793 - 634,078 1,222,823
Impairment loss: BEES :
At 1July 2017 RZE—+E+A-A 34,765 165,410 - - 200,175
Impairment losses HEEE - = - 1,606 1,606
Exchange adjustments ERA% - - - (4) (4)
At 30 June 2018 RZB-NEAA=tA 34,765 165,410 - 1,602 201,777
At 1July 2018 RIE-N\E+A-H 34,765 165,410 - 1,602 201,777
Written back on disposals HERER - - - (1,549) (1,549)
Exchange adjustments B - - = (53) (53)
At 30 June 2019 B=E-hExBE=TH 34,765 165,410 - - 200,175
Net book value: EHFE
At 30 June 2019 W=E-nExRE=1H 44,450 291,867 111,467 255,786 703,570
At 30 June 2018 RIE-NERA=TH 39,135 317,050 43,334 263,890 663,409
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Leasehold Land and Property, 12.
Plant and Equipment (continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2018, certain idle
machineries and equipment were considered to be
obsolescent. An impairment loss of HK$1,606,000 was
recognised in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. During the year ended 30 June
2019, no impairment loss was recognised.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, additions to
equipment financed by new finance leases were
HK$202,000 (2018: HK$436,000). At 30 June 2019, the
net book value of property, plant and equipment held
under finance leases amounted to HK$489,000 (2018:
HK$668,000).

HELHEWE  BE
N & )

REBEZZE—-N\ERA=ZTHLEE
ETHEMRERRBEHRAL2HEMER
B ZBEESEAEY1,606000TIEE
FFTARGEBERITHREAIAN - RE
EZE-NERAZTHLEEE 18R
BRRREESE -

REBE=ZE-AERB=1THLEE "
el 2R ERERERE HBY202,000
JT(ZZE—\F : B¥436,00078) ° R
—E-AEXRNB=1H - UREHER
EHYWE BERIZEREAFERBY
489,000t (=& — \F : &¥ 668,000
JT) °

Intangible Assets and Goodwill 13. B EEREE
Goodwill Trademarks ERP Total
TEER
mE [Ed HEEY a5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETFT BT BETFTT
Cost: B
At 1 July 2017, RZZE—t&E+A—-R"
30 June 2018, —Z-N\EXA=tH-
1 July 2018 and —E-N\FtA-HEK
30 June 2019 —E-hERA=TH 14,714 39,970 22,992 77,676
Accumulated amortisation: ESg F N
At 1July 2017 N-E—t&+A—H - 39,970 6,372 46,342
Charge for the year TEEHHE - - 4,599 4,599
At 30 June 2018 RZZE-NEAXA=1H - 39,970 10,971 50,941
At 1 July 2018 N=Z-\E+A—H = 39,970 10,971 50,941
Charge for the year TEEHH - - 4,599 4,599
At 30 June 2019 RZE-AEAA=1H = 39,970 15,570 55,540
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

13. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

(continued)

13.

BREERBEE g

Goodwill Trademarks ERP Total
TEER
BE B HEEY &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BETT BT BT T
Impairment loss: REEE
At 1 July 2017, RZZE—tFtHA—-H"
30 June 2018, —E-N\FRA=TH"
1 July 2018 and “E-N\FtA-HEK
30 June 2019 —E-NFEXRA=1H 12,539 - - 12,539
Net book value: BREHE
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NEAA=1H 2,175 - 7,422 9,597
At 30 June 2018 R-ZE-NEAB=1H 2,175 - 12,021 14,196

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering the financial
year ending 30 June 2020. The key assumption of the
cash flow projections are the estimated weighted average
growth rate and the discount rate used. Cash flows for
the periods thereafter are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%) which
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 14.3% (2018:
16.2%) which reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
CGU.

The results of the tests undertaken as at 30 June 2019
and 30 June 2018 indicated no further recognition of
impairment loss was necessary.

MIE(EB)ERAR | T NFFHR

AEEZHBHEERACT ARGEEER
[THREM A -

BERECREELENZRERNR

BEZROSERBERABIE0 - HE
REeELBENMNAIEKRESELRIEER
BEE  ZEEFAZRERETRER
ERBREEEMREBE_Z-_ZF A
ESTHLMBREENTRESTE - HFH
HWEEZBRFZABETMELGERERFT
BR - NZHBENRSREMERNTE
SHNFEE R R3% (ZF—)\F :3%)
TRARESEEENKEEENREBT
HIBRR - BHEREFEAKRBAITRE
143%(ZF—N\F : 16.2%)#HR - Wk
MEBARSEESEVNISERRE -

RZBE-NERNA=Z+THR=ZZ—N\F
NB=+RETZARERBARBEAE
HE—DRERIE 2 ER o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

14. Available-for-sale Financial

Assets and Other Non-Current

14. fHHBESREERE
fIERBEE

Assets
30 June 1 July 30 June
2019 2018 2018
—E-NFE B\ CE-N\F§
ABA=tH +B—HB R<A=*H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
HiF BYETF T BETF T BETF T
Financial assets measured CREERBHERATE
at amortised cost
Other receivables, deposits and HiEWRD - BeRk
prepayments FBIE 10,583 6,268 6,268
Financial assets measured SREERAFEE (i)
at FVPL FSFABHEE
Club membership S 915 1,067 -
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE (i)
assets
Club membership, at cost SEREA) = - 342
Impairment loss BEEE - - (165)
- - 177
11,498 7,335 6,445
Note: e
(i) Available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified @ RIZB-NFLtA-REREREE

to financial assets measured at FVPL upon the initial
application of HKFRS 9 at 1 July 2018 (see note 2(c)(i)).

MBMELNFENRR > THEES
MEEEN I BREMEERLFE
Bt ABRETE (RME200)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

15. £

15. Inventories

(a)

(b)

Inventories in the consolidated statement

(@) REEHBURRRZFESR

of financial position comprise: =1
2019 2018
—E-NF —E2-N\EF
HK$'000 HK$°000
JBEFIT BT T
Raw materials B 394,372 437,284
Work in progress ¥R m 41,150 34,189
Finished goods B @ 165,415 142,534
Inventories in transit TEER 1,212 782
Packing materials R 23,694 25,320
625,843 640,109

The analysis of amount of inventories

(b) REEEBRERAR/AILZE

recognised as an expense and included in ESHEIMWT :
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
is as follows:
2019 2018
—ET-NE —E-N\EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZREE 4,157,998 4,240,112
Write-down of inventories BFERE 3,763 3,199
4,161,761 4,243,311
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

. o] =+
16. Trade and Other Receivables 16. E5 R EHMAEWERR

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BEF T

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance MR EERE - S 5 EWERR 349,530 346,523
Derivative financial instruments: TEsmI A :

— Foreign exchange forward contracts —HNEIRERE TR 47 877

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EfthfEURERER « 1RE RFEFIE 43,707 37,701

393,284 385,101

186

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Aging Analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis
of trade receivables (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

FBEEZKRAEMEBEVIRRKIIEHRE—F
AW ERER R/

AR 2 HT
REBEHEAR  REBZABRANERE

BRERZEZRUIRNZREIM(E
STAB S REMBRERF)MT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\EF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

Within 3 months =@EAR 346,398 342,085
3 to 6 months =ZXEA 2,751 3,375
Over 6 months NEA B 381 1,063
349,530 346,523

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 23(a).

FEBZFERRRES BURREE
HIEEREEFINHEE23() °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

17. Cash and Cash Equivalents and 17. BEe R B eSHERHEM

Other Cash Flow Information HEREER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () RERBFSEHEEE:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Deposits with banks IRITEHER 1,050,192 867,102
Cash at bank and on hand RITEARRERS 267,735 295,044
Cash and cash equivalents in FEMBERREKZ
the consolidated statement of RekHEEHE
financial position 1,317,927 1,162,146
Fixed deposit held at bank with FEERISAEA=EA
original maturity over three months LA E AR ITEERTE R = (50,000)
Restricted bank balances BRRFI 2 RITHEER = (2,924)
Cash and cash equivalents in the FEReRERZEER
consolidated statement of cash flows BE%E 1,317,927 1,109,222
Cash at bank carries interest at floating rates based RITER_RREBESARITERZ
on daily bank deposits rates. Deposits with banks FER R E MR o $R1T
include time deposits which are matured within EHEREBRERAERIDA=E
three months and earn interest at the respective AREH  URREBZEHE
short term deposit rates, and fixed deposit with FARR=MEB UL LN ERER
original maturity over three months. BRERA S, o
As at 30 June 2018, the restricted bank balances of RZE-—NERA=THERH
HK$2,924,000 were funds pledged with a financial ZIRAT 4 ER 7E152,924,0007T
institution in the PRC for letter of credit. ZETRAREBERFHEIRAZ
SRITERBAE 257 -
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17. Cash and Cash Equivalents and
Other Cash Flow Information
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

17. BERBSEEREM
HEREBER @)

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as

cash flows from financing activities.

BMEEBEE 2RBEYHR

TRANASEREETHIEE
ZEEEE  ETEERERFE
Re8y  BMEFTDHMELEZR

BEHARERER

RBARRBEE

RESRAEERERERER
RO BERBEFTH2RERE -

Obligations under
finance leases

mEE AR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 July WEBA—AH 669 505
Changes from financing cash flows: RERELREBSH :
Net decrease in obligations under mERERE 2 FRD
finance leases (346) (282)
Exchange adjustments XA (11) 10
Other changes: Hih B8 :
New finance leases (note 12) FEIzmERE
(BaE12) 202 436
At 30 June WANA=+H 514 669
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

18. Trade and Other Payables and 18. EZRHMEMNERMRK

Contract Liabilities cEAE
| -~ 1=
(a) Trade and other payable (a) EFZRHMEMRR
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging RIREHALB  REBEAH2
analysis of trade payables (which are included in B I EMAERMZERRDIT(EFTA
trade and other payables), based on the invoice date, B REMEBMARIOMT ¢
is as follows:
30 June 1 July 30 June
2019 2018 2018

“E-NFE ZB-\§ ZB-N\F
~A=1+H +tA—-B RA=+H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
izt BEFT BEF T BEFT

Within 3 months =@AR 356,051 334,927 334,927
More than 3 months =EAUL 7,611 3,831 3,831
Trade payables B S RAIRR 363,662 338,758 338,758
Deposits received gize (i) 8,909 8,788 37,715
Other payables and accruals ~ EENERAREER 285,547 280,567 280,567
Deferred income EREA (iif) 14,945 23,836 23,836

Derivative financial instruments: T4 4RI A :
- Foreign exchange forward — —/MEREIEE

contracts - 54 54
673,063 652,003 680,930

Notes: HtaE -

(i) As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, the (i) RERE B EIREEAE
advances received amounted to HK$28,927,000 as THE%E - HBH28,927,0007T
at 1 July 2018 are classified as contract liabilities ZHERERR=E—N\FE+tA
and disclosed in note 18(b). —BEHH>BEEREE I

RMIEE18(b) A EE -

(ii) All of the trade and other payables are expected to (i) FIEE S K EME[IRRIITE
be settled or recognised as income within one year SFHE—FARGEAREZ RN
or are repayable on demand. A e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

18. Trade and Other Payables and
Contract Liabilities (continued)

190

(a)

Trade and other payable (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

Pursuant to the relocation agreement executed
on 16 November 2016 between the Grain
Bureau of YiXing City and Jiangsu Lam Soon
Flour Mills Company Limited (“JSLSF"”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, government
compensation will be paid to JSLSF to compensate
the relocation of a flour mill plant in connection
with the construction of the new plant on the
relocated land, including among others, acquisition
of property, plant and equipment and associated
costs relating to the relocation. It is estimated
that a total cash relocation compensation of
HK$68,453,000 will be compensated to JSLSF with
the full amount to be received by the financial year
ending 30 June 2020.

After offsetting the total estimated costs and
expenses relating to the relocation, the remaining
balance is accounted for as “deferred income”
within “trade and other payables” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
recognised evenly in profit or loss over the assets
useful lives in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(t)(iv).

Up to 30 June 2019, government compensation
of HK$21,419,000 in relation to the relocation
was received. During the year, expenditure
of HK$7,766,000 (2018: Nil) relating to the
plant relocation project had been incurred,
a corresponding amount of government
compensation was then credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss (see
note 6).

18. EZRHEMENKRMRK

cEEEw

(@) EZRHEAMEMRRGE)
Mgt - (4)

(ii) BEFETERFEAQATE
BB B IE B AR
AFOIHREIEEY A=
—ARNE+— A+ NBEETHR
BiE  BUTHESIAFI
HEEmMLEEEENZE
B L FEEHTH - 8
EREYE BEMREUAR
HpBEENHEEER o &
STREMBHEASTEABY
68,453,0007T % @)1 8% ma B AR
BMELEE  IRBE=2=
ZEXNA=THILBBREES
2HRBZIRERHE -

HERARBHEM (G 28
RARBXE » BREEFSH
RN RE [ B 5 R A
BRFX AR ERLWA - I
2B 201 (v) T8 2 S FT I
EMRE  REERAFRA
PP A B RER o

BEZ-Z—-NEX~A=1+HE
U 3 38 5 21,419,000 T =2 &
WBERIMNEARHE - FA
EECHEIBEE BN H
ABIET 766,000TT(ZFE—N
F8) HESEBEE
EBESFAGEEZR(EH
56) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

18. Trade and Other Payables and 18. EZ RHMEMNERMRK

Contract Liabilities (continued) éﬁﬁ%(ﬂ{g‘)
(b) Contract liabilities b) EREAE
30 June 1 July 30 June
2019 2018 2018

—E-hE ZE-N\F ZEB-N\F
AH=1H tB—H AR~A=tH
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEF T BEFT

Advances received for goods FHERREKRER
to be sold 28,232 28,927 -

Contract liabilities represent receipts in advances for cREEREHEERBAKRER
sales of goods, giving rise to contract liabilities until EEIABAZAMEELEZERE
revenue is recognised. f& e

Included in the contract liabilities as at 1 July 2018, R-ZZE-N\FtHA—HWEEE
a balance of HK$28,383,000 was recognised as BEY  EREAFEBRIBRA
revenue in the current year. A78%28,383,0007T ©
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R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

19. Deferred Taxation 19. EERHIE
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (a) COEREEREEEREE
recognised
(i) Movement of each component of (i) FEEHEEEREMEEE
deferred tax assets and liabilities BE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/ RESUHR IR ER
liabilities recognised in the consolidated ZEERIE(EE) &fF
statement of financial position and the HERFEAZESFHMNT :
movements during the year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related Undistributed
Deferred tax arising from: EEREELH depreciation  Provisions  Tax losses profits Total
REAHA
BEEENE A HHER  AOENE ait
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
At 1 July 2017 RZE—+E+A-H 1977 (69) (7,591) - 317
(Credited)/charged to REREREGIA)/
consolidated statement of I (473286))
profit or loss (note 8(a)) (506) 31 3,564 1,330 4,419
At 30 June 2018 R=F-\ERA=1H 7471 (38) (4,027) 1,330 4736
At 1July 2018 RZE-NEtH-A 7411 (38) (4,027) 1,330 4,736
Charged/(credited) to RERBEENR/
consolidated statement of (3t A)(Af2813))
profit or loss (note 8(a)) 1,096 (19) (735) 6,653 6,995
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NERAZTH 8,567 (57) (4,762) 7,983 11,731
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

19. Deferred Taxation (ontinved)

19. IRZERHIE @)

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities () ECERREZREEERAE
recognised (continued) (&)
(i)  Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) HEHBEMRRRZEE
statement of financial position
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Net deferred tax assets recognised  FAMRE BITSARIR TR
in the consolidated statement of BHERZIELER IS
financial position FEE = (6)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised HR4r& BRI R
in the consolidated statement of R 2 IEALERIE
financial position FEE 11,731 4,742
11,731 4,736
(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (b) FRERELEHEEE

At 30 June 2019, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China amounted
to HK$643,151,000 (2018: HK$386,074,000).
A deferred tax liability has been recognised in
respect of undistributed profits of HK$159,660,000
(2018: HK$26,600,000) where there are
planned distributions from subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future. No deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$483,491,000 (2018: HK$359,474,000) as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed by these

subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.
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R=ZZE-NEA~A=1+H ' B
AEEN A KE 2K B A RR
PTEHFAENEREEER B
643,151,000c (Z&E— \F : &
#£386,074,0007T) ° B AT K
R 2 B F M A 78 ¥ 159,660,000
T (ZF—/\F : B¥%26,600,000
7C) > WEEIR A R KRR S IKER
o Bt —EEEHBEAEDH
He2 o HRZALD T A IEHZEH
BAAKNKREBER » WERER
A RRRZEMBLRRATBES
FEDIRBRA > FRAMLARFERT
K78 #5483,491,000t (ZE— N\
£ : B#359,474,0007C) KD B
FEREBERBELERIESRS -
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

19. Deferred Taxation (continved

(c)

20. Share Capital

194

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. IELERHIE =)

Deferred tax assets not recognised () FERELEHEEE
At 30 June 2019, the Group had unused tax losses of RZE-NEA~A=1+H &&
HK$285,042,000 (2018: HK$274,440,000) available B B 285,042,000 Tt (= &
for offset against future taxable profits. A deferred — N5 : #B¥274,440,0007T) AJ
tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax A $0 R 2 FE R B R R B9 F 7%
losses of HK$28,861,000 (2018: HK$24,404,000). BE - EPMEZHIEEIEERT
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in B#528,861,000T (=& — )\ F :
respect of the remaining HK$256,181,000 (2018: 7B H524,404,0007T) FIEZER IEE
HK$250,036,000) due to the unpredictability B o Fl&kn 81 256,181,000 7T
of future taxable profit streams. Included in (ZZ—\F : #%250,036,000
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$38,543,000 JTU) ARNNER  BHKRXE
(2018: HK$38,695,000) that will expire within mAM AR TER M - BB R
five years. Other losses can be carried forward BEBRAABELEHREBEBEE - 3
indefinitely. S RERNBREBTERYE
38,543,000t (= F— \F : B
38,695,000 ) B ESRAEER
BIHR o E /&5 18 7] LU IR B it 4
HZH o
At 30 June 2019, the Group had temporary AEBRUEEAE THEL
differences of HK$103,322,000 (2018: WRYE RBERZREBERE
HK$109,717,000) arising from impairment losses BE ZEBEAN-ZE—N&E
of certain leasehold land and property, plant and NRAE=ZTHBAXREEELERE
equipment provided in prior years. No deferred tax 103,322,000t (=& — N\ &
assets have been recognised in respect of these 7 %5 109,717,000 7T ) BY & B 1%
temporary differences due to the unpredictability of EZR - FRARREFNNTAER
taxable profits streams against which the deductible M WAE AR R AR 2R AR R
temporary differences can be utilised in the FRMER UTERZER
foreseeable future. ERELEBIHEE °
20. R
Issued share capital (@) ERITRE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
No. of No. of
shares shares
BRHOEE RpEE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
F EBEFT F BT T
Ordinary shares, issued BE{TREHZE
and fully paid: TER
At 1 July and 30 June RtBR—HE
~NB=TH 243,354 672,777 243,354 672,777
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

20. Share Capltal (continued)

(a)

Issued share capital (continued)

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the
Company do not have a par value.

During the year, the Group purchased its own
ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for the purpose of satisfying the
exercise of share options granted under the Group’s
share option scheme as follows:

20. BRA @)

(a) CBRITRAE)

RIBEB(ATRGIDE1350% » &
ARABEBERTEARHEE -

REERRECRTRODEE
A WATEA RS - RNEBRR G
RBETABARTEBHAR
ZFARARHENEERNT ¢

For the year ended 30 June 2019: BE-ZE-NEAA=1+HILHE
E:
No. of Highest Lowest
shares price paid price paid Aggregate
purchased per share pershare price paid
=5 E0 e81
BB AR A7 BERES BREE =F-Ch
Month/year F,/ A HE BE BE MER
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$’000
F BT BT BT T
August 2018 —E—-N\FENA 38 12.90 12.70 487
September 2018 —Z2-)\FhA 260 12.90 12.54 3,304
October 2018 = )\%+A 158 12.80 12.50 2,002
November 2018 —E2-N\E+—A 99 13.80 12.60 1,287
December 2018 —E2-N\%+=ZH 130 14.28 13.66 1,822
January 2019 —E-NE—A 72 14.60 14.18 1,032
February 2019 —E-NEF=A 35 15.20 14.58 521
March 2019 —E-NEFE=A8 92 15.26 14.78 1,377
April 2019 —ZE-AFWNA 209 16.00 15.10 3,291
May 2019 —E2-h&EHRA 107 16.06 15.50 1,690
June 2019 —E-hEXA 288 15.94 15.46 4,513
1,488 21,326
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20. IR (#)

Issued share capital (continued) (@) CRITHRAEE)
For the year ended 30 June 2018: BEr-—E—NEANA=+HLE
E

No. of Highest Lowest
shares price paid price paid  Aggregate
purchased per share per share price paid

=5 Ch) =5 Ch)
BARG BRE&ES BR&E =55 Ch)
Month/year £/ A% HE BE BE HER
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
F BT BT BEF T
August 2017 —E—+FNA 169 10.80 10.68 1,824
September 2017 —E—tHFAhA 268 10.82 10.70 2,890
October 2017 —Z—tF+A 200 10.90 10.70 2,172
November 2017 —E—tF+-A 200 11.02 10.40 2,171
December 2017 —E—+HF+ZH8 262 10.90 10.60 2,809
January 2018 —E-NE—A 129 11.80 11.20 1,489
February 2018 —Z2—-N\%=A 120 13.00 12.96 1,560
April 2018 —Z2-N\FHmA 175 14.90 14.56 2,581
May 2018 —Z2—-\¥HA 32 15.00 14.72 476
June 2018 —E-NEXA 130 15.04 14.60 1,936
1,685 19,908

The considerations of the purchased shares for the
year ended 30 June 2019 of HK$21,326,000 (2018:
HK$19,908,000) were charged to ESOP reserve.

BE-Z-NEFX~A=1+HL
FEBEARMCHNEBABY
21,326,000 (=& — )\ F . B
19,908,0007T) I EFETHRA B IR
D RIBFET REEMEIBR o

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

As at 30 June 2019, there were 6,197,000 (2018:
6,779,000) ordinary shares acquired and held by the
Group under the ESOP reserve for the purpose of
satisfying the exercise of share options granted to a
director and eligible employees.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

20. Share Capltal (continued)

(b)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing
its equity-debt ratio and cashflow requirements,
taking into account of its future financial obligations
and commitments. For this purpose, the Group
defines equity-debt ratio as the ratio of the total
equity attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company to net debt. Net debt comprises total bank
loans and obligations under finance leases less cash
and cash equivalents.

20. IR (@)

(b)

EXxERE

FEEEREANTIERRRE
RESEEHTFEEE  BBD
7= i &2 AR 7% 5 1 B2 L ok 7 4B A8
HEE  UARBBRASENALE
SRE  tMERSRREMHE
BN AEMAI AR E H R

FEEEBRENHEARBR
A REE  UWERsREH
HBIERT TREHE2ESEEK
FHRHEFNERNRRTRNES
REREZEREGFE  LEEE
BRENSCHERRBELR
)

FEBUERERLERBER
EREBBRNMBEERARE
HEREREAER -BRER
It AEEEERERLRATE
RAERRRREGBERDRFE
BHER - FEHBEARTE
REBMEHERERRERAE

£Ho

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$°000

BEFT BT T

Obligations under finance leases Rl E R ERE 514 669
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W BEERIBESEE (1,317,927) (1,162,146)
Net liquid funds FERBES (1,317,413) (1,161,477)

Total equity attributable to equity AN B R R L AR

shareholders of the Company 2,323,830 2,159,472

Equity-debt ratio R ERE = 100:0 100:0
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

21. Reserves 21. #1E
The Company PN/
Investment Share
Share revaluation option General  Revenue
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
RE RHREE

BA EfRE RE  -REE  LERE #g
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

BETr  ERTn  ERTr ERTn ERTn ERTn

At 1 July 2017 R-E-t&tA-H 672,777 7 10,161 50,000 1,098,338 1,831,269
Profit for the year KEERR - - - - 361979 361,979
Other comprehensive income rEEHpEENRR
for the year
- Transfer to profit or loss on -HETHEESRHER
disposal of an available-for-sale mEgzERkR
financial asset - 7 - - - 7
Total comprehensive income AEEXHUREE
for the year - 7 - - 361,979 361,986
Exercise of share options TEZRORBE - - (1,650) - (1,624) (3,274)
Equity settled share-based transactions 1REEREE 2 URA B
EERS - - (5,641) - - (5,641)
Transfer between reserves B B - - - (50,000) 50,000 -
Final dividend paid in respect of BAEECARBRE
prior year - - - - (55,971) (55,971)
Interim dividend paid in respect of ~ BAEETHTHRE
current year - - - - (31,636) (31,636)
At 30 June 2018 RZE-\FxA=TH 672,777 - 2,870 - 1,421,086  2,09,733
At 1July 2018 R=E-NEtA-A 672,777 - 2,870 - 1,421,086 2,096,733
Profit for the year REERR - - - - 27,859 27,859
Exercise of share options TEZRORBE - - (2,160) - (17,776)  (19,936)
Equity settled share-based transactions RERZE 2 URH A
EHRS - - 362 - - 362
Final dividend paid in respect of FAEEEARBRE
prior year - - - - (65,705) (65,705)
Interim dividend paid inrespectof ~ BAEETHTHRE
current year - - - - (34,070) (34,070)
At 30 June 2019 RZB-NERA=1H 672,777 - 1,072 - 1,331,394 2,005,243
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Surplus reserves

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations for
Business Enterprises, foreign investment enterprises
in Mainland China are required to transfer at least
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined
under accounting principles generally accepted in
the PRC (“PRC GAAP") to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance of the reserve is equal to
50% of their registered capital.

Investment revaluation reserve

Prior to 1 July 2018, the investment revaluation
reserve included the cumulative net change in the
fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets
held at the end of the reporting period in accordance
with HKAS 39.

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve comprises the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the Company
acquired for the purpose of satisfying the exercise
of share options granted to a director and eligible
employees under the Company’s Share Option
Scheme.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the cumulative fair
value of employee services received for the issue of
share options and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies in note 2(q)(ii).

SERFBZEERRAE

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

MIE(EB)ERAR | T NFFHR
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hEANB=THILEE

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group: (continued)
(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises: (a) the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong whose functional currencies are different
from the functional currency of the Company; and
(b) the exchange differences on monetary items
which form part of the Group’s net investment in the
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2(u).

(vi) General reserve

The general reserve has been set up by transfer
of revenue reserve in prior years. Pursuant to a
resolution of the Board of directors of the Company
passed during the year ended 30 June 2018, the
general reserve has been transferred to revenue
reserve to streamline the equity accounts of the
Company.

(vii) Revenue reserve

The distributable reserves of the Company at 30
June 2019 amounted to HK$1,331,394,000 (2018:
HK$1,421,086,000).

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (the “ESOS 2013")
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and
took effect on 25 April 2013 to, among other, allow grant
of options over newly issued shares and/or transfer of
existing shares by a trust of the ESOS 2013 (the “Trust”)
which was established between the Company and a trustee
of the Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

Options granted under the ESOS 2013 are subject to
achievement of performance-based vesting condition. The
option shall lapse on the date the grantee ceased to be an
employee of the Group or the performance-based condition
is not satisfied. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is
settled gross in shares.

SERB2EERRAE - (&)
(v) ERf#E

EZREEE BREFBUNIZ
MELR (HEERARRALR
B2 EEE®) 2 B HRAEE
ZHNEERE  OARAEEEE
BAON 2 Fff 18 X B IR E F AR — AR 42
ZEWMEE 2EREZH o &
BREM 2 E 2 S ET RN
BRI o

(vi) —RfEE

—REBEBEALDESSRUA
FERZZWEFBERA BT
Bt AR RABRNERIKRE - A2F
EZERBE-Z-NFRXA
=tHLEFERBEBIRE -
E—REEERE NSRS

(vii) WzEREE

AKATAR-ZF—NAFRA
St+tHZAUSEHEESRSBE
1,331,394,000Tt (Z & — )\ &F :
FB#E1,421,086,0007T) °

20131THRA ER 17 R BREST 21 (2013
BHREETE DR =_Z—=F1TA
“H=ARERATARRESH RS LER
Rt IR=F—=FNA=+HH
£ HPBFEEFRESRIMBITR
B RBEB2013R D RBEEFTEIRNE
FE(TEFED) (SEI AR QA R EERZET
ZETAFRYL > MEFXAALEBRZ
2EMBAT) °

RIE2013RDRBE B TR H 2R
BzBBIREBARIRERRE - RH
RBERARAFLATEBRZET 2
AAREEIRBERERAN - SHOKR
DRBEBTEEARBAQIT-RE
BROER R UARMDBRELE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

== N 7

22. Equity Settled Share-Based 22. RERGEZURG A

Transactions (continued)

As at 1 July 2018, there were 3,105,000 (2017:
12,500,000) outstanding options pursuant to the ESOS
2013. During the year ended 30 June 2019, no (2018:
5,175,000) share options were vested to the grantees
under the ESOS 2013. No (2018: 7,325,000) share options
granted to the grantees were lapsed or cancelled and
2,070,000 (2018: 2,070,000) share options were exercised
by the grantees.

(a)

The terms and conditions of the grants are
as follows:

EWRXF @

RZE—NFLHA—8  RIE20131K 7%
REERERTE - XE3,105000(=F—+
£ 1 12,500,000) BR 18 R ITE 2 SREBHE o
REBE-ZZE-AEANB=1+HLEE "
RIE2013R D RBRESH BNER B D ER
AEB(ZZ—\F :5,175,0008%) R
E-RERTERAZCRBREAR(ZZ

—\F 1 7,325,000/%) AR R AT REH
2,070,000(=Z—\# : 2,070,000) &3

BRfE -

(a)

R 2 RS -

2013k 1D RREERERT & -

-RIE-ZFxAZTNAHEE)

- 28 June 2013 (Batch 2)
-RZE-=F-AZ+N\HB(itER2) the Vesting Date
REE B R EARTRE

the Vesting Date

Number of
Instruments Contractual
atgrant date  Exercisable period life of options
REEHE  ATEREE RBEANS
Options granted to a director:
ABREET-EES:
- 28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 1,250,000  From the date of notification of entitlement 4 years

("Vesting Date") up to 6 months from

REENEHREABEAN(ERASDES k3

FERSR A EART

From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years

the Vesting Date

REBRHMLET=EAZE T \EANENE &F

From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years

the Vesting Date

REBRHEE-_tREAZE=TEAMBIRE ~F

3,750,000  From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 4 years

From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years

the Vesting Date

REBRHBEET=BEAZE T \EANENTE &F

From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years

the Vesting Date

REBRBEE-_TIEAZE=TEANBIE 7

MIE(EB)ERAR | T NFFHR

>l
-

201



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

22. Equity Settled Share-Based

Transactions (continued)

(a)

as follows: (continued)

ESOS 2013: (continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants are

22. BREREEZURD A

HEBXZ @)

(a)

R 2 RRMEST ()

2013k 1D RREERERTE] - (48)

Number of
Instruments Contractual
atgrantdate  Exercisable period life of options
REEEE  ATEREB RBEEHH
Options granted to eligible executives:
ABERTEERTHRAR
- 28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 2,400,000  From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 4 years
-RIE-=F5xAZFHN\B H#3HE1) the Vesting Date
REE B RRAEARTHE k3
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years
the Vesting Date
REBEHEET=@AZE+\EABEGTR IF
From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years
the Vesting Date
REBEHEE-THEAZE=TEABBOR <&
- 28 June 2013 (Batch 2) 7,200,000  From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 4 years
-RZE-=FRATN\H(EER2) the Vesting Date
REE A BEAEARTHE k3
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years
the Vesting Date
REBEHEET=EAZE+\EABEGTR IF
From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years
the Vesting Date
REBRHEE-THEAZE=TEABBOR <&
- 26 November 2014 900,000  From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 3 years
-RZE-MFE+-A=15<A the Vesting Date
REE AR~ EARTHE =
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 4 years
the Vesting Date
REBRBEET=EAZET\EABMEIE HF
From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 5 years
the Vesting Date
REBEBEE-THEAZE=TEABBIR IF
Total share options granted 15,500,000

RORBERTAR
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

22. Equity Settled Share-Based 22. BEREEZ2URG A
Transactions (continued) Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%(ﬁg)
(b) The number and weighted average (b) ROZPEBENEE RMNEFH
exercise prices of share options are as TEEWMT :
follows:
ESOS 2013: 2013 1P R B RERT & ¢
2019 2018
—EB-hE —E-N\E
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
IREF it
TRE REEHA THE REBEHE
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT F JBET F
Outstanding at the REDERBITE
beginning of the year 4.90 3,105 4.78 12,500
Exercised during the year RERTHE 4.79 (2,070) 4.79 (2,070)
Lapsed during the year RERKN - - 4.77 (7,325)

Outstanding at the end of ~ RAEREKRWITE
the year 4.79 1,035 4.90 3,105

Exercisable at the end of RERATE

the year - - - -
The options outstanding at 30 June 2019 under the R-E—NEXB=+H &
ESOS 2013 had weighted average exercise price of 2013 A BE B - HRIT
HK$4.79 (2018: HK$4.90) and weighted average RO DEENEL Y TEE
remaining contractual life of 0.9 year (2018: 1.2 BB 79 (ZF—\F | B
years). 4.907C ) LA DA P T FIR & 49 5B

BOOFE(ZE—NF 125)
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Transactions (continued)

= N7

22. BEREE
BEBRXZ @

Z AR5 B

(c) Fair value of share options and (0 RORPBENATEENRR
assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share ZRRFRPIABEERERE
options granted is measured by reference to the fair NAFEERBZMETIABE
value of share options granted. The estimate of the HAFEETE SRERGBR
fair value of the share options granted is measured BEANTEERBE MR —EF
based on Black-Scholes model. The contractual life T RS - RODBENS
of the share option is used as an input into this HHAR R ZER N AE -
model.
Fair value of share options and assumptions of ESOS RMOZBEELFLEEBER2013K5
2013: RIBET EIRE
26 November 2014 20 November 2013 28 June 2013
Grant date RHiA Z§-RET-A-tAB Z®-ZE+-AZtR ZB-SEAACTAR
Fair value at measurement date Rit8AZATEE HK$ %0837 - HK$7851.0007C - HK$35850 4567 -
HKS %% 1.08370 HKS8%1.73970 HKS 81,0607
Share price RE HKS 6,757 HK$7B%5.757 HK$78%4.587
Exercise price 1 HKS 6,807 HKS #4627 HKS %4627
Bxpected volatilty RHRIE 2646% - 27.81% 23.33% - 35.04% 27.20% - 35.99%
Option life et 2.6 years - 4.6 years 0.6 year - 5.6 yearsF 1 yearfE - 6 years®
Expected dividend yield LR 3.1% 3.1% 35%
Risk-free rate ERRAZ 049% - 1.07% 0.20% - 1.25% 0.24% - 1.37%
(based on Exchange Fund Note) (RENEESZIE)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

FAHKIET R BB K EMEE
(FHETRER D R B T
HRERE) - WRBARREHNE
B RO IR K FEH 2 B AE R
2o BHRENREBEREM
BE EXWAEBERRITHQ
FEEMGMAEXNEATE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hNFEANB=THILEE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade receivables. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and cash equivalents and derivative financial assets
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with a good credit rating, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk.
The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’'s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 37% (2018: 26%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest
customers.

AEEEERFEERBRTEYEE R
BEE  MERREBER AKEERY
ZUHERBRASERR 2 EREER
RMEFRRRF L ZRBEHIAT -

(a)

MIE(EB)ERAR | T NFFHR
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(a)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE—ZE—hEANB=THILEE

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Credits are offered
to customers following financial assessments and
established payment records where applicable.
Credit limits are set for all customers and these are
exceeded only with the approval of senior company
officers. Customers considered to be with credit risk
are traded on a cash basis. General credit terms are
payment within 30 to 60 days following the sales
took place. Regular review and follow up actions
are carried out on overdue amounts to minimise
the Group’s exposure to credit risk. Collaterals over
properties are obtained from certain customers.
An ageing analysis of the debtors is prepared on a
regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise
any credit risk associated with these debtors.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables as at 30 June 2019:

B 35 R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

23. AR EERATLE

i

Ew@

(a)

EERRE)
B 5 EWAR (4F)

TREGEHAEER=2—N
F58 =+ A B E 2 BUER A
Ef 2 EEARRBNEEHE
ZEH

Current (not past due)
Less than 3 months past due
More than 3 months past due

BNER (RIEH)
BHORN=EA
BB =EA

Gross
carrying Loss
amount allowance
IREAE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT
312,392 -
31,185 -
6,509 (556)
350,086 (556)

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome of expected credit losses and is adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and also forward-
looking information including the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the

receivables.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

23. A EERER AT

23. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

208

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 July 2018, a loss allowance was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of
impairment (see note 2(k)(i) — policy applicable prior
to 1 July 2018). At 30 June 2018, trade receivables
of HK$483,000 was determined to be impaired. The
aging analysis of trade receivables that were not
considered to be impaired was as follows:
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EERRE)
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BBETEUE=TAFIETZ
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RZE-NE+LA—HA ' EHE
BEETERBREZBERER
(RMtEE 20— = —N\FtA
—HAEAZEE) - R=F—N
EXA=1+H  #B%483,0005t]5
EEACREZEZERERMR -
WARFERIECHEZE S EWER

MR DWNUT
2018
—E-N\F
HK$°000
JBEF T
_Neither past due or impaired  #@fr#EE 316,701
Less than 3 months past due BHONR=@A 27,270
More than 3 months past due mHERBE=1EA 2,552
346,523

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believed that no
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

23. IR ERERQES

23. Financial Risk Management and
Fair ValueS (continued)

(a)

(b)

il

Ew@

Credit risk (continued) (@) EERRKE)
Trade receivables (continued) BESENR (E)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect REEEZRERWEF ZERBRE
of trade receivables during the year is as follows: AEREMD 2 ZEBT -
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BHEF T
_Atbeginning ofyear ®& - . 771 ]
Amounts written off during the year REEMESE (137) (31
Loss allowance recognised/(reversed) REEEERE
during the year w2 ([E5) 228 (293)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, A <.
_Exchange adjustments  ER#=® L ——— 36 |
At end of year FR 556 483
Liquidity risk (b) REBEELEMR

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and financial
resources to ensure that a healthy financial position
is maintained such that cash inflows from operating
activities together with un-drawn committed
banking facilities are sufficient to meet the
requirements for loan repayments, daily operational
needs, capital expenditure, as well as potential
business expansion and development.

The Group reviews its strategy from time to time
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to
cater for the unique operating environment of each
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

23. Financial Risk Management and 23. I BEMEELE A FE

Fair Values (continued) ﬁ(,g)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FHBESRME)
The following table details the remaining contractual THEREIANEFESHEBENRSE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of A B ZRBEHNZER - Rtk
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based ENZHEDNRENENTRES
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including FRE(EEFEIMNAYENEZRS (HF
interest payments computed using contractual rates BIERSHABERANAEGTE
or, if floating, based on rates prevailing at the end of ZHREMR)URAREBAHESR
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group FRzREBHFE :

can be required to pay:

2019
ZE-NE
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or within within
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
CLER R —EH0E BERL

REE REREAE W EAFAR BEFAR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
ERTn  EEFr  ERTn  EEFr BRIz

Trade payables ERRAER 363,662 363,662 363,662 - -
Other payables and accruals HitEARRRETER 285,547 285,547 285,547 - -
Obligations under finance leases HERERE 514 514 160 126 228
649,723 649,723 649,369 126 228
2018

“B-N\E
Total More than More than
contractual Within Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or within within
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
LS —FR —FHE WERL

REE REREAE INE  ERENR BEEMA
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ERTn  E¥Fr  ERTn  E¥Fr ERTx

Trade payables ERRAER 338,758 338,758 338,758 - -
Other payables and accruals HttEARI R ETER 280,567 280,567 280,567 - -
Obligations under finance leases HERERE 669 669 312 132 225

619,994 619,994 619,637 132 225
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

23. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank deposits.

(i)

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest
rate profile of the Group's interest earning
financial assets at the end of the reporting
period:

23. I EEEER AT

Ew@

il

\

~

(0 R=REk

REENF RE R EZERERT

FR o

(i)

FIZEHR

TREINBEMAA -
AEEBELMEENT
R -

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\E
Effective Effective
interest Carrying interest Carrying
rate p.a. amount rate p.a. amount
BRERN=E REAE BBREANZE REE
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BEFT BT
Fixed rate financial assets: TEEREE
Deposits with banks RITEHEN 2.96 1,050,192 2.65 867,102
Variable rate financial assets: IESREE :
Cash at bank WITER 1.32 233,648 1.30 259,528
Total 4% 1,283,840 1,126,630
Sensitivity analysis (i) BBESH

At 30 June 2019, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease of 0 to 50 basis points
(2018: 0 to 75 basis points) in interest rates
for the Group’s interest earning financial
assets denominated in various currencies,
mainly Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
United States dollars, with all other variables
held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group's profit for the year
and revenue reserve by approximately
HK$348,000 (2018: increased/decreased of
HK$1,333,000).

MIE(EB)ERAR | T NFFHR
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23. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

212

(c)

(d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

23. %ﬁ%@t@%’ﬁ&ﬁ%
(#)

Interest rate risk (continued) (9]
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
for the year (and revenue reserve) that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group's profit for the year (and
revenue reserve) is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as for 2018.

Currency risk (d)

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
dollars (“US$"), Renminbi (“RMB"), Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), Macau Patacas ("MOP"”) and New
Zealand dollars (“NZ$").
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

23. AR EERAFE

23. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements
of operations outside Hong Kong into the
Group's presentation currency and exposure
arising from inter-company balances which
are considered to be in the nature of interest
in subsidiaries are excluded.

Ew@
(d)

()

B E)

R 2 IMNE [ BE

TREAEERBFEHL
B MEBARNEER
BUNEBHEN D RRE
EREREREAZ ZIER
PR fEL A DT - HIRE
BB LN 2 BB Rk
EREEZ2NEHUR
BRMEBARERMEEZ
EELABzES®RE
B UFAEFEER -

Exposure to foreign currencies (Expressed in original currency)

AR AERRARENR)

2019 2018
= k3 It
HKS'000  AMB'0O0  USS000  MOP'000  NZS'O00  HK$'000  AMB'000  US§'000  MOP00
BETn ARETr  Zifn APRETL 4EEETT BETn AREFn Fnfan AR
Trade and other receiables &5 REMERER - - % - - - - 163 -
Cashand cash equivelents ~ B4RB4%E 9 191 5344 = = 645 3263 7 -
Trade and other payables ~ E5 REMEAER - - () - (407) - (19 8 -
Amounts dvefromgroup B EEATSE
companies 31,099 - - 201 - 492718 - - 6,107
Gross exposure arsing from CEFEEREE
recognised assets and EENERAE
liahilities g 31,693 12917 1,29 201 (407) 49923 32,617 (2,045) 6,107
Notional amounts of foreign  RAFERES A
eichange forward contracts & ZME
at fair value through EHLH0
profitor loss %588 - - - - m - 5081 - -
Overall net exposure LRRRTE 31,693 12917 1,29 201 365 49923 87,698 (2,045) 6,107
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

23. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

214

(d)

(ii)

23. AR EERATLE

B

i

Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥REE)
Sensitivity analysis (i) HBESIT
The following table indicates the TREY HEREBRIR
instantaneous changes in the Group’s profit LHARBFrmE ERER
after tax (and revenue reserve) that would ZINEEER  NEZBEW
arise if foreign exchange rates to which BrESHAEBRERE
the Group has significant exposure at the ) (RO U &8 4 ) =z B e
end of the reporting period had changed at #E - WERIZMBEEME
that date, assuming all other risk variables P s BRI o
remained constant.
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-\%
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/  (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax in foreign after tax
exchange and revenue exchange  and revenue
rates reserve rates reserve
BB RRIR BRB BB A R
SNEE X Wz ke HNEEZE Wiz
ER/(TR) #i/(62) LA/ (T¥) #in/(6D)
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BETT BYTT
RMB AR® 0.40 49 2.43 2,373
HKS il (0.40) (40) (2.43) (731)
Us$ EVH 0.63 56 (1.49) 183
MOP PO (0.40) (6) (2.43) (108)
NZ$ gl 0.06 1 _ _

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit or loss after tax and revenue
reserve measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

23. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as for 2018.

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not
available.

23. %ﬁ%@t@%’ﬁ&ﬁ%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

23. Financial Risk Management and 23. I BEMEELE A FE

Fair Values (continued) ﬁ(,g)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) AT EEFEME)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured (i) UNFEEFEZERE
at fair value (continued) EREE(E)
= Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured = E=HBMEE: F
using significant unobservable inputs. REXTAHRG
ABBFTENAFE
BiE -
2019 2018
ZE-nE -3

level1 Llevel2 level3  Total  LevelT  Level2  Level3 Total
£-88 ESHE E=HEl 0 BE 98 EoHM E=8R 4%
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
EETr BETn BT EXTn BETn BEfa BETn B Ta

Recurring fair value measurements £ ATEEHE

Assets &g
Other non-current assets: HbnaEE:
- Club membership -8 - 915 - 915 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments: fiEeBIA:
- Foreign exchange forward contracts - SNEEERAR - 4 - 4 - -
- 962 - 962 - 877 - 877
Liabilty &f
Derivative financial instruments: fiESRIE .
- Foreign exchange forward contracts  ~JMEEHAR - - - - - 54 - 54
- During the years ended 30 June 2019 = BEZZE-AFAN
and 2018, there were no transfers B=+tBKR=Z%
between Level 1 and Level 2, or —NEXAB=1+H
transfers into or out of Level 3. The IEFE F—H5
Group's policy is to recognise transfers B — R Al 2 B2
between levels of fair value hierarchy BER hiREE
as at the end of the reporting period in AREHE =R
which they occur. Bl o AEBHEA
REFIEBEEZ
WMEHLABRIRA
TEEHRIER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=-ZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

23. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Valuation techniques and input used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of club membership in Level
2 is determined using market comparison
approach by reference to quoted prices in an
active market of financial assets similar to the
instrument being valued, adjusted for factors
unigue to the instrument being valued.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts in Level 2 is determined based on
quotes from market makers or alternative
participants supported by observable inputs
including spot and forward exchange rates.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

Apart from non-trade balances with
subsidiaries, all other significant financial
assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values
as at 30 June 2019 and 2018. It is not
meaningful to disclose the fair value of non-
trade balances with subsidiaries because
there is no fixed term of repayment.

23. I EEEER AT

Ew@
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(e) ADFVEEFEME

(ii)

(iii)

MIE(EB)ERAR | T NFFHR

HRARE=—RFI L2 FEE
FTERIIEER MR AR
5B

SIEE BBz
FEERZEMNIAMEEL
ZEMEERTELEE
ERT IS 2 TS RE
BUEBRIARZBERE
FLAGER -

BUPESE — R Bz SN =
BREZAFEERUER
HHEMTHIESEE UTE
Zi A BB TS RE
REE  HhEENHR
EHER o

FURFEEIRGZE
EEREBEZAFIERE

BREMBARZEESE
BRI MZB-—NEFERZ
E-NEXA=+B M
FHMEATREERE
BENRAEERAFEE
WEEREZRE - HREH
BLRZIFERERILE
BEBEMYE  MBEEERQ

217



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

24. Commitments 24. BREE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the (a) AEENRBEHLABUTER
reporting period not provided for in the financial FRIERTE B TS SRR P H B4
statements were as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Capital expenditure authorised ERENETNZER
and contracted for B 29,013 107,391
Capital expenditure authorised EREERTNZER
but not contracted for 553 135,260 27,294
(b) At the end of the reporting period, the total future (b) MIREHAR  RETAHRBRZ
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable REHETHREN2HREEE
operating leases are payable as follows: SRBRENT -
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEF T BT T
Within 1 year —&ERK 2,712 1,273
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRZEREFR 711 233
3,423 1,506
The Group leases a number of properties under AEERBLEHEHAZEAY
operating leases. The leases typically run for periods ¥ oZEHEN-RA—FE=
from 1 year to 3 years (2018: 1 year to 3 years). F(ZB—N\F: —FE=F) -
(c) At 30 June 2019, the Group had several non- () MHZE—HIEA~A=+H £&f
cancellable purchase orders for raw materials with BB H R ERE ] L ER A A EUH
its suppliers with an amount of HK$768,624,000 WEMBHRBETE  SERBE
(2018: HK$818,321,000). 768,624,000 T (=ZF—\F : B

#£818,321,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 AR Ilﬁ‘ﬁ

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #HZE=

25. Related Party Transactions

(a)

(b)

(c)

—NFRAZTHLFE

25. BREALTZRS

Key management personnel remuneration () FEEEASEH
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEEBAEZHM  BEXM
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors FALABREERETHEESW
and certain of the highest paid employees is EERZEVERRMTOWER
disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial G o FHENAERES ST A TR TR ]
statements. Total remuneration is included in “staff A (RMIEE7) °
costs” (note 7).
Management fees b) EEE
Related party Nature of transactions 2019 2018
22}yl REMHE —EB-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFTT
GOMC/GGMC/GMCL Management fee expenses (Note)
GOMC/GGMC/BIVEETE  EEBXH (M) 12,844 12,332
Note: HtaE -
On 7 July 2017, two master services agreements R=ZZE—tFtALtAH AAFHEH
(collectively, the “Master Services Agreements”) were B # ¥ % A ) Hong Leong Company
entered into by the Company with Guoline Group (Malaysia) Berhad ([HLCM 1) 2B
Management Co. Limited ("GGMC") and GOMC Limited 7 GuolLine Group Management Co.
("GOMC") respectively, both are subsidiaries of Hong Limited ([ GGMC 1) & GOMC Limited
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM"), the (frGomCl) » B BIRTL T M RR#E £
Company’s ultimate holding company, for provision by % - LA () GGMCEZA A 7 Z Kt
i) GGMC of management services to the Company’s BAR(TEEREMEEEEER
subsidiaries excluding, at any time, the subsidiaries o BEISEEZHERREEHE
incorporated, resident or with operation in Hong Kong AT DREEERE - &) GOMCE
("Hong Kong Subsidiaries”) and; ii) GOMC of management ARATREEBKHE A RREEERT
services to the Company and the Hong Kong Subsidiaries.
An agreement for services dated 11 June 2019 was entered AAREEEERERAR ([EEE
into by the Company with Guoco Management Company IEJ)JF"—i ﬂi/\ﬂ‘l‘ H T AR
Limited (“GMCL"), a subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited #inE BVEERAEEEEERL
("GGL") as a service provider pursuant to clause 3.2 of the A(TEESE ) E’JNTE’R%  WAEH
Master Services Agreements for provision of services by PRISHIER - RIBZZSRBEHESE
GMCL to the Group. 32 AR EREEEEERAEER
fit 2 BRFE ©
The Master Services Agreements are for a term of three ﬂﬁﬁ%ifﬁ%niAﬁ'JﬁﬁEE —tFtA
years from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2020. —HEZZ-EHFRA= '|‘ H: &RH
:$ ©
Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (0 FBBEXZZLHRAZE
connected transactions A
The related party transactions in respect of (b) FHRFMO)EEEZBRBEALR
management fees above constitute continuing B LEMRAFUIAEREZHF
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A BEREERS o LmRAIEI14ATER
of the Listing Rules. The disclosures recognised by EZBEBERESEREANEER
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in 21— -
section “Connected Transactions” of the Directors’
Report.
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26. Company - Level Statement of

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2019 HE=ZZE—AFEANB=1THILEE

Financial Position

26. AT HB AR R T

220

2019 2018
=F-NF =F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRZE 277 293
Interest in subsidiaries GRlENGIL: 883,682 883,647
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E 920,869 902,260
1,804,828 1,786,200

Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hih W R 1,210 2,370
Cash and cash equivalents HENIHSERE 347,050 467,732
348,260 470,102
Current liability REBAE
Other payables HAbE{TERX 8,229 8,966
e 8229 3,966
_Netcurrentassets FRBEE 340031 461,136

Total assets less current liability BEERRBEE 2,144,859 2,247,336

Non-current liability FRBEME
Amounts due to subsidiaries R NG E 139,616 150,603
NET ASSETS BEE 2,005,243 2,096,733

Capital and reserves B kiEE
Share capital (note 20) BRAS (BitaF20) 672,777 672,777
Reserves (note 21) 18 (faE21) 1,332,466 1,423,956
TOTAL EQUITY R 2,005,243 2,096,733

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 29 August 2019.

LEUNG Joseph %
DIRECTOR EE

WHANG Sun Tze

DIRECTOR

KABEENR-_2-NFNA=+NH

RERIRETIE -

®=wEE

EF
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27.

28.

29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Eﬂ*i&%ﬁﬁﬁi

—NFRAZTHLFE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #HZE=

Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to current year’s presentation.

Immediate and Ultimate Holding
Company

At 30 June 2019, the directors consider the immediate
holding company to be GuoLine International Limited,
which is incorporated in Bermuda and the ultimate holding
company to be HLCM, which is incorporated in Malaysia.
These entities do not produce financial statements available
for public use.

Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and Interpretations
Issued but not yet effective for
the year ended 30 June 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 30 June 2019 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.
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Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and Interpretations
Issued but not yet effective for
the year ended 30 June 2019

(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of the new standards which may have certain impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16,
the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of this standard
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based
on the information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standard is
initially applied in the Group’s interim financial report for
the six months ending 31 December 2019. The Group may
also change its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially applied
in that financial report. The Group does not intend to early
adopt any of these amendments or new standards.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(j), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some
leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE=ZE—NAFAB=+HILEE

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability
at the present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset.
After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties which are currently classified
as operating leases. The application of the new accounting
model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets
and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the period
of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group
plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements are,
or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the new
definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial application. In
addition, the Group plans to elect the practical expedient
for not applying the new accounting model to short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets.
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29. Possible Impact of Amendments,

224

New Standards and Interpretations
Issued but not yet effective for
the year ended 30 June 2019

(continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

The Group currently plans to adopt HKFRS 16 initially on
1 July 2019, using a modified retrospective approach.
Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting HKFRS 16 will
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balances
of lease liabilities and the corresponding right-of-use
assets at 1 July 2019, with no restatement of comparative
information.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS
16 and the expected changes in accounting policies as
described above on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements from 1 July 2019 onwards will not be material.
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The following list contains particulars of principal subsidiaries at 30

At30June 2019 R=Z—AFARA=+H

RZB-NEFEAAZTHETEWBRAARE

June 2019: M
Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
DEER BERIZRARE EMREE Y REREE A FTEER i3
Group  Company
by VYA
Gladko Industries Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
EREXERAT WREER oy REER
Global Flour Trader Limited 10,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading of commodity derivatives
RHENEABRAT 10,000 E &R i BREEE
Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare  HK$21,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of NT
Products Limited 78#21,000,0007 China cleaning products
EMEIEE2RRERAR PEARLAE BAERMEERES
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited 100 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Provision of trucks rental service
ERERHARLF 10,000 deferred shares & and investment holding
100REBR RUSERERREER
10,000 EFE R
Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 7,000,000% 7 China flour products
LERARERERA A REARLNE BREREERES
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food US$10,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 10,000,000% T China flour products
IHEERRERA A hEARLAE BREREERES
Lam Soon (China) Holdings US$1 British Virgin Islands/ 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited 1% Hong Kong REZRK
REGERHE/ B
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading of cleaning products
Laboratories (Hong Kong) UREBR B E2EMES
Company Limited
AIRE2EERE (FB)BRAR
Lam Soon Distribution International 400,000 ordinary shares  Hong Kong 100 100 Trading of edible oils products
Limited (Formerly Known as 400,000 R EER &5 REHERES
Swamex Food Service Limited)
HIEAHE (B BRAF
(ABEERRERAR)
BIE(REB)BRAR [ ZE—NLFFH



Name of company

NREB

At30June 2019 R=Z—AFEARA=+H

Particulars of
issued capital

ERTZRARE

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
operation

MRS

Effective
percentage of
equity holding
RERREIL

Notes

Principal activity

Lam Soon Food Industries
(BVI) Limited

Lam Soon Food Industries Limited

Lam Soon Food Supply (Macau)
Company Limited
HIERRAE(RM)ERAR

Lam Soon (Pan Yu) Industries
Company Limited
HE(EE) I£ERAT

Lam Soon Products Supply
(Hong Kong) Company Limited
HEERMLE(EE) BRAF

Lam Soon Realty Limited

HEtERRAR

Lam Soon (Shandong) Food
Company Limited
HE(LR)RRERAT

Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food
Company Limited
HIE(m)) RRERATE

Lam Soon Silos Investments Limited

HEHRRERRLA

Lam Soon Systems Limited

HEZSARLR

HK$ 11,858,415
iBH11,858,4157T

Ordinary shares
HK$83,228,315
LiERBMe3,2283157

MOP25,000

BP9#25,0007

2 ordinary shares

IREBER

1,000,000 ordinary shares
1,000,000 Z B

2 ordinary shares
IREBR

US$10,113,100
10,113,100€ 7t

US$7,000,000
7,000,000% 7

2 ordinary shares
IREBER

2 ordinary shares
IREER

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2019

British Virgin Islands
EBERARES

Bermuda/ Hong Kong
BRE/ER

Macau

P

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&8

The People’s Republic of
China
hEARLNE

The People’s Republic of
China

PEARLNE
Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

Group  Company

v d. ]

100

100

100

100

v

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Trading of flour, edible oils and
cleaning products

B RRRRE2ERES

Investment holding

REER

Manufacturing of edible oils and
trading of flour, edible oils and
agency products

RAMLERER - RAMR
REERES

Property holding, the provision of
warehousing and logistic services
and licenses of factory canteen

NEER  RERRNIDERER
IBRENREE

Manufacturing and trading of N7
flour products

BHERLERES

Manufacturing and trading of N7
flour products

BNERLERES

Investment holding

REER

Provision of information
technology services

RREMNEERS



At30June 2019 R=Z—AFARA=+H

Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
RREH BRTZRAHE EMREEEH RERREIL TERHB Wit
Group  Company
%8  A4d
Lam Soon Trademark Limited Us$2 Cook Islands/ 100 - Trademark holding
ESS Hong Kong BERE
NREE/BE

LS SynaLife Trading Company 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading and distribution of

Limited (Formerly Known as UREBR Bk products and investment

Lam Soon Distribution Agency holding

Limited) ESRDHERRRERR
MEEESERAT

(FBEEREREERAR)
Richly Choice Development (PTC) ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Provision of trustee services

Limited (EFH ABEEREE REETRS
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills US$27,500,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1

Company Limited 27,500,000% 0 China flour products
EOREERERAR hEARLAE BRERLEERES
Shekou Lam Soon Silo Company  US$9,500,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Provision of silo facilities N1

Limited 9,500,000% 7 China REERRE
EOBEERERAR hEARLAE
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils US$12,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N7

Company, Limited 12,000,000% 7T China edible oils products
Ay IR BB R A A EARLAE RABERLERES
Note: FtaE -
N1 These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned-foreign N1 ZEMBRREPEARLMBERUINE

companies under PRC Laws. BEAREZRM o
HIE(EE)AERAR | ZE—NLFFW



5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBERE

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group and

FEEBETHEMRFENEE EERAE

total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for

the last five financial years are as follows:

RADRRREEBEDZGFROT

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“2-AF -2-\F “B-tF -PT-XE "B-If
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEET BEEErT BEEET BEEER
Results £
Revenue WA 5,316 5,374 4,814 4,708 4,449
Operating profit before interest, RIMBRFIEZH - B&E -
taxation, depreciation and TERBHENEE RN
amortisation 433 428 369 324 221
Profit attributable to equity AT RRELEER
shareholders of the Company 340 326 273 202 114
Assets and liabilities BEERER
Non-current assets FRBEE 725 684 698 727 803
Net current assets FRBEE 1,622 1,491 1,209 1,005 957
Non-current liabilities e =l (12) (5) () (1) (69)
Non-controlling interests FEREER (11) (11 (11) (11 (11)
Total equity attributable to equity 77 RIRR B (G HE %
shareholders of the Company 2,324 2,159 1,895 1,720 1,680

228
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FSC

www.fsc.org

MIX

Paper from
responsible sources

FSC™ C017167

© Copyright Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited. All Rights Reserved.

The FSC™ |ogo identifies products which contain wood and virgin fibre from responsible sources
certified in accordance with the rules of the Forest Stewardship Council®
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